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IT IS 1ST UNITED BANKS MISSION TO
Be the premier financial institution in the

markets we serve always operating with the

highest legal ethical and moral standards

Create and deliver quality financial products
and services to our customers in professional
efficient and

friendly manneç making sure to

remember that our customers are our most

important asset

Maintain an experienced dedicated people
oriented staff and provide stimulating and

challenging work environment which encour

ages develops and rewards excellence in

non-discriminatory manner

To strengthen and expand leadership

position in the Community by offering

quality banking products and services

delivered by professional caring
people-oriented staff in friendly and
efficient manner consistent with prudent
and sound banking practices

Diligently serve the banking needs of all facets

of our community including low and moderate
income families and minority owned businesses

with integrity honor and pride The Bank will

participate actively and
financially in the com

munities we serve

Maintain as our first
priority the safety and

soundness of the Bank in order to protect our

customers deposits and our shareholders

investments

Through uncompromising dedication and

commitment to all of the above achieve

consistently superior financial performance
which creates value for our shareholders
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Dear Shareholder

We are pleased to report to you that 2010 was very good year

for your 1st United Bancorp In summary we were able to con

tinue to grow the bank both organically and through acquisition

to become the 15th largest Florida headquartered bank holding

company with $1268 billion in assets serving our customers

in 15 banking centers predominately in Floridas three largest

banking markets We continue to maintain business banking

focus with strong asset quality fortified with rock solid capital

position which enhances our opportunity for future growth

and profitability

These achievements are all the more significant because as

we alluded to in our 2009 letter to you the economic downturn

and malaise has continued to be with us in South Florida affecting

adversely many businesses and individuals as well as the bank

ing industry itself 1st United detected some areas of customer

weakness in its loan portfolio which translated to increased

loan loss provisioning during the
year At year end our non

performing assets to total assets ratio stood at 2.2% well below

state averages but still higher than we would like Part of the

increased provisioning during the year was induced by our

aggressive disposal of non performing assets

The year IUIU brought about continued transtormational

change for 1st United which began with our successful IPO in

late 2009 when we raised $80 million in new capital which we

began to leverage when we acquired certain assets and liabilities

from the failed Republic Federal Bank N.A in Miami Florida

from the FDIC in December of 2009 In 2010 we continued to

pursue our strategic vision which included focus on organic

and acquisitive growth cost management balance sheet

strength asset quality and profitability The following are

some of the many accomplishments for 2010

In May we successfully integrated the former Republic

Federal Bank operation into the 1st United
system

In December with the assistance of the FDIC we acquired

substantially all the assets and deposits of the failed Bank

of Miami in Miami Florida With this acquisition we further

enhanced our banking network in Miami Dade County

Floridas largest banking market and expanded our enviable

international deposit division

We increased our loan portfolio to $860.7 million both through

the acquisition of The Bank of Miami and through healthy

organic loan growth of over $91 million of new loan produc

tion of which $67 million funded during the year

We inreased total deposits to $1.UA billion with the oppor

tunity to serve the former Bank of Miami customers as well as

the development of new customer relationships throughout

our system Furthermore we were successful in maintaining

our outstanding non interest bearing deposit ratio of 26.4%

which is one of the highest percentages in the state of Florida

We produced net income available to shareholders of $2i60

million and elevated our earning engines through our increase

in earning assets and expanded customer base

We believe our loan loss reserve is adequate at $13 million

and as of year end we had 41% of loans and 73% of OREO
covered by FDIC loss share protection

Our net interest margin increased to 4.06% and is one of the

strongest margins in the state of Florida

We have continued to expand significant risk defenses for

the company with an expansive Credit and Risk management

division stout Bank Security Act BSA division with newly

formed international division and loss share management

department

We have grown our already experienced and professional

staff with talented bankers in the lending business develop

ment special assets loan review and credit analysis functions

All in all 2010 was busy challenging and very productive year

as we continue to build franchise value As we look to 2011 we

believe our overall growth trend will continue through organic

means as well as potential acquisition opportunities We remain

opportunistic in an ever evolving banking landscape here in

Florida and although we know that the economic challenges

are not fully
behind us we do see positive signs of improve

ment Profitability remains priority and we are confident that

our recent acquisition of The Bank of Miami will prove to be

accretive to the core earnings of the Company Our continuing

focus while always centered around the safety and soundness

of
your bank will be to manage and sustain problem assets at

low levels leverage our excess liquidity intelligently and evalu

ate opportunities to leverage capital through quality growth

All of this requires team effort and we are very proud of our

men and women bankers who every day work tirelessly with

competence and caring to serve our customers Enormous thanks

to our talented management team and committed Board of

Directors who we value greatly and to you our shareholders

for your continued confidence in us We invite you to review

the details of our financial results in the pages that follow

Warren Orlando

Chairman of the Board

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer

John Miino

President Chief Finan fi
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of and for the year ended

December 31

Oollars in thousands escept per share data 201 2009b 2008a

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Total assets $1267752 $1013441 $617821

Total loans 860739 667140 486247

Securities available for sale 102289 88843 35075

Deposits 1064687 802808 436269

Non interest bearing deposits 281285 194185 100785

Stockholders equity 174050 170594 98870

INCOME STATEMENT DATA

Interest income 45763 28539 30250

Interest expense 7745 7246 9584

Net interest income 38018 21293 20666

Provision for loan losses 13520 13240 1910

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 24498 8053 18756

Gain on acquisition 11041 20535

Other non interest income 4411 2427 2037

Non interest expense 36429 26168 22904

Income tax expense benefit 1361 1827 752

Net income loss 2160 3020 1359
Preferred stock dividends earned 774 368

Net income loss available to common shareholders 2160 2246 1727

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings loss per share 0.09 0.17 0.25

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.09 0.17 0.25

Book value per common share 7.02 6.88 10.87

Tangible book value common share 5.07 4.94 5.44

OTHER RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.20% 0.46% 0.25%

Return on average shareholders equity 1.24% 2.44% 1.63%

Net interest margin 4.06% 3.69% 4.23%

Equity/assets 13.73% 16.83% 16.00%

Non performing assets/total assets 2.21% 80% 1.72%

Allowance for loan losses/total loans 1.52% 1.99% 1.19%

Leverage Ratio 11.78% 12.54% 8.15%

Tier risk based capital 21 .62% 23.23% 9.46%

Total Risk Based capital 23.71/ 25.45% 11.69%

includes Equitabie Merger and citrus Acquisition

includes Republic Transaction

includes TBOM transa tion

Ba ed on year
end total as ets the Leeerage Ratio of the company is 10 27% and for 1st united Bank is 61
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON DC 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2010

OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from
_____________

to
_____________

listilnitedBaneorpInc
Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Florida 001-34462 65-0925265

State of Incorporation Commission File Number IRS Employer Identification No

One North Federal Highway Boca Raton Florida 33432

Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

561 362-3435

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on which Registered

Common Stock $0.01 par value The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the
registrant

is well known seasoned issuer as dcfined in Rule 405 of the Securitics Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to fllc reports pursuant to Section 13 or Scction 15d of the Exchange Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to he filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and has been subject to such

filing requiremenu for the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site if any every Interactive Data

File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation 232.405 of this chapter during the preceding 12 months or for such

shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not be

contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any

amendment to this FonTi 10-K lEl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer or non accelerated filer See definition of

accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller Reporting Company IEJ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No

The aggregate market value of the registrants common stock $0.01 par value per share held by non affiliates of the registrant on June 30 2010

the last business day of the registrants most recently completed second fiscal quarter was approximately $152 million based on the sales price at which of

the Registrants common stock was last sold on that date Shares of the registrants common stock held by each officer and director and each person

known to the registrant to own l0 or more of the outstanding oting power of the registrant have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be

affiliates This determination of affiliate status is not determination for other purposes

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuers classes of common stock as of the latest practicable date

Class Outstanding at February 2011

Common Stock $0.01 par value per share 24807603 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of our Prnxv Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to he held on May74 2011 are ineorpnrated by reference in Part Ill
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

INTRODUCTORY NOTE

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements include among others statements about our

beliefs plans objectives goals expectations estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and uncertainties

and are subject to change based on various factors many of which are beyond our control The words may could
should would believe anticipate estimate expect intend plan target goal and similar expressions

are intended to identify forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements by their nature are subject to risks and uncertainties Our actual future results may differ

materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements In addition to those risks discussed in this Annual Report

under Item IA Risk Factors factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking

statements include without limitation

legislative or regulatory changes including the Dodd-Frank Act

the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the local economies in which we

conduct operations

the accuracy of our financial statement estimates and assumptions including the estimate for our loan loss

provision

the frequency and magnitude of foreclosure of our loans

our customers willingness to make timely payments on their loans

restrictions on our operations including the inability to pay dividends without our regulators consent

our ability to comply with the terms of the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC

our ability to integrate the business and operations of companies and banks that we have acquited and

those we may acquire in the future

the effects of the health and soundness of other financial institutions including the FDICs need to increase

Deposit Insurance Fund assessments

the failure to achieve expected gains revenue growth andlor expense savings from future acquisitions

our ability to declare and pay dividends

changes in the securities and real estate markets

changes in monetary and fiscal policies of the U.S Government

inflation interest rate market and monetary fluctuations

the effects of our lack of diversified loan portfolio including the risks of geographic and industry

concentrations

our need and our ability to incur additional debt or equity financing

the effects of harsh weather conditions including hurricanes and man-made disasters

our ability to comply with the extensive laws and regulations to which we are subject

the willingness of clients to accept third-party products and services rather than our products and services

and vice versa

increased competition and its effect on pricing

technological changes

negative publicity and the impact on our reputation

the effects of security breaches and computer viruses that may affect our computer systems



changes in consumer spending and saving habits

growth and profitability of our noninterest income

changes in accounting principles policies practices or guidelines

the limited trading activity of our common stock

the concentration of ownership of our common stock

anti-takeover provisions under federal and state law as well as our Articles of Incorporation and our

Bylaws

other risks described from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and

our ability to manage the risks involved in the foregoing

However other factors besides those listed in Item IA Risk Factors or discussed in this Annual Report also could adversely

affect our results and you should not consider any such list of factors to be complete set of all potential risks or

uncertainties Any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf speak only as of the date they are made We do

not undertake to update any forward-looking statement except as required by applicable law

PART

Item Business

About Us

General

United Bancorp Inc Bancorp is financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton Florida United Bank

Florida state chartered bank is our wholly-owned subsidiary Operations commenced on April 20 2000 under the names

Advantage Bankshares Inc and Advantage Bank with completely different management team and board of directors

Since December 31 2003 the year in which the current management team and Board of Directors replaced the previous

management team and Board of Directors to December 31 2010 we have experienced strong growth through combination

of internal growth de novo branching and acquisitions Specifically we have

increased total assets from $66.8 millionto 1.268 billion

increased net loans from $39.6 million to $847.7 million

grew non-interest bearing deposits from $4.6 million to $281.1 million and

increased our banking center network from one to fifteen locations excluding the acquired banking centers

of The Bank of Miami which will be closed consisting of four banking centers in Palm Beach County four

banking centers in Broward County four banking centers in Miami-Dade County and one banking center

each in Sebastian Vero Beach and Barefoot Bay Florida

We operate under community banking philosophy that seeks to develop broad customer relationships based on service and

convenience while maintaining our commitment to conservative approach to lending and strong asset quality We offer our

customers primarily professionals high net-worth individuals and small and medium sized businesses variety of

traditional loan deposit and cash management products which we apply to their specific needs Making loans which result in

long-standing relationship with our borrowers will continue to be the cornerstone of our approach to business We believe

that our emphasis on personal service puts us at competitive advantage relative to the other banks in our market area and

has been an instrumental contributing factor to the growth that we have experienced to date We believe our success has been

built on the strength of our management team and board of directors our credit culture the attractive growth characteristics

of the markets in which we operate and our ability to expand our franchise by attracting seasoned bankers with long-standing

relationships in their communities We have one reportable segment

In this report the terms Company we us or our mean Bancorp and all of its consolidated subsidiaries



Recent Developments

Acquisition of The Bank of Miami N.A from FDIC as receiver

On December 17 2010 Unitcd Bank our banking subsidiary entcred into purchase and assumption agreement the

Bank of Miami Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as receiver for The Bank of Miami
National Association TBOM Miami Florida According to the terms of the Bank of Miami Agreement 1S United Bank

assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and acquired certain assets of TBOM Assets

acquired included $275.8 million in loans and $12.8 million in other real estate owned based on TBOMs carrying value and

approximately $75 million in cash and investments TBOM operated three banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida

and had 101 employees

All of the loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the TBOM Loss Share Agreements between the FDIC

and 1st United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

the FDIC will cover 80 of covered loan and other real estate losses for loans and other real estate owned acquired The

TBOM Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans The

term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing and loss

recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss

recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the

FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $38 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available We recorded an estimated receivable

from the FDIC in the amount of $48.7 million as of December 17 2010 which represents the fair value of the FDICs

portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to us The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements are subject

to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisition gain totaling $11 millionresulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

1St United Bank did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of TBOM as part of the Bank of Miami Agreement

However United Bank has the option to purchase the furniture and equipment and any owned facilities from the FDIC

The term of this option expires March 18 2011 Pt United has until March 18 2011 to request the FDIC to repudiate all

leases entered into by the former TBOM or the leases will be assumed Two of the former TBOM banking facilities are

leased and one is owned Two of the locations are approximately one mile from existing United facilities and one location

has less than $3 million in deposits Management has determined that none of the TBOM branches would be retained and

anticipates the deposits to be serviced from existing Pt United facilities



The statement of net assets acquired as of December 17 2010 and the resulting gain as adjusted are presented in the

following table dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Securities

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans

Other real estate owned

Core deposit intangible

FDIC Loss Share Receivable

Other assets

Total Assets Acquired

Liabilities

Deposits

Repurchase Agreements

Advances from FHLB

Borrowings

Other

Total Liabilities Assumed

48690

3691

378.316

Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed 50841

Cash paid to the FDIC

Total Gain Recorded

39800

11041

Explanation of Fair Value Adjustments

Miscellaneous asset writedowns

This estimated adjustment was necessary as of the acquisition date to write down TBOMs book value of loans and

other real estate owned to the estimated fair value

This fair value adjustment represents the value of the core deposit base assumed in the acquisition based on study

performed by an independent consulting finm This amount was recorded by us as an identifiable intangible asset

and will be amortized as an expense over the average life of the core deposit base which is estimated to be years

This adjustment was the estimated fair value of the amount that we will receive from the FDIC under the IBOM
Loss Sharing Agreements as result of future loan losses

This fair value adjustment was recorded because the weighted average interest rate of TBOMs time deposits

exceeded the cost of similar wholesale funding at the time of the acquisition This amount will be amortized to

reduce interest expense on declining basis over the average life of the deposit portfolio

Our operating results for the twelve month period ended December 2010 include the operating results of the acquired

assets and assumed liabilities since the acquisition date of December 17 2010 Due primarily to the significant amount of fair

value adjustments and the TBOM Loss Share Agreements now in place historical results of TBOM are not believed to be

relevant to our results and thus we are not presenting pro forma information

The following is description of the methods used to determine the fair values of significant assets and liabilities presented

above

Cash and cash equivalents

As Recorded

By TBOM
74902

29312

8253

275770

12846

4028

405111

Fair Value

Adjustments

252a

72585
2988

677

48690

337
26795

As Recorded

by Vt United

74902

29060

8253

203185

9858

677

As Recorded Fair Value As Recorded

By TBOM Adjustments by Vt United

254374 164 254538

71016 71016

1921 1921

327311 164 327475

The carrying amount of these assets is reasonable estimate of fair value based on the short-term nature of these assets



Securities

Fair value for securities were based on quoted market prices where available If quoted market prices were not available fair

value estimates were based on observable inputs including quoted market prices for similar instruments quoted market prices

that are not in an active market or other inputs that are observable in the market

The following table sets forth the fair value and weighted average yield of the investments portfolio acquired in the TBOM
transaction as of December 17 2010

Dollars in thousands Weighted

Fair Average

Value Yield

U.S Treasury and Federal Agencies

Less than 12 months 00

Over one year through five years

Over five through ten years 2440 2.88%

Over ten years 9675 3.52%

Total 12115 3.39%

Corporate Obligations

Over ten years __________%

Total

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Less than 12 months

Over one year through five years

Over five through ten years

Over ten years 4402 1.Q3%

Total 4402 1.93%

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

Less than 12 months 00

Over one year through five years

Over five through ten years

Over ten years 12543 2.62c

Total 12543 2.62%

Municipal Securities

Over five year through ten yeais

Over ten years
__________ __________

Total 00

Grand Total 29060 2.84c

Loans

Fair value for loans were based on discounted cash flow methodology that considered factors including the type of loan and

related collateral classification status fixed or variable interest rate term of loan and whether or not the loan was amortizing

and current discount rates Loans were grouped together according to similar characteristics and were treated in the aggregate

when applying various valuation techniques The discount rates used for loans were based on current market rates for new

originations of comparable loans and included adjustments for liquidity concerns The discount rate does not include factor

for credit losses as that has been included in the estimated cash flows Management prepared the purchase price allocations

and in part relied on third party for the valuation of non-impaired loans at December 17 2010



The following are the fair value of loans recorded in the TBOM transaction as of December 17 2010 dollars in thousands

Carrying of

Value of Acquired

Number of Acquired Loan

Loan Types Loans Loans Portfolio

Commercial Real Estate 125 102088 50.2%

Construction and Development Loans 11 6032 3.0%

Commercial and Industrial 112 20819 10.3%

Closed End First Lien 1-4 Family 230 42574 1.0%

Multi-family Loans 35 28357 14.0%

Consumer Loans 32 3315 1.5%

Total 545 203185 100.0%

The following table sets forth the loan interest rate sensitivity for loans acquired in the TBOM transaction at December 17

2010 dollars in thousands

Fixed and to

Variable year to years years years

year Adjustable years Adjustable Fixed Adjustable

Total Maturity Rate Fixed Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commercial 20819 12159 4738 3922

Residential 42574 850 27143 3426 8833 2322

Commercial real estate.. 130445 7077 41626 23561 55552 2629

Commercial and land

development 6032 122 4884 926 33 67

Consumerandother 3315 404 2601 23 71 _________
Total loans 203185 20612 80992 32074 64418 5089

The acquired loans at December 17 2010 included loans accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC 10-30 ASC 310-

30 Asdefined by ASC 10-30 and subject to certain exceptions contained in that statement ASC 10-30 loans are loans

with evidence of deterioration of credit quality for which it is probable that the borrower will not be able to make all

contractually required payments We acquired loans with an aggregate face value on December 17 2010 of $108.8 million

for which there was at acquisition evidence of deterioration in credit quality and which it was probable that the borrowers

would not be able to make all contractually required payments As result discount of $57.3 million was recorded for these

loans resulting in net carrying amount of $51.5 million on December 17 2010

The fair value of other real estate acquired in the TBOM transaction was $9.9 million at December 17 2010

Core deposit intangible

This intangible asset represents the value of the relationships that TBOM had with its deposit customers The fair value of

this intangible asset was estimated based on discounted cash flow methodology that gave appropriate consideration to

expected customer attrition rates cost of the deposit base reserve requirements and the net maintenance cost attributable to

customer deposits third party provided the valuation for the core deposit intangible at December 17 2010

FDIC loss share receivable

This loss sharing asset is measured separately from the related covered asset as it is not contractually embedded in the assets

and is not transferable with the assets should 1st United Bank choose to dispose of them Fair value was estimated using

projected cash flows related to the TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements based on the expected reimbursements for losses and the

applicable loss sharing percentages These expected reimbursements do not include reimbursable amounts related to future

covered expenditures These cash flows were discounted to reflect the uncertainty of the timing and receipt of the loss sharing

reimbursement from the FDIC third party provided the valuation of the FDIC loss share indemnification asset at

December 17 2010

Deposits

The fair value used for the demand and savings deposits that comprise the transaction accounts acquired by definition equal

the amount payable on demand at the acquisition date The fair values for time deposits are estimated using discounted cash

flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered to the interest rates embedded on such time deposits

third party provided the valuation of the deposits at December 17 2010



Deposit liabilities assumed are comprised of the following at December 17 2010

Acquired

Value

in thousands

Noninterest bearing 59863

NOW 8513

Money Market 43366

Savings 3197

Time deposits less than $100000 46985

Time deposits greater than $100000 92450

Acquired balance of deposits 254374

Fair value adjustment 164

Total 254538

Included in the above deposits are approximately $105.9 million in deposits by foreign nationals banking in the United

States

At December 17 2010 the maturities schedule of certificates of deposit was as follows

Under Over

Maturing in $100000 $100000

in thousands

Up to months 15600 23087

to months 16072 27988

to 12 months 10855 31497

Ovet 12 months 4359 9977

Total 46886 92549

Advances front Federal Home Loan Bank

The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances equaled the carrying value by TBOM These advances were

repaid prior to December 31 2010 with no prepayment penalty assessed

Republic Federal Acquisition

On December 112009 United Bank entered into purchase and assumption agreement the Republic Agreement with

the FDIC as receiver for Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic Miami Florida According to die terms

of the Republic Agreement 1St United Bank assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and

acquired certain assets of Republic Assets acquired included $238 million in loans based on Republics carrying value and

$64.2 million in cash and investments All of Republics repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non-

performing loans were retained by the FDIC Republic operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida and

had approximately 100 employees We assumed approximately $349.6 million in deposits in this transaction

All of the Republic loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the Republic Loss Share Agreements

between the FDIC and 1st United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the Republic Loss

Share Agreements the FDIC will cover 80c of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95c of

losses in excess of that amount The Republic Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of

accrued interest on covered loans The term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years

while the term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and

eight years with respect to loss recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the hook value ot the

relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the

Republic Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $34.2 million from the FDIC above the Republic carrying value of the net assets acquired The

acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business

Combinations The purchased assets and assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values

and identifiable intangible assets were recorded at fair value We recorded an estimated receivable from the FDIC in the

amount of $43.3 million which represents the fair value of the FDICs portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred

and reimbursed to us The Republic Loss Sharing Agreements are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the

agreements



An acquisition gain of $20.5 million during 2009 resulted from the Republic Acquisition and is included as component of

noninterest income on the statement of income

2008 Acquisitions

On August 15 2008 we completed an acquisition of the banking center network substantially all of the deposits and

selected loans of Citrus Bank NA headquartered in Vero Beach Florida We refer to this as the Citrus Acquisition The

Citrus Acquisition resulted in the assumption and acquisition of approximately $87.5 million in deposits and $38 million in

net loans In addition we expanded our banking centers to Vero Beach Sebastian and Barefoot Bay Florida As condition

of receiving regulatory approval of the acquisition we committed not to enter into any additional acquisition agreements

unless it is funded with common stock or until we have been profitable for four consecutive quarters

On February 29 2008 we completed the merger and acquisition of Equitable Financial Group Inc Equitable and its

wholly-owned subsidiaries Equitable Bank and Equitable Equity Lending which we refer to as the Equitable Merger We
issued 1928610 shares of our common stock and paid cash of approximately $27.6 million to the Equitable shareholders and

option holders The Equitable Merger increased our banking centers from to 11 locations at that time In addition we

acquired approximately $146.9 million in net loans $29.9 million in cash and securities $136.0 million in deposits and $25.7

million in repurchase agreements and borrowings in the Equitable Merger We recorded approximately $37.4 million in

goodwill and $1.4 million in core deposit intangibles as result of the Equitable Merger

Investment Activity

Our consolidated securities portfolio is managed to minimize interest rate risk maintain sufficient liquidity and maximize

return The portfolio includes several callable agency debentures mortgage-backed securities adjustable rate mortgage pass

throughs and collateralized mortgage obligations Our financial planning anticipates income streams generated by the

securities portfolio based on normal maturity and reinvestment

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of our investments portfolio all of which was classified as available-for-

sale as of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands December 31
2010 2009 2008

Fair value of investment in

U.S Treasury and Federal agencies 4038 12417 18800

Mortgage-backed securities 98251 74438 16155

Corporate obligations 120

Municipal securities
__________

1988
__________

102289 88843 35075



The following table sets forth the combined fair value and weighted average yield of our investments portfolio as of

December 31 2010

Dollars in thousands Weighted

Fair Average

Value Yield

U.S Treasury and Federal Agencies

Oneyearorless

Over one year through five years

Over five through ten years 4038 4.08%

Over ten years
___________ __________%

Total 4038 4.08%

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Oneyearorless

Over one year through five years 1302 4.66%

Over five through ten years 4256 3.49%

Overtenyears 77998 4.24%

Total 83556 4.21%

Collateralized Mortgage Obligations

One year or less

Over five year through ten years

Over ten years 14695 3.6%

Total 14695 3.6%

Total Fair Value 102289 4.12%

Total Amorti7ed Cost
... 101436 411%

As of December31 2010 we held no tax-exempt obligations and we held no instruments from issuers other than the U.S

government where the amortized cost or market value represented more than ten percent of shareholders equity

Lending Activity

We have adopted the strategy of presenting robust and diverse series of lending channels and suite of loan and loan-

related products normally associated with larger banks While this strategy demands an investment in experienced personnel

and enabling systems it distinguishes us from competing community banks We intend to continue to provide for the

financing needs of the community we serve by offering variety of loans including

commercial loans which will include collateralized loans for working capital including inventory and

receivables business expansion including real estate constrnction acquisitions and improvements and

purchase of equipment and machinery

small business loans including SBA lending

Export-Import Bank insured or guaranteed loans

residential real estate loans to enable borrowers to purchase refinance construct upon or improve real property

and home equity loans and

consumer loans including collateralized and uncollateralized loans for financing automobiles boats home

improvements and personal investments

We follow lending policy that permits prudent risks to assist consumers and businesses in our market area We have no

subprime loans We sell loan participations to other banks Loan related interest rates will vary depending on our cost of

funds the loan maturity and the degree of risk We are expected to meet the credit needs of customers while allowing

prudent liquidity through our investment portfolio We expect this positive community-oriented lending philosophy to

translate into sustainable volume of quality loans into the foreseeable future

We also help enhance loan quality by staffing with experienced well-trained lending officers capable of soliciting loan

business Our lending officers as well as our credit officers and loan committees also recognize and appreciate the

importance of exercising care and good judgment in underwriting loans svhich supports our safety and profitability goals
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At December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 the composition of our loan portfolio was as follows

Dollars in thousands December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

ouf oof %of oof %of
Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total

Commercial 129673 1500 115781 17% 90968 19o 57574 20o 50361 20%

Residential real estate 227500 26o 00877 30o 100571 20o 51663 18% 40930 l6

Commercial real estate 456615 53o 282783 43o 203734 42o 114424 40o 87098 34o

Constmctinn and Land

Development 33444 400 55689 8o 83161 l7o 56603 20o 72824 29o

Consumer and others 13645 2o 11873 2o 7865 2o 5125 2o 3650 1%

Total loans 860877 lOOo 667003 l00 486299 l00 285389 lOOo 254863 100%

Allowance for loan losses 13050 13282 5799 2070 2149

Net deferred fees costs 138 137 52 34 47

Net loans 847689 653858 480448 283353 252667

The following charts illustrate the number of loans in our loan portfolio as of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

Loan Portfolio as of December 31 2010

Total Percent of Percent of

Loans Total Loan Portfolio Total Assets

Loan Types

Residential

First mortgages 575 172598 20.04c 13.61%

HEjOCs and equity 284 54902 6.38% 4.33

Commercial

Secured non real estate 478 106802 12.41% 8.43c

Secured real estate 54 37012 4.30 2.92c

Unsecured 99 22872 2.66% 1.80%

Commercial Real Estate

Owneroccupied 181 157653 l8.3l l2.44

Non-owner occupied 204 224033 26.02% 17.67

Multi-family 62 37916 4.40c 2.99%

Construction and Land Development

Construction 0.00 0.00%

Improved land 36 21757 2.53c l.72

Unimproved land 11687 l.36 0.92%

Consumer and other 200 13645 l.59 l.08

Total December 31 2010 2182 860877 100.00a 67.92c

Total December 31 2009 1724 667003 100.00 65 22%
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Of the loan portfolio as of December 31 2010 908 loans with carrying value of $355.5 million 41o are subject to the

TBOM Loss Share Agreements and the Republic Loss Share Agreements collectively the Loss Sharing Agreements as

compared to 620 loans with carrying value of$ 180.2 million 27s which were subject to the Republic Loss Share

Agreements at December 31 2009 In addition at December 31 2010 included in Commercial and Industrial loans are

approximately $10.3 million in Export Import EXIM loans which have either insurance or guarantee of between 90%

and IOOo from the Export-Import Bank of the United States

At December 31 2010 our loan interest rate sensitivity was as follows

Dollars in thousands Maturity and/or Re-pricing Period

to

ito years years years

year year years Adjustable Fixed Adjustable

Total Fixed Adjustable Fixed Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commercial 129673 33193 63605 9938 6564 15692 681

Residential real estate 172598 30137 92076 5914 33786 10685

Commercial real estate 456615 65769 150967 108010 87706 44163

Commercial and land development 33444 14414 17082 1847 33 o8

Home Equity Lines of Credit 54902 1645 53257

Consumer and other 13645 4813 6328 2422 82
__________

Total loans 860877 149971 383315 128131 128089 70690 681

As shown in the table above majority of our loan portfolio has either adjustable rates or shorter maturity terms

Real Estate Loans

Real Estate Loans Commercial

Through our lending division and SBA division our commercial real estate loan portfolio includes loans secured by office

buildings warehouses retail stores and other properties which are primarily located in or near our markets Commercial real

estate loans are generally originated in amounts up to 70 U/s of the appraised value of the property securing the loan In

determining whether to originate or purchase multi-family or commercial real estate loans we consider such factors as the

financial condition of the borrower and the debt service coverage provided by the property business enterprise related

borrowing entities and guarantors

Appraisals on properties securing commercial real estate loans originated by us are performed by an independent appraisers

at the time the loan is made and are reviewed internally by our Credit and Risk Management division In addition our

underwriting procedures generally require verification of the borrowers credit history income and financial condition

banking relationships and income and expenses for the property We generally obtain personal guarantees for our

commercial real estate loans

Real Estate Loans Residential

We originate mix of fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans Lending officers contact local builders

realtors government officials community leaders and other groups to determine the residential credit needs of the

communities we serve

We primarily offer adjustable rate mortgages which are commonly referred to as ARMs and maintain these ARMs in our

portfolio or sell the ARMs in the secondary market The ability to retain ARMs in the portfolio will also from time to time

allow us the opportunity to originate loans to borrowers who may not fully meet the underwriting criteria of strict secondary

market standards but are still reasonable credit risks We also originate fixed rate loans from within our primary service area

The majority of fixed rate loans are sold in the secondary mortgage market

Our ARMs generally have interest rates that adjust annually at margin over the weekly average yield on U.S Treasury

securities published by the Federal Reserve adjusted to constant maturity of one year The maximum interest rate

adjustment of our ARMs are generally 2s annually and over the life of the loan above or below the initial rate on the

loan

We embrace written non-discriminatory underwriting standards for use in the underwriting and review of every loan

considered for origination or purchase Our board of directors reviews and approves these underwriting standards annually
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Our underwriting standards for residential mortgage loans generally conform to standards established by Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac Our underwriters and secondary market buyers obtain or review each loan application to determine the

borrowers ability to repay and confirm significant information through the use of credit reports financial statements

employment and other verificationc

When originating real estate mortgage loan we obtain new appraisal of the property from an independent third party to

determine the adequacy of the collateral and the appraisal will be reviewed by one of the underwriters Borrowers are

required to obtain casualty insurance and if applicable flood insurance in amounts at least equal to the outstanding loan

balance or the maximum amount allowed by law

We require that survey be conducted and title insurance be obtained insuring the priority of our mortgage lien

Underwriters review all loans to ensure that guidelines are met or that waivers are obtained in limited situations where

offsetting factors exist

Construction Residential and Commercial Real Estate Loans

lhe construction loan portfolio includes residential real estate commercial real estate and homeowners association projects

Generally construction loans have terms which match permanent financing offered by us During the construction phase the

borrower may pay interest only

Through our business lending divisions we originate real estate construction loans to individuals for the construction of their

residences to businesses and business owners primarily for owner-occupied commercial real estate and to homeowners

associations for general repair and/or improvements to the properties Our construction loans typically have terms up to 18

months and generally the maximum loan-to-value ratio at origination is 8000 The loan-to-cost maximum ratio is generally

70 8O0o for residential and commercial construction and up to 100% for homeowners associations

We have construction loans on commercial real estate projects secured by industrial properties office buildings or other

property The majority of the projects are owner-occupied Following the construction phase loans will be converted to

permanent financing

Land Loans

Our portfolio includes exposure to land development both residential and commercial Typically borrowers have or had

preliminary plans for development and were waiting for final plans to be completed to submit for construction financing Due

to current adverse market conditions original development plans for some financed projects may now be altered or on hold

The following chart illustrates the composition of our construction and land development loan portfolio in relation to total

loans as December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Decembe 31
2010 2009

Balance

%of
Loans

2008

Balance

%of
LoansBalance

%of
Loans

0o 3586 0.70c

00 9938 1.49c 16939 3.50%

0o 1108 0.l7 20349 4.20%

3259 0.49c 3185 0.70%

2384 0.30c 1890 0.28c 2076 0.40c

12997 1.50c 24922 3.7400 17561 3.60%

7.151 0.80c 00 2.175 0.40c

10912 l.30 14572 2.2l0o 17290 3.60%

33444 3.90o 55689 8.34c 83161 l7.l0

Approximately $7.0 millionor 210o of the construction and land development loan portfolio at December 31 2010 is part of

the Loss Share Agreements

Dollars in thousands

Construction

Residential

Residential Spec

Commercial

Commercial Spec

Land Development

Residential

Residential Spec

Commercial

Commercial Spec

Total
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Consiuner Loans

We originate consumer loans bearing both fixed and prime-based variable interest rates We originate our loans directly

through our banking centers business bankers and residential lenders

We focus our consumer lending on the origination of direct second mortgage loans and home equity loans secured by

junior lien on residential real property and home improvement loans These loans are typically based on maximum60c to

80c loan-to-value ratio Second mortgage and home improvement loans generally will originate on either line of credit or

fixed term basis ranging from to 15 years We also extend personal loans which may be secured by various forms of

collateral both real and personal or to minimal extent on an unsecured basis

Conunercial Loans

We focus on the commercial loan market comprised of small- to medium-sized businesses with combined borrowing needs

generally up to $20.0 million These businesses include professional associations physicians law firms and accountants

medical services retail trade construction transportation wholesale trade manufacturing and tourism-related service

industries

Our commercial loans are primarily derived from our market area and underwritten on the basis of the borrowers ability to

service such debt from recurring income As general practice we will take as collateral security interest in any available

real estate equipment or other assets although such loans may also be made on an uncollateralized but guaranteed basis

Short-term assets primarily secure collateralized working capital loans whereas long-term assets primarily collateralize term

loans

In certain situations we use various loan programs sponsored by the SBA Properly utilized SBA loans can help to reduce

our loan portfolio risk and can generate non-interest income

As part of the acquisition of Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic we obtained an EXIM lending

operation Oul EXIM lending operation makes loans to companies that export U.S goods and services to international

markets and makes loans to foreign companies to facilitate the purchase of U.S goods Loans made under this program are

insured or guaranteed between 90 and 1000o by the Export Import Bank of the United States At December 31 2010 we

had approximately $10.3 million in Exim loans

Loan Administration and Underwriting

Through our Credit and Risk Management division we use our loan origination underwriting procedures to assess both the

borrowers ability to make principal and interest payments and the value of the collateral securing the loan Our Credit and

Risk Management division is responsible for battery of management and board risk management monitoring and for

reporting to various management and board committees Given our emphasis on business purpose lending our loans may be

viewed as involving higher degree of credit risk than is the case with banks that might focus on long-term residential

mortgage loans where greater emphasis is placed on collateral values To manage this risk we have adopted written loan

policies and procedures and our loan portfolio is administered under defined process That process includes guidelines for

loan underwriting standards and risk assessment procedures for loan approvals loan grading ongoing identification and

management of credit deterioration and portfolio reviews to assess loss exposure and to test compliance with our credit

policies and procedures

Our Board of Directors has approved set levels of lending authority to the Management Loan Committee as well as limited

authority for certain officers based on the loan type and amount All use of delegated loan authorities is preceded by

determination of the worthiness of the loan request by the Credit and Risk Management division Typically the Management

Loan Committee reviews loan requests and if particular request exceeds the loan authority limits delegated to this

committee these requests if approved are presented to 1st United Banks Board Loan Committee for final approval

Before and after loan closing our loan operations personnel review all loans for adequacy of documentation and compliance

with regulatory requirements Our loan review personnel analyze loans over certain size thresholds problem loans and loans

with certain loan quality ratings to ensure that appropriate credit risk ratings are assigned and ultimately to assist in

detennining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

Loan Quality

Management seeks to maintain high quality of loans through sound undersvriting and lending practices As of December31

2010 and 2009 approximately 77.0c and 8l.0 respectively of the total loan portfolio was collateralized by commercial

and residential real estate mortgages
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Unlike residential mortgage loans which generally are made on the basis of the borrowers ability to repay from employment

and other income and which are collateralized by real property whose value tends to be more readily ascertainable non-real

estate secured commercial loans typically are underwritten on the basis of the borrowers ability to make repayment from the

cash flow of its business activities and generally are collateralized by variety of business assets such as accounts

receivable equipment and inventory As result the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may be

substantially dependent on the success of the business itself which is subject to adverse conditions in the economy

Commercial loans are generally repaid from operational earnings collection of rent or conversion of assets Commercial

loans also entail certain additional risks since they usually involve large loan balances to single borrowers or related group

of borrowers resulting in more concentrated loan portfolio Further the collateral underlying the loans may depreciate over

time cannot be appraised with as much precision as residential real estate and may fluctuate in value based on the success of

the business

Loan concentrations are defined as amounts loaned to number of borrowers engaged in similar activities which would

cause them to be similarly impacted by economic or other conditions We on routine basis monitor these concentrations in

order to consider adjustments in our lending practices to reflect economic conditions loan-to-deposit ratios and industry

trends As of December 31 2010 and 2009 no concentration ot loans within any portfolio category to any group ot

borrowers engaged in similar activities or in similar business other than noted below exceeded 10.0c of total loans

except that as of such dates loans collateralized with mortgages on real estate represented 77.0 and 81.000 respectively of

the loan portfolio and were to borrowers in varying activities and businesses

Generally interest on loans accrues and is credited to income based upon the principal balance outstanding It is

managements policy to discontinue the accrual of interest income and classify loan as non-accrual when principal or

interest is past due 90 days or more unless in the determination of management the principal and interest on the loan are

well collateralized and in the process of collection Consumer installment loans are generally charged-off after 90 days of

delinquency unless adequately collateralized and in the process of collection Loans are not returned to accrual status until

principal and interest payments are brought current and future payments appear reasonably certain Interest accrued and

unpaid at the time loan is placed on non-accrual status is charged against interest income

Real estate acquired by us as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as other real estate owned

OREO OREO properties are recorded at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs and the estimated

loss if any is charged to the allowance for credit losses at the time it is transferred to GREG Further write-downs in GREG

are recorded at the time management believes additional deterioration in value has occurred and are charged to non-interest

expense At December31 2010 we had $9.1 million of OREG property of which $6.6 million were result of the TBGM
acquisition and are covered under the TBGM Loss Share Agreements We had $63OOO of GREG property as of December

31 2009 of which $270000 was sold subsequent to December 2009 at an $11000 gain

The following is summary of other real estate owned as of December 31 2010 and 2009

2010 2009

Assets Not

Subject Assets Subject to

to Loss Share Loss Share

Agreements Aereements

Assets Subject

to Loss Share

Aareements Total

598

Total

2147 5461 7608

302 1175 1477 37 37

2449 6636 9085 635 635

As of December 31 2010 we had approximately $1.1 million of the total of $2.4 million in other real estate osned not

subject to Loss Share Agreements under contract to sell at approximately the carrying value of the asset

Commercial Real Estate...

Residential

Total

Assets Not

Subject

to Loss Share

Aareements

598
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We have identified certain assets as risk elements These assets include non-accruing loans foreclosed real estate loans that

are contractually past due 90 days or more as to principal or interest payments and still accruing and troubled debt

restructurings All non-accruing loans and loans accruing 90 days or more and substantially all troubled debt restructurings

are considered impaired and included in our substandard classification These assets present more than the normal risk that

we will be unable to eventually collect or realize their full carrying value Our risk elements at December 31 2010 2009

2008 2007 and 2006 were as follows

Dollars in thousands December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Assets Not Assets Assets Not Assets

Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to

Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share

Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total

Non-Accrual Loans

Residential 6062 263 6325 469 469

Home Equity Lines 1638 1638

Commercial Real Estate 8381 183 8564 8566 8566

Construction and Land Development 1759 1759 5258 5258

Commercial and Industrial 241 73 314 717 560 1277

Other 289 289

Total 18370 519 18889 15010 560 15570

Accruing 90 days past due

Residential

Home Equity Lines

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Land Development

Commercial and Industrial 54 54

Other
___________ ________ ____________ ____________

Total 54

Total non-accruing and 18370 519 18889 15010 560 15570

Accruing 90 days past due loans 54 54

Foreclosed real estate 2449 6636 9085 635
____________

635

Total non-performing assets 20819 7155 27974 15699 560 16259

Trouble debt restructured loans 14672 14672 1990 1990

Total non-performing assets and

restructured loans 35491 7155 42646 17689 560 18249

Ratios

Total non-accruing and accruing 90

days past due loans to total loans 2.1900 2.34%

Total non-performing assets to total assets 2.210o 1.60%

Total non-performing assets and troubled

debt restructured loans to total assets 3.3 6% 1.80
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Dollars in thousands December 31

2008 2007 2006

Non-Accrual Loans

Residential

Home Equity Lines 324

Commercial Real Estate 6792 27

Construction and Land Development

Commercial and Industrial 1433 192 1085

Other
____________ ____________ ____________

Total 8549 192 1112

Accruing 90 days past due

Residential 2059 87

Home Equity Lines

Commercial Real Estate

Construction and Land Development

Commercial and Industrial

Other
___________ ___________ ____________

Total 2059 87

Total non-accruing loans 8549 192 1112

Accruing 90 days past due 2059 87

Foreclosed real estate

Total non-performing assets 10608 279 1112

Trouble debt restructured loans
_____________ _____________

Total non-performing assets and restructured loans 10608 279 1112

Ratios

Total non-accruing loans to total loans 1.76% 0.10% 0.44%

Total non-performing assets to total assets 1.72 0.07% 0.33%

Total non-performing assets and troubled debt restructured

loans to total assets 1.72% 0.07% 0.33%

During the year ended December 31 2010 approximately $13.6 million in assets classified as non-performing assets were

paid off or brought cunent Approximately $8.4 million were charged off and approximately $25.0 million were added

excluding assets acquired in the TBOM transaction to non-accrual during the year The $7.16 million in non-performing

assets acquired in the TBOM and Republic transactions are all covered under the Loss Share Agreements and we do not

expect any additional future losses on these assets Significant loans included in non-accrual loans not covered by Loss Share

Agreements at December 31 2010 include $2.7 million loan net of $406000 specific reserve secured by single family

home in Palm Beach County appraised September 2010 for $3 million$2.0 million loan net of $220000 specific

reserve secured by new commercial office/warehouse property in Broward County Florida appraised December 2010 for

$2.3 million $1.6 million loan secured by single family home in Broward County appraised March 2010 for $4.2

million $1.0 million loan net of $516000 specific reserve secured by commercial real estate in Broward County

appraised Decemker 2010 for $1.23 Million $1.1 million participation loan secured by land in Orlando Florida appraised

September 2010 for $1.3 million for pro rata portion $81000 loan net of $90000 specific reserve secured by home in

Palm Beach County appraised September 2010 for $900000 The remaining non-accrual loans are each under $750000

We have specific reserves including those noted above included in the allowance for loan losses of $4.8 millionfor

probable incurred loan losses to non-accrual loans that are not covered by Loss Share Agreements We continue to

aggressively work to resolve each of these loans
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Delinquent Loans

Non-Accrual and

90 days and over past due

Accruing 30 59 Accruing 60-89 and accruing Total

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

Residential

First mortgages 11 2280 116 6325 19 8721

HELOCs and equity 136 1638 1774

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 1095 185 264 13 1544

Secured real estate 50 50

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied 4692 4800 9492

Non-owner occupied 1029 2635 3764 10 7428

Multi-family

Construction and Land

Development

Construction

Improved land 631 631

Unimproved land 1128 1128

Consumer and other
________ _______ ________ ________

289 289

Total December 31 2010 24 9232 2936 31 18889 61 31057

Total December 31 2009 15 2359 14 8882 27 15570 56 26811

Included in the accruing 30-59 category are 14 loans with carrying value of $3.2 million in the accruing 60- 89 category

are loans with canying value of $475000 and in the non accrual and 90 day and over category are loans with

carrying value of $519000 for total of $4.2 million all of which are subject to the Loss Share Agreements

The following is summary of troubled debt restructurings as of December 31 2010 which are performing in accordance

with the restructured terms The
average yield on the loans classified as troubled debt restructurings is 4.8c Troubled debt

restructuring loans are considered impaired

Dollars in thousands

Loan Amount

Residential 2649

Commercial Real Estate 6996

Construction and Land 4750

Commercial and Industrial 277

Total 14672

At December 31 2010 there were no loans that did not perform in accordance with the restructured terms

Impaired Loans

The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31 2010
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Impaired Loans With

Impaired Loans With Allowance no Allowance

Allowance for

Unpaid Recorded Loan Losses Unpaid Recorded

Principal Investment Allocated Principal Investment

Residential

Firstmortgages 7021 7021 1219 1939 1939

HELOCsandequity 1513 1513 650 139 139

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 311 311 210 73 73

Secured real estate 50 50 50

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied 6124 o124 1027 1455 1455

Non-owner occupied 6512 6512 685 1629 1629

Multi-family

Construction and Land Development

Construction

Improved land 6965 5382 823

Unimproved land 1557 1128

Consumer and other 289 289 108

Total 28785 27202 4772 .5 6792 6363

During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 interest income not recognized on non-accrual

loans hut would have been recognized if these loans were current was approximately $858 436 $338 $65 and $75

respectively dollars in thousands

Allowance for Loan Losses

At December 31 2010 the allowance for loan losses was 13 million or 1.52 of total loans and 2.07 of loans

excluding purchase credit impaired loans and the TBOM loans which at year ended December 31 2010 did not have any

allowance allocated due to the timing of the acquisition At December 31 2009 the allowance for loan losses sas $13.3

million or 1.99% of total loans and 2.10% of loans excluding purchase credit impaired loans In originating loans we

recognize that credit losses will be experienced and the risk of loss will vary with among other things general economic

conditions the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower over the teim of the loan insurance whether

covered by Loss Share Agreement and in the case of collateralized loan the quality of the collateral for such loan The

allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of the amount necessary to provide for probable incui red losses in the loan

portfolio In making this determination we analyze the ultimate collectability of the loans in our portfolio feedback provided

by internal loan staff the independent loan review function and information provided by examinations performed by

regulatory agencies

On quarterly basis management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses Commercial credits are graded by

risk management and the loan review function validates the assigned credit risk grades In the event that loan is

downgraded it is included in the allowance analysis at the lower grade To establish the appropriate level of the allowance

we review and classify sample of loans including all impaired and non performing loans as to potential loss exposure

Our analysis of the allowance for loan losses consists of three components specific credit allocation established for

expected losses resulting from analysis developed through specific credit allocations on individual loans for which the

recorded investment in the loan exceeds the fair value ii general portfolio allocation based on historical loan loss

experience for each loan category and iii qualitative reserves based on general economic conditions as \vell as specific

economic factors in the markets in which we operate
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The specific credit allocation component of the allowance for loan losses is based on regular analysis of loans where the

internal credit rating is at or below the substandard classification and the loan is determined to be impaired as determined by

management The amount of impairment if any is determined based on either the present value of expected future cash

flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the market price of the loan or if the loan is collateral dependent the

fair value of the underlying collateral less cost of sale Third party appraisals are used to determine the fair value of

underlying collateral At minimum new appraisal is obtained annually for all impaired loans based on an as is value

Generally no adjustments other than reduction for estimated disposal costs are made by the company to third party

appraisals to determine the fair value of the assets The impact on the allowance for loan losses for new appraisals are

reflected in the period the appraisal is received loan may also be classified as substandard and not be classified as impaired

by management The allowance for these loans is calculated based on historical charge offs for the substandard loan

categories combined with specifically evaluating the underlying credit and collateral of adversely classified loans loan

may be classified as substandard by management if for example the primary source of repayment is insufficient the

financial condition of the borrower andlor guarantors has deteriorated or there are chronic delinquencies The following is

summary of our loan classifications at December 31 2010 and 2009

Special

Total Pass Credits Mention Substandard Doubtful

Residential

First mortgages 172598 157169 6332 9097

HELOCs and equity 54902 50803 1764 2335

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 106801 103374 757 2670

Secured real estate 37012 36962 50

Unsecured 22872 22420 452

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied 157653 138048 6636 12969

Non-owner occupied 224033 201021 5955 17057

Muti-fami1y 37916 37916

Construction and Land Development

Construction

Improved land 21758 15292 1084 5382

Unimproved land 11687 8044 3643

Consumer and other 13645 13317 39 289

Total December31 2010 860877 784366 22567 53944

Total December31 2009 667003 585391 24371 57241

All non-accrual loans and substantially all troubled debt restructurings are included in substandard loans

The total of substandard loans which include all non-accrual loans totaled $53.9 million at December 31 2010 of which

$609000 is subject to the Loss Share Agreements and $57.2 million at December 31 2009 In addition at December 31

2010 we identified approximately $33.6 million or 3.9c of total loans in loans we have classified as impaired which are

included in our substandard classification This compares to $17.0 million or 2.5 of total loans at December 31 2009 At

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the specific credit allocation included in the allowance for loan losses for loans

impaired was approximately $4.8 million and $2.6 million respectively All loans classified as substandard that are

collateralized by real estate arc re-appraised at minimum on an annual basis The spceifie credit allocation for loans

impaired is adjusted based on the new appraisals

We also have loans classified as Special Mention We classif3t loans as Special Mention if there are declining trends in the

borrowers business questions regarding condition or value of the collateral or other weaknesses At December 31 2010 we

had $22.6 million 2.6c of outstanding loans which includes $3.5 million in loans subject to Loss Share Agreements which

compares to $24.4 million 4.8c of outstanding loans at December 31 2009 If there is further deterioration on these loans

they may be classified substandard in the future and depending on the fair value of the loan specific credit allocation may

be needed resulting in increased provisions for loan losses
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At December 31 2010 we had total of $88.8 million in loans which were acquired in the TBOM transaction the Republic

transaction and the Equitable merger which at the time of acquisition we assessed that it would be improbable of collecting

all contractually required payments Included in the $88.8 million loans is $2.5 million in loans which are included in non
acemal loans as we cannot reasonably estimate cash flows For the remaining loans we estimate remaining cash flows

quarterly and if they are determined to be less than originally estimated impairment is determined and included in the

allowance for loan loss analysis At December 31 2010 none of these remaining loans were impaired

We determine the general portfolio allocation component of the allowance for loan losses statistically using loss analysis

that examines historical loan loss experience adjusted for current environmental factors We perform the loss analysis

quarterly and update loss factors regularly based on actual experience The general portfolio allocation element of the

allowance for loan losses also includes consideration of the amounts necessary for concentrations and changes in portfolio

mix and volume

We base the allowance for loan losses on estimates and ultimate realized losses may vary from current estimates We review

these estimates quarterly and as adjustments either positive or negative become necessary we make corresponding

increase or decrease in the provision for loan losses The methodology used to determine the adequacy of the allowance for

loan losses is consistent with prior years and there were no reallocations

Management remains watchful of credit quality issues Should the economic climate deteriorate from current levels

borrowers may experience difficulty repaying loans and the level of non-performing loans charge-offs and delinquencies

could rise and require further increases in loan loss provisions

During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 the activity in our allowance for loan losses was as

follows

2010

13.282

13520

13933
181

13050

Year ended December 31

2009 2008

5.799 2.070

13240 1910

2731

5788 915
31

13282 5799

Net charge-offs recoveries /average total

loans 0.2l 0.08c 0.03o

Allowance for Loan Losses Allocation

As ofDecernber 31 2010

Specific Reserves

Impaired loans

Purchase credit impaircd loans

Construction

Residential Commercial and Land

Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development

260 1781 1497

___________
89 215

_____________

Consumer

and Other Total

Total specific reserves

General reserves

Total

260

3572

3832

1870 1712

1156 2433

3026 4145

126383 191911 390773 23054 12227 744348

129673 227500 456615 33444 13645 860877

Dollars in thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Provision charged to expense

Effect of acquisition

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Balance at end of period

2007

2.149

145

502
278

2070

2006

1.893

181

73
148

2149

2.00% 1.14%

822 108 4468

____________ _________
304

Loans individually evaluated for

impairment

Purchase credit impaired loans

Loans collectively evaluated for

impairment

Allowance as percent of loans per

434

7856

108

44

152

10612

24977

822

1073

1895

6510

3880

4772

8278

13.050

15720

50122

289 33565

1129 82964

category 2.96c 1.33% 0.91% 5.67% 1.1100 1.5o
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The following table reflects the allowance allocation per loan category and percent of loans in each category to total loans for

the periods indicated

The following table reflects charge-offs and recoveries per loan category

Dollars in thousands

Commercial real

estate 2204

Residential real estate... 2069

Construction and land

development

Commercial

Consumer and others

Total

46 2394 671
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Net charge-offs for the year ended December 31 2010 were approximately $13.9 million compared to $5.8 million for the

year ended December 31 2009

Deposits

We maintain and enhance full range of deposit accounts to meet the needs of the residents and businesses in our primary

service area Products include an array of checking account programs for individuals and small businesses including money

market accounts certificates of deposit IRA accounts and sweep investment capabilities We seek to make our services

convenient to the community by offering 24-hour ATM access at some of our facilities access to other ATM networks

available at other local financial institutions and retail establishments telephone banking services to include account inquiry

and balance transfers and courier service to certain customers who meet minimum qualifications We also take advantage of

the use of technology by allowing our customers banking access via the Internet and various advanced systems for cash

management for our business customers The rapid decline in the price of technology is now allowing smaller banks the

ability to offer many of the sophisticated products previously only available to customers of large banks It is our strategy to

have mix of core deposits which favors non-interest bearing deposits in the range of 15 to 2S5a of total deposits with

time deposits comprising 5Oa or less of total core deposits This strategy to be successful requires high levels of

relationship banking supported by strong distribution and product strategies At December 31 2010 we had approximately

$309.5 million in deposits by foreign nationals banking in the United States which were assumed as part of the TBOM and

Republic transactions At December 31 2010 we had approximately $70 million in wholesale certificates of deposit which

were assumed as part of the TBOM acquisition which were repriced and we expect not to renew

As of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the distribution by type of our deposit accounts was as follows

Dollars in thousands __________________________________

2010
______________________

Average Avg
Balance Rate

Noninterest hearing accounts 222970
______________________

Interest hearing accounts

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of
deposit _______________________ ___________________

Total interest bearing deposits

Acraec total deposits

0.9500

t.94o

0.72

3.72o

.66

040

Dollars in thousands December 31
2009

Amount

2008 2007 2006

AmountAmount Amount

Commercial loans 3415 17% 1870 l9 636 20c 1101 20%

Real estate loans 8973 81c 3807 79c 1165 77c 1012 79%

Consumerloans 232 16 2% 48 3s 36 1%
Other 662 106 221

Total 13282 100% 5799 100% 2070 100% 2149 100%

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Charge- Charge- Charge- Charge- Charge
offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries offs Recoveries

7175 15

1617 80

918 14

13933 181

1805

1549

40

5788

27 244

31 915

263 18

502 15 62 119

___________ ______________
II II

502 278 73 148

December 3t

2009

Average

Balance

108716

Avg
ate

2008

Average Avg
Balance Rate

93451

10827 0.18o

180999 0.95

37270 0.6to

301428 t.70

627972 t.t6o

850942 0.86c

63150

0755

14842

183550

367297

476013

0.24c 47851

1.0000 92959

0.65o 978
284o 157601

l.77o 307996

t.37 401447
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As of December 31 2010 certificates of deposit of $100000 or more mature as follows

Weighted

Dollars in thousands Amount Average Rate

Up to months

to months

to 12 months

Over 12 months
____________ ______________

Maturity terms service fees and withdrawal penalties are established by us on periodic basis The determination of rates

and terms is predicated on finds acquisition and liquidity requirements rates paid by competitors growth goals and federal

regulations

Borrowings

The following tables reflect borrowing activity for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Repurchase

agreements

Fed Funds

purchased

FHLB advances

Other borrowings

Total

December 31 2010

Weighted YTD
Actual Avg Rate Avg

12886 0.16% 14277

Weighted

Actual Avg Rate

Avg

YTD Rate

Avg Paid

0.23%

0.91%

1.30

6.32%

Repurchase agreements

Fed Funds purchased

FHLB advances

Other borrowings

Total

19038

1023

37654

3899

61614

0.92%

2.74%

2.50

6.49%

Maximum balance at any given month end during the periods of analysis is reflected in the following tables

Dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreements

Fed Funds purchased

FHLB advances

Other borrowings

Competition

2010

Maximum Balance at

any month-end

22849 Dec-10

100 Aug 10

5000 Mar-10

5036 Jan-10

December 31

2009

Maximum Balance at

any month-end

22343 Dec-09

6032 Aug-09

40000 Mar-09

5500 Jan-09

2008

Maximum Balance

at any month-end

23438 Jan-08

6301 Aug-08

56013 Dec-08

5500 Jul-08

Commercial banking in Florida including our market is highly competitive due in large part to Floridas profile of

population growth and wealth Our market contains not only community banks but also significant numbers of the countrys

largest commercial and wealth management/trust banks

Interest rates both on loans and deposits and prices of fee-based services are significant competitive factors among financial

institutions generally Other important competitive factors include office location office hours the quality of customer

service community reputation continuity of personnel and services and in the case of larger commercial customers relative

75441

64934

87306

24586

252267

1.28%

1.53%

1.48%

2.08%

1.49

Dollars in thousands

Avg
Rate

Paid

December 31 2009

0.16% 22343 0.23% 13563

768

5.000 60% 5000 4.68% 5.000 60% 28.751

4750 2.75% 4968 4.40% 5091 6.59% 5181

22636 24246 32434 48263

December 31 2008

Avg

Weighted YTD Rate

Actual Avg Rate Avg Paid

18129

56013

5250

79392

0.29%

1.08

6.49%
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lending limits and the ability to offer sophisticated cash management and other commercial banking services Many of our

larger competitors have greater resources broader geographic markets more extensive branch networks and higher lending

limits than we do They also can offer more products and services and can better afford and make more effective use of media

advertising support services and electronic technology than we can

Our largest competitors in the market include Bank of America SunTrust Bank Wells Fargo JP Morgan Chase Co
BBT PNC Citigroup and BankUnited Inc and these institutions capture the majority of the deposits According to data

provided by the FDIC as of June 30 2010 the latest date for which data was publicly available our market share on pro

forma basis was less than in each county where we operate We believe that community banks can compete successfully

by providing personalized service and making timely local decisions and thus draw business away from larger institutions in

the market We also believe that further consolidation in the banking industry is likely to create additional opportunities for

community banks to capture deposits from affected customers who may become dissatisfied as their financial institutions

change ownership In addition we believe that the continued growth of our banking markets affords us an opportunity to

capture new deposits from new residents

Seasonalitv

We do not believe our base of business to be seasonal in nature

MarketinR and Distribution

In order to market our deposit products we use local print advertising provide sales incentives for our employees and offer

special events to generate customer traffic

Our Board of Directors and management team realize the importance of forging partnerships within the community as

method of expanding our customer base and serving the needs of our community In this regard we are an active participant

in various community activities and organizations Participation in such events and organizations allows management to

determine what additional products and services are needed in our community as well as assisting in our efforts to determine

credit needs in accordance with the Community Reinvestment Act

Regulatory Considerations

We must comply wit/i state and federal banking laws and regulations that contral virtually all aspects of our

operations These laws and regulations generally aim ta protect our depositors not necessarily our shareholders oi our

creditors Any changes in applicable laws or regulations may materially affect our business and prospects Proposed

legislative or regulatory changes may also affect our operations The Jbllowing description summarizes some of the laws and

regulations to which we are subject References to applicable statutes and regulations are briefsummaries do not purport to

be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010

On July 21 2010 President Obama signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection

Act of 2010 the Dodd Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act will have broad impact on the financial services industry

including significant regulatory and compliance changes including among other things enhanced resolution authority of

troubled and failing banks and their holding companies ii increased capital and liquidity requirements iii increased

regulatory examination fees iv changes to assessments to be paid to the FDIC for federal deposit insurance and

numerous other provisions designed to improve supervision and oversight of and strengthening safety and soundness for the

financial services sector Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act establishes new framework for systemic risk oversight within

the financial system to be distributed among new and existing federal regulatory agencies including the Financial Stability

Oversight Council the Federal Reserve the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the FDIC summary of certain

provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act is set forth below along with information set forth in applicable sections of this

Regulatory Considerations section

Increased Capital Standards and Enhanced Supervision The federal banking agencies are required to

establish minimum leverage and risk-based capital requirements for banks and bank holding companies

These new standards will be no lower than current regulatory capital and leverage standards applicable to

insured depository institutions and may in fact be higher when established by the agencies The Dodd-

Frank Act also increases regulatory oversight supervision and examination of banks bank holding

companies and their respective subsidiaries by the appropriate regulatory agency

The onsiuner Financial Protection Bureau Bureau The Dodd-Frank Act creates the Bureau within

the Federal Reserve The Bureau is tasked with establishing and implementing rules and regulations under

certain federal consumer protection laws with respect to the conduct of providers of certain consumer
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financial products and services The Bureau has rulemaking authority over many of the statutes governing

products and services offered to bank consumers In addition the Dodd-Frank Act permits states to adopt

consumer protection laws and regulations that are more stringent than those regulations promulgated by the

Bureau and state attorneys general are permitted to enforce consumer protection rules adopted by the

Bureau against state chartered institutions

Deposit Ins urance The Dodd-Frank Act makes permanent the $250000 deposit insurance limit for insured

deposits Amendments to the Federal Deposit Insurance Act also revise the assessment base against which

an insured depository institutions deposit insurance premiums paid to the Deposit Insurance Fund DIF
will be calculated Under the amendments the assessment base will no longer be the institutions deposit

base but rather its average consolidated total assets less its average tangible equity during the assessment

period Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act makes changes to the minimum designated reserve ratio of the

DIF increasing the minimum from 1.15 percent to 1.35 percent of the estimated amount of total insured

deposits and eliminating the requirement that the FDIC
pay dividends to depository institutions when the

reserve ratio exceeds certain thresholds In December 2010 the FDIC increased the reserve ratio to 2.0

percent The Dodd Frank Act also provides that effective one year after the date of enactment depository

institutions may pay interest on demand deposits

Transactions with Affiliates The Dodd-Frank Act enhances the requirements for certain transactions with

affiliates under Section 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act including an expansion of the definition

of covered transactions and increasing the amount of time for which collateral requirements regarding

covered transactions must be maintained

Transactions with Insiders Insider transaction limitations are expanded through the strengthening of loan

restrictions to insiders and the expansion of the types of transactions subject to the various limits including

derivative transactions repurchase agreements reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending or

borrowing transactions Restrictions are also placed on certain asset sales to and from an insider to an

institution including requirements that such sales be on market terms and in certain circumstances

approved by the institutions board of directors

Enhanced Lending Limits The Dodd-Frank Act strengthens the existing limits on depository institutions

credit exposure to one borrower Current banking law limits depository institutions ability to extend

credit to one person or group of related persons in an amount exceeding certain thresholds The Dodd-

Frank Act expands the scope of these restrictions to include credit exposure arising from derivative

transactions repurchase agreements and securities lending and borrowing transactions

Conpensation Practices The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the appropriate federal regulators must

establish standards prohibiting as an unsafe and unsound practice any compensation plan of bank holding

company or other covered financial institution that provides an insider or other employee with excessive

compensation or could lead to material financial loss to such firm In June 2010 prior to the Dudd-Frank

Act the bank regulatory agencies promulgated the Interagency Guidance on Sound Incentive

Compensation Policies which requires that financial institutions establish metrics for measuring the impact

of activities to achieve incentive compensation with the related risk to the financial institution of such

behavior Together the Dodd-Frank Act and the recent guidance on compensation may impact the current

compensation policies at 1v United Bank

Holding Company Capital Levels The Dodd-Frank Act requires bank regulators to establish minimum

capital levels for holding companies that are at least of the same nature as those applicable to financial

institutions All trust preferred securities or TRUPs issued by bank or thrift holding companies after May

19 2010 will be counted as Tier II Capital with an exception for certain small bank holding companies

Bank holding companies with at least $15 billion in assets as of December 31 2009 will have five years to

comply with this provision and starting on January 12013 these holding companies will phase in the

requirement by deducting one-third of TRUPs per year for the following three years from Tier capital

TRUPs issued prior to May 19 2010 by bank holding companies with less than $15 billion in assets as of

December 31 2009 are exempt froni these capital deductions entirely

We expect that many of the requirements called for in the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented over time and most

will be subject to implementing regulations over the course of several years Given the uncertainty associated with the

manner in which the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented by the various regulatory agencies and through

regulations the full extent of the impact such requirements will have on financial institutions operations is unclear The

changes resulting from the Dodd-Frank Act may impact the profitability of our business activitics requirc changes to certain
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of our business practices impose upon us more stringent capital liquidity and leverage ratio requirements or otherwise

adversely affect our business These changes may also require us to invest significant management attention and resources to

evaluate and make necessary changes in order to comply with new statutory and regulatory requirements

Ihe Company

We are registered with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve as financial

holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and are registered with the Federal Reserve as bank holding company

under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 As result we are subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the

Federal Reserve The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act the Bank Holding Company Act and other federal laws subject financial

holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities in which they may engage and to range of supervisory

requirements and activities including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of laws and regulations

Permitted Activities

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act modemized the U.S banking system by allowing bank holding companies that

qualify as financial holding companies to engage in broad range of financial and related activities ii allowing insurers

and other financial service companies to acquire banks iii removing restrictions that applied to bank holding company

ownership of securities firms and mutual flind advisory companies and iv establishing the overall regulatory scheme

applicable to bank holding companies that also engage in insurance and securities operations The general effect of the law

was to establish comprehensive framework to permit affiliations among commercial banks insurance companies securities

firms and other financial service providers Activities that are financial in nature are broadly defined to include not only

banking insurance and securities activities but also merchant banking and additional activities that the Federal Reserve in

consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury determines to be financial in nature incidental to such financial activities or

complementary activities that do not pose substantial risk to the safety and soundness of depository institutions or the

financial system generally

In contrast to financial holding companies bank holding companies are limited to managing or controlling banks

furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries and engaging in other activities that the Federal Reserve

determines by regulation or order to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be proper

incident thereto Except for the activities relating to financial holding companies permissible under the Gramm-Leach Bliley

Act these restrictions will apply to us In determining whether particular activity is permissible the Federal Reserve must

consider whether the performance of such an activity reasonably can be expected to produce benefits to the public that

outweigh possible adverse effects Possible benefits include greater convenience increased competition and gains in

efficiency Possible adverse effects include undue concentration of resources decreased or unfair competition conflicts of

interest and unsound banking practices Despite prior approval the Federal Reserve may order bank holding company or

its subsidiaries to terminate any activity or to terminate ownership or control of any subsidiary when the Federal Reserve has

reasonable cause to believe that serious risk to the financial safety soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that

bank holding company may result from such an activity

changes in Gontrol

Subject to certain exceptions the Bank Holding Company Act and the Change in Bank Control Act together with

the applicable regulations require Federal Reserve approval or depending on the circumstances no notice of disapproval

prior to any person or company acquiring control of bank or bank holding company conclusive presumption of control

exists if an individual or company acquires the power directly or indirectly to direct the management or policies of an

insured depository institution or to vote 25 or more of any class of voting securities of any insured depository institution

rebuttable presumption of control exists if person or company acquires 1000 or more but less than 25 of any class of

voting securities of an insured depository institution and either the institution has registered securities under Section 12 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or as we will refer to as the Exchange Act or no other person will own greater percentage

of that class of voting securities immediately after the acquisition Our common stock is registered under Section 12 of the

Exchange Act

The Federal Reserve Board maintains policy statement on minority equity investments in banks and bank holding

companies that permits investors to acquire up to 33 percent of the total equity of target bank or bank holding company

subject to certain conditions including but not limited to that the investing firm does not acquire 15 percent or more of any

class of voting securities and designate at least one director without triggering the various regulatory requirements

associated with control

As bank holding company we are required to obtain prior approval from the Federal Reserve before acquiring

all or substantially all of the assets of bank or bank holding company ii acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control

of more than 500 of the outstanding voting stock of any bank or bank holding company unless we own majority of such

2b



banks voting shares or iii merging or consolidating ith any other hank or bank holding company In determining

whether to approve proposed bank acquisition federal bank regulators will consider among other factors the effect of the

acquisition on competition the public benefits expected to be received from the acquisition the projected capital ratios and

levels on post-acquisition basis and the acquiring institutions record of addressing the credit needs of the communities it

serves including the needs of low and moderate income neighborhoods consistent with the safe and sound operation of the

bank under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977

Under Florida law person or entity proposing to directly or indirectly acquire control of Florida bank must also

obtain permission from the Florida Office of Financial Regulation Florida statutes define control as either indirectly or

directly owning controlling or having power to vote 25 or more of the voting securities of bank controlling the

election of majority of directors of bank owning controlling or having power to vote IOo or more of the voting

securities as well as directly or indirectly exercising controlling influence over management or policies of bank or as

determined by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation These requirements will affect us because 1st United Bank is

chartered under Florida law and changes in control of us are indirect changes in control of 1st United Bank

Tyinj4

Bank holding companies and their affiliates are prohibited from tying the provision of certain services such as

extending credit to other services or products offered by the holding company or its affiliates such as deposit products

Capital Dividends Source ofStrengih

The Federal Reserve imposes certain capital requirements on bank holding companies under the Bank Holding

Company Act including minimum leverage ratio and minimum ratio ofquali14ng capital to risk-weighted assets

These requirements are described below under Capital Regulations Subject to its capital requirements and certain other

restrictions we are able to borrow money to make capital contribution to 1st United Bank and such loans may be repaid

from dividends paid from 1st United Bank to us

The ability of 1st United Bank to pay dividends however will be subject to regulatory restrictions that are described

below under Dividends We are also able to raise capital for contributions to 1st United Bank by issuing securities without

having to receive regulatory approval subject to compliance with federal and state securities laws

In accordance with Federal Reserve policy which has been codified by the Dodd-Frank Act we are expected to act

as source of financial strength to 1st United Bank and to commit resources to support 1st United Bank in circumstances in

which we might not otherwise do so In furtherance of this policy the Federal Reserve may require financial holding

company to terminate any activity or relinquish control of nonbank subsidiary other than nonbank subsidiary of bank

upon the Federal Reserves determination that such activity or control constitutes serious risk to the financial soundness or

stability of any subsidiaiy depository institution of the bank holding company Further federal bank regulatory authorities

have additional discretion to require financial holding company to divest itself of any bank or nonbank subsidiary if the

agency determines that divestiture may aid the depository institutions financial condition

ft United Bank

1st United Bank is banking institution that is chartered by and headquartered in the State of Florida and it is

subject to supervision and regulation by the Florida Office of Financial Regulation The Florida Office of Financial

Regulation supervises and regulates all areas of 1st United Banks operations including without limitation the making of

loans the issuance of securities the conduct of 1st United Banks corporate affairs the satisfaction of capital adequacy

requirements the payment of dividends and the establishment or closing of banking centers United Bank is also

member bank of the Federal Reserve System which makes 1st United Banks operations subject to broad federal regulation

and oversight by the Federal Reserve In addition 1st United Banks deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC to the

maximum extent permitted by law and the FDIC has certain enforcement powers over 1st United Bank

As state chartered banking institution in the State of Florida 1st United Bank is empowered by statute subject to

the limitations contained in those statutes to take and pay interest on savings and time deposits to accept demand deposits

to make loans on residential and other real estate to make consumer and commercial loans to invest with certain limitations

in equity securities and in debt obligations of banks and corporations and to provide various other banking sen ices for the

benefit of 1st United Banks customers Various consumer laws and regulations also affect the operations of 1st United Bank

including state usury laws laws relating to fiduciaries consumer credit and equal credit opportunity laws and fair credit

reporting In addition the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 FDICIA prohibits insured

state chartered institutions from conducting activities as principal that are not permitted for national banks bank however

may engage in an otherwise prohibited activity if it meets its minimum capital requirements and the FDIC determines that the

activity does not present significant risk to the Deposit Insurance Fund
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Reserves

The Federal Reserve requires all depository institutions to maintain reserves against some transaction accounts

primarily NOW and Super NOW checking accounts The balances maintained to meet the reserve requirements imposed by

the Federal Reserve may be used to satisfy liquidity requirements An institution may borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank

discount window as secondary source of funds provided that the institution meets the Federal Reserve Banks credit

standards

Dividends

1St United Bank is subject to legal limitations on the frequency and amount of dividends that can be paid to us The

Federal Reserve may restrict the ability of 1st United Bank to pay dividends if such payments would constitute an unsafe or

unsound banking practice These regulations and restrictions may limit our ability to obtain funds from 1st United Bank for

our cash needs including funds for acquisitions and the payment of dividends interest and operating expenses

In addition Florida law also places restrictions on the declaration of dividends from state chartered banks to their

holding companies Pursuant to the Florida Financial Institutions Code the board of directors of state chartered banks after

charging off bad debts depreciation and other worthless assets if any and making provisions for reasonably anticipated

future losses on loans and other assets may quarterly semi-annually or annually declare dividend of up to the aggregate net

profits of that period combined with the banks retained net profits for the preceding two years and with the approval of the

Florida Office of Financial Regulation and Federal Reserve declare dividend from retained net profits which accrued prior

to the preceding two years Before declaring such dividends 20% of the net profits for the preceding period as is covered by

the dividend must be transferred to the surplus fund of the bank until this fund becomes equal to the amount of the banks

common stock then issued and outstanding state chartered bank may not declare any dividend if its net income loss

from the current year combined with the retained net income loss for the preceding two years aggregates loss or ii the

payment of such dividend would cause the capital account of the bank to fall below the minimum amount required by law

regulation order or any written agreement with the Florida Office of Financial Regulation or federal regulatory agency

Insurance ofAccounts and Oilier Assessments

We pay our deposit insurance assessments to the Deposit Insurance Fund which is determined through risk-based

assessment system Our deposit accounts are currently insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund generally up to maximumof

$250000 per separately insured depositor

In addition in November 2008 the FDIC issued final rule under its Transaction Account Guarantee Program

TAGP pursuant to which the FDIC fully guarantees all non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts including all

personal and business checking deposit accounts that do not earn interest lawyer trust accounts where interest does not

accrue to the account owner IOLTA and NOW accounts with interest rates no higher than 0.50% until June 30 2010 and

0.25% beginning July 2010 Thus under TAGP all money in these accounts are fully insured by the FDIC regardless of

dollar amount This second increase to coverage was originally in effect through December 31 2009 but was extended until

June 30 2010 and then again until December 31 2010 unless we elected to opt out of participating which we did not do

The Dodd-Frank Act extended full deposit coverage for non-interest bearing transaction deposit accounts for two years

beginning on December 31 2010 and all financial institutions are required to participate in this extended program

Under the current assessment system the FDIC assigns an institution to one of four risk categories with the first

category having two subcategories based on the institutions most recent supervisory and capital evaluations designed to

measure risk Total base assessment rates currently range from O.O7o of deposits for an institution in the highest sub-

category of the highest category to 0.775% of deposits for an institution in the lowest category On May 22 2009 the FDIC

imposed special assessment of five basis points on each FDIC-insured depository institutions assets minus its Tier

capital as of June 30 2009 This special assessment was collected on September 30 2009 Finally on November 12 2009
the FDIC adopted new rule requiring insured institutions to prepay on December 30 2009 estimated quarterly risk-based

assessments for the fourth quarter of 200Q and for all of20l 2011 and 2012 We prepaid an assessment of $3.3 million

which incorporated uniform 3.00 basis point increase effective January 12011 and assumed 5% annual deposit growth

In addition all FDIC insured institutions are required to pay assessments to the FDIC at an annual rate of

approximately one basis point of insured deposits to fund interest payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation an

agency of the federal government established to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund

These assessments will continue until the Financing Corporation bonds mature in 2017 through 2019

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act or FDIA the FDIC may terminate deposit insurance upon finding that

the institution has engaged in unsafe and unsound practices is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or

has violated any applicable law regulation rule order or condition imposed by the FDIC
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Transactions With Affiliates

Pursuant to Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation the authority of 1st United Bank to

engage in transactions with related parties or affiliates or to make loans to insiders is limited Loan transactions with an

affiliat generally must be collateralized and certain transactions between 1st United Bank and its affiliates including the

sale of assets the payment of money or the provision of services must be on terms and conditions that are substantially the

same or at least as favorable to 1st United Bank as those prevailing for comparable nonaffiliated transactions In addition

1st United Bank generally may not purchase securities issued or underwritten by affiliates

Loans to executive officers directors or to any person
who directly or indirectly or acting through or in concert with

one or more persons owns controls or has the power to vote more than 10% of any class of voting securities of bank

which we refer to as 10% Shareholders or to any political or campaign committee the finds or services of which will benefit

those executive officers directors or 10% Shareholders or which is controlled by those executive officers directors or 10%

Shareholders are subject to Sections 22g and 22h of the Federal Reserve Act and their corresponding regulations

Regulation and Section 13k of the Exchange Act relating to the prohibition on personal loans to executives which

exempts financial institutions in compliance with the insider lending restrictions of Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act
Among other things these loans must be made on terms substantially the same as those prevailing on transactions made to

unaffiliated individuals and certain extensions of credit to those persons must first be approved in advance by disinterested

majority of the entire board of directors Section 22h of the Federal Reserve Act prohibits loans to any of those individuals

where the aggregate amount exceeds an amount equal to 15% of an institutions unimpaired capital and surplus plus an

additional 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus in the case of loans that are fully secured by readily marketable collateral

or when the aggregate amount on all of the extensions of credit outstanding to all of these persons would exceed 1st United

Banks unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus Section 22g identifies limited circumstances in which 1st United Bank

is permitted to extend credit to executive officers

Community Reinvestment Act

The Community Reinvestment Act and its corresponding regulations are intended to encourage banks to help meet

the credit needs of their service area including low and moderate income neighborhoods consistent with the safe and sound

operations of the banks These regulations provide for regulatory assessment of banks record in meeting the credit needs of

its service area Federal banking agencies are required to make public rating of banks performance under the Community

Reinvertment Act The Federal Reserve considers banks Community Reinvestment Act rating when the bank submits an

application to establish banking centers merge or acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another bank In the case of

financial holding company the Community Reinvestment Act performance record of all banks involved in the merger or

acquisition are reviewed in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or control of shares or assets of

bank or to merge with any other financial holding company An unsatisfactory record can substantially delay or block the

transaction United Bank received satisfactory rating on its most recent Community Reinvestment Act assessment

Capital ReRulations

The Federal Reserve has adopted risk-based capital adequacy guidelines for financial holding companies and their

subsidiary state-chartered banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System The risk-based capital guidelines are

designed to make regulatory capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and financial

holding companies to account for off-balance sheet exposure to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets and to

achieve greater consistency in evaluating the capital adequacy of major banks throughout the world Under these guidelines

assets and off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories each with designated weights The resulting capital

ratios represent capital as percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off balance sheet items

The current guidelines require all financial holding companies and federally regulated banks to maintain minimum

risk based total capital ratio equal to 8% of which at least 4% must be Tier Capital Tier Capital which includes common
shareholders equity noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock

and trust preferred securities less certain goodwill items and other intangible assets is required to equal at least 4o of risk-

weighted assets The remainder Tier II Capital may consist of an allowance for loan losses of up to 1.25 of risk-

weighted assets ii excess of qualifing perpetual preferred stock iii hybrid capital instruments iv perpetual debt

mandatory convertible securities and vi subordinated debt and intermediate-term preferred stock up to 50% of Tier

Capital Total capital is the sum of Tier and Tier II Capital less reciprocal holdings of other banking organizations capital

instruments investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and any other deductions as determined by the appropriate regulator

determined on case by case basis or as matter of policy aftcr formal rule making

In computing total risk weighted assets bank and financial holding company assets are given risk-weights of

20 50 and 100 In addition certain off balance sheet items are given similar credit conversion factors to convett them
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to asset equivalent amounts to which an appropriate risk-weight will apply Most loans will be assigned to the 100% risk

category except for performing first mortgage loans fully secured by to 4-family and certain multi-family residential

property which carry 50 risk rating Most investment securities including primarily general obligation claims on states

or other political subdivisions of the United States will be assigned to the 20c category except for municipal or state

revenue bonds which have SOo risk-weight and direct obligations of the U.S Treasury or obligations backed by the fill

faith and credit of the U.S Government which have 000 risk-weight In covering off-balance sheet items direct credit

substitutes including general guarantees and standby letters of credit backing financial obligations are given 10000

conversion factor Transaction-related contingencies such as bid bonds standby letters of credit hacking non-financial

obligations and undrawn commitments including commercial credit lines with an initial maturity of more than one year

have 5000 conversion factor Short-term commercial letters of credit are converted at 20% and certain short-term

unconditionally cancelable commitments have 0% factor

The federal bank regulatory authorities have also adopted regulations that supplement the risk-based guidelines

These regulations generally require banks and financial holding conipanies to maintain minimum level of Tier Capital to

total assets less goodwill of 400 the leverage ratio The Federal Resers permits bank to maintain minimum 30o

leverage ratio if the bank achieses rating under the CAMELS rating system in its most recent examination as long as the

bank is not experiencing or anticipating significant growth The CAMELS rating is non-public system used by bank

regulators to rate the strength and weaknesses of financial institutions The CAMELS rating is comprised of six categories

capital adequacy asset quality management earnings liquidity and sensitivity to market risk

Banking organizations experiencing or anticipating significant growth as well as those organizations which do not

satisfy the criteria described above will be required to maintain minimum leverage ratio ranging generally from to 50
The bank regulators also continue to consider tangible Tier leverage ratio in evaluating proposals for expansion or new

activities

The tangible Tier leverage ratio is the ratio of banking organizations Tier Capital less deductions for

intangibles otherwise includable in Tier Capital to total tangible assets

Federal law and regulations establish capital-based regulatory scheme designed to promote early intervention for

troubled banks and require the FDIC to choose the least expensive resolution of bank failures The capital based regulatory

framework contains five categories of compliance with regulatory capital requirements including ssell capitalized

adequately capitalized undercapitalized significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized To qualify as

well capitalized institution bank must have leverage ratio of no less than 50 Tier Capital ratio of no less than 6%
and total risk based capital ratio of no less than l0 and the bank must not be under any order or directive from the

appropriate regulatory agency to meet and maintain specific capital level Generally financial institution must be well

capitalized before the Federal Reserve will approve an application by financial holding company to acquire or merge ssith

bank or bank holding conipany

Under the regulations the applicable agency can treat an institution as if it were in the next lower category if the

agency determines after notice and an opportunity for hearing that the institution is in an unsafe or unsound cundition or is

engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice The degree of regulatory scrutiny of financial institution will increase and the

permissible activities of the institution will decrease as it moves downward through the capital categories Institutions that

fall into one of the three undercapitalized categories may be required to submit capital restoration plan ii raise

additional capital iii restrict their growth deposit interest rates and other activities iv improve their management

eliminate management fees or vi divest themselves of all or part of their operations Financial holding companies

controlling financial institutions can be called upon to boost the institutions capital and to partially guarantee the institutions

performance under their capital restoration plans

It should be noted that the minimum ratios referred to above are merely guidelines and the bank regulators possess

the discretionary authority to require higher capital ratios

As of December 31 2uIu we exceeded the requirements contained in the applicable regulations policies and

directives pertaining to capital adequacy to be classified as well capitalized and are unaware of any material violation or

alleged violation of these regulations policies or directives Rapid growth poor loan portfolio performance or poor earnings

performance or combination of these factors could change our capital position in relatively short period of time making

additional capital infusions necessary

Prompt Correctiie Action

Immediately upon becoming undercapitalized depositoiy institution becomes subject to the provisions of Section

38 of the FDIA which restrict payment of capital distributions and management fees require that the appropriate

federal banking agency monitor the condition of the institution and its efforts to restore its capital require submission of
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capital restoration plan restrict the growth of the institutions assets and require prior approval of certain expansion

proposals The appropriate federal banking agency for an undercapitalized institution also may take any number of

discretionary supervisoiy actions if the agency determines that any of these actions is necessary to resolve the problems of

the institution at the least possible long-tenn cost to the deposit insurance fund subject in certain cases to specified

procedures These discretionary supervisory actions include requiring the institution to raise additional capital

restricting transactions with affiliates requiring divestiture of the institution or the sale of the institution to willing

purchaser and any other supervisory action that the agency deems appropriate These and additional mandatory and

permissive supervisory actions may be taken with respect to significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized

institutions

Basel IlL

On December 17 2009 the Basel Committee proposed significant changes to bank capital and liquidity regulation

including revisions to the definitions of Tier Capital and Tier II Capital applicable to Basel Ill

The short-term and long-term impact of the new Basel III capital standards and the forthcoming new capital rules to

be proposed for non-Basel III U.S banks is uncertain As result of the recent deterioration in the global credit markets and

the potential impact of increased liquidity risk and interest rate risk it is unclear what the short-term impact of the

implementation of Basel Ill may be or what impact pending alternative standardized approach to Basel Ill option for non
Basel III U.S banks may have on the cost and availability of different types of credit and the potential compliance costs of

implementing the new capital standards

On September 12 2010 the oversight body of the Basel Committee announced package of reforms which will

increase existing capital requirements substantially O\ er the next four years These capital reforms were endorsed by the 020

at the summit held in Seoul South Korea in November 2010

Interstate Banking and Branching

The Bank Holding Company Act was amended by the tnterstate Banking Act he Interstate Banking Act provides

that adequately capitalized and managed financial and bank holding companies are permitted to acquire banks in any state

State laws prohibiting interstate banking or discriminating against out-of-state banks are preempted States are not

permitted to enact lasss opting out of this provision however states are allowed to adopt minimum age restriction requiring

that target banks located within the state be in existence for period of years up to maximumof five years before bank

may be subject to the Interstate Banking Act The Interstate Banking Act as amended by the Dodd-Frank Act establishes

deposit caps which prohibit acquisitions that result in the acquiring company controlling 30c or more of the deposits of

insured banks and thrift institutions held in the state in which the target maintains branch or lOo or more of the deposits

nationwide States have the authority to waive the 30c deposit cap State level deposit caps are not preempted as long as they

do not discriminate against out-of.state companies and the federal deposit caps apply only to initial entry acquisitions

Under the Dodd-Frank Act national banks and state banks are able to establish branches in any state if that state

would pennit the establishment of the branch by state bank chartered in that state Florida law permits state bank to

establish branch of the bank anywhere in the state Accordingly under the Dodd-Frank Act bank with its headquarters

outside the State of Florida may establish branches anywhere within Florida

Anti-money Laundering

The Uniting and Strengthening Anierica by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct

Terrorism Act of 2001 USA PATRIOT Act provides the federal government with additional powers to address terrorist

threats through enhanced domestic security measures expanded surveillance powers increased information sharing and

broadened anti-money laundering requirements By way of amendments to the Bank Secrecy Act BSA the USA
PATRIOT Act puts in place measures intended to encourage information sharing among bank regulatory and law

enforcement agencies In addition certain provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act inipose affirmative obligations on broad

range of financial institutions

Among other requirements the USA PATRIOT Act and the related Federal Reserve regulations require banks to

establish anti-money laundering programs that include at minimum

internal policies procedures and controls designed to implement and maintain the savings associations

compliance with all of the requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act the BSA and related laws and

regulations

systems and procedures for monitoring and reporting of suspicious transactions and activities
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designated compliance officer

employee training

an independent audit function to test the anti-money laundeung program

procedures to verify the identity of each customer upon the opening of accounts and

heightened due diligence policies procedures and controls applicable to certain foreign accounts and

relationships

Additionally the USA PATRIOT Act requires each financial institution to develop customer identification

program CIP as part of our anti-money laundering program The key components of the CIP are identification

verification government list comparison notice and record retention The
purpose of the CIP is to enable the financial

institution to determine the true identity and anticipated account activity of each customer To make this determination

among other things the financial institution must collect certain information from customers at the time they enter into the

customer relationship with the financial institution This information must be verified ss ithin reasonable time through

documentary and non-documentary methods Furthermore all customers must be screened against any CIP-related

government lists of known or suspected terrorists We and our affiliates have adopted policies procedures and controls to

comply with the BSA and the USA PATRIOT Act

Regulatory Enforcement Authority

Federal and state banking laws grant substantial enforcement powers to federal and state banking regulators This

enforcement authority includes among other things the ability to assess civil money penalties to issue cease and desist or

removal orders and to initiate injunctive actions against banking organizations and institution-affiliated parties In general

these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices Other

actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action including misleading or untimely reports filed with

regulatory authorities

Federal Home Loan Bank System

1st United Bank is member of the FHLB of Atlanta which is one of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks Each

FHLB serves as reserve or central bank for its members within its assigned region It is funded primarily from funds

deposited by member institutions and proceeds from the sale of consolidated obligations of the FHLB system It makes loans

to members i.e advances in accordance with policies and procedures established by the board of trustees of the FHLB

As member of the FHLB of Atlanta 1st United Bank is required to ossn capital stock in the FHLB in an amount at

least equal to 0.18% or 18 basis points of the 1st United Banks total assets at the end of each calendar year plus 4.5 of its

outstanding advances borrowings from the FHLB of Atlanta under the activity based stock ownership requirement On
Decemher 31 2010 1st llnited Rank was in cnmpliance with this requirement

Privacy

Under the Gramm-Leach-BIiIey Act federal banking regulators adopted rules limiting the ability of banks and other

financial institutions to disclose nonpublic inforniation about consumers to nonaffiliated third parties The rules require

disclosure of privacy policies to consumers and in some circumstances allow consumers to prevent disclosure of certain

personal information to nonaffiliated third parties

Consumer Laws and Regulations

10 United Bank is also subject to other federal and state consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect

consumers in transactions with banks While the list set forth below is not exhaustive these laws and regulations include the

Truth in Lending Act the Iruth in Savings Act the Electronic Funds Iransfer Act the Expedited Funds Availability Act the

Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act the Fair Credit Reporting Act the Equal Credit Opportunity Act the Fair Housing

Act the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act the Fair and Accurate Transactions Act the Mortgage Disclosure Improvement Act

and the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act among others These la and regulations mandate certain disclosure

requirements and regulate the manner in which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits or

making loans to such customers 10 United Bank must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection

laws and regulations as part of its ongoing customer relations
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Future Legislative Developments

Various legislative acts are from time to time introduced in Congress and the Florida legislature This legislation

may change banking statutes and the environment in which our banking subsidiary and we operate in substantial and

unpredictable ways We cannot determine the ultimate effect that potential legislation if enacted or implementing

regulations with respect thereto would have upon our financial condition or results of operations or that of our banking

subsidiary

Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies

The commercial banking business in which 1st United Bank engages is affected not only by general economic

conditions but also by the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Changes in the discount rate on member bank

borrowing availability of borrowing at the discount window open market operations the imposition of changes in reserve

requirements against member banks deposits and assets of foreign banking centers and the imposition of and changes in

reserve requirements against certain borrowings by banks and their affiliates are some of the instruments of monetary policy

available to the Federal Reserve These monetary policies are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and

distributions of bank loans investments and deposits and this use may affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on

deposits The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have had significant effect on the operating results of commercial

banks and are expected to continue to do so in the ftiture The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve are influenced by

various factors including inflation unemployment and short-term and long term changes in the international trade balance

and in the fiscal policies of the U.S Government Future monetary policies and the effect of such policies on the future

business and earnings of 1st United Bank cannot be predicted

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes at the federal level and subject to state taxation in Florida We file consolidated

federal income tax return with fiscal year ending on December 31

Employees

As of December 31 2010 we had total of approximately 301 employees includes 89 employees added as part of

the TBOM acquisition including approximately 292 full-time employees The employees are not represented by collective

bargaining unit We consider relations with employees to be good

Website Access to Companys Reports

Our Internet website is www stunitedbankfi.com Our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-

current reports on Form 8-K including any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to section 13a or

15d and reports filed pursuant to Section 16 13d and 13g of the Exchange Act are available free of charge through our

website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report

Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock contains high degree of risk In addition to the other information contained in or

incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K including the matters addressed under the caption Cautionaiy Statement

Regarding Forward-Looking Information you should carefully consider the risks described below before deciding whether

to invest in our common stock If any of the events highlighted in the following risks actually occurs or additional risks and

uncertainties not piesently known to us or that we do not currently believe to be important to you materialize our business

results of operations or financial condition would likely suffer In such an event the trading price of our common stock could

decline and you could lose all or part of your investment In assessing these risks you should also refer to the other

information contained in our filings with the SEC including our financial statements and related notes

Risks Related to our Business

Failure to comply with the terms of the loss sharing agreements with the FDIC may result in significant losses

On December 17 2010 United Bank entered into an Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits Bank
of Miami Purchase and Assumption Agreement with the FDIC pursuant to which Pt United Bank assumed all deposits and

certain identified assets and liabilities of The Bank of Miami national association headquartered in Miami Florida

United Bank also entered into loss sharing agreements with the FDIC Under the loss sharing agreements United Bank

will share in the losses on assets covered under the Bank of Miami Purchase and Assumption Agreement The FDIC will
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reimburse tUnited Bank for 800o of losses with respect to the entire acquired $276 million loan portfolio and the $12.8

million other real estate owned

On December 11 2009 1c United Bank entered into an Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits

Republic Purchase and Assumption Agreement with the FDIC pursuant to which United Bank assumed all deposits

and certain identified assets and liabilities of Republic Federal Bank national association headquartered in Miami Florida

Pt United Bank also entered into loss sharing agreements with the FDIC Under the loss sharing agreements Pt United Bank

will share in the losses on assets covered under the Purchase and Assumption Agreement The FDIC will reimburse

United Bank for 80c of losses of up to $36 million with respect to the entire $238 million acquired loan portfolio The FDIC

will reimburse United Bank for 95% of losses in excess of $36 million with respect to the $238 million acquired loan

portfolio

The Republic Purchase and Assumption Agreement and the Bank of Miami Purchase and Assumption Agreement

and their respective loss sharing agreements have specific detailed and cumbersome compliance servicing notification and

reporting requirements including certain restrictions on our change of control The loss sharing agreements prohibit the

assignment by 1st United Bank of its rights under the loss sharing agreements and the sale or transfer of any subsidiary of 1st

United Bank holding title to assets covered under the loss sharing agreements without the prior written consent of the FDIC

An assignment would include the merger or consolidation of 1st United Bank with or into another bank if we will own

less than 66.66% of the equity of the resulting bank ii our merger or consolidation with or into another company if our

shareholders will own less than 66.66c of the equity of the resulting company iii the sale of all or substantially all of the

assets of 1st United Bank to another company or person or iv sale of shares by any one or more shareholders of the

Company or 1st United Bank that would effect change in control of 1st United Bank 1st United Banks rights under the

loss sharing agreements will terminate if any assignment of the loss sharing agreements occurs without the prior written

consent of the FDIC

Our failure to comply with the terms of the agreements or to properly service the loans and OREO under the

requirements of the loss sharing agreements may cause individual loans or large pools of loans to lose eligibility for loss

shaie paymeuts fruui the FDIC This cuuld rcsult in iiiatcrial lusscs that arc cuircntly nut anticipated

We may have difficulties integrating The Bank of Miamis operations into our own or may fail to realize the

anticipated benefits of the acquisition

Our acquisition of The Bank of Miami involves the integration of two companies that have previously operated

independently of each other Successful integration of The Bank of Miamis operations will depend primarily on our ability

to consolidate The Bank of Miamis operations systems and procedures into those of ours to eliminate redundancies and

costs We may not be able to integrate the operations without encountering difficulties including without limitation

the loss of key employees and customers

possible inconsistencies in standards control procedures and policies and

unexpected problems with costs operations personnel technology or credit

In addition any enhanced earnings or cost savings that we expect to result from the acquisition including by

reducing costs improving efficiencies and cross-marketing may not be fully realized or may take longer to be realized than

expected

The loss of key personnel may adversely affect us

Our success is and expected to remain highly dependent on our senior management team including Messrs

Orlando Schupp Marino and Jacobson As community bank it is our managements extensive knowledge of and

relationships in the community that generate business for us Successful execution of our growth strategy will continue to

place siguificant deniaiids uu uur maiiagcmcnt and the luss uf any such serviecs may adversely affect uui growth and

profitability

An inadequate allowance for loan losses would reduce our earnings

Our success depends to significant extent upon the quality of our assets particularly loans In originating loans

there is substantial likelihood that credit losses will he experienced The risk of loss will ary with among other things

general econoniic conditions the type of loan being made the creditworthiness of the borrower over the term of the loan and

in the case of collateralized loan the quality of the collateral for the loan Management maintains an allowance for loan

losses based on among other things experience an evaluation of economic conditions and regular reviews of delinquencies

and loan portfolio quality Based upon such factors management makes various assumptions and judcments about thc
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ultimate collectability of the loan portfolio and provides an allowance for probable loan losses based upon percentage of the

outstanding balances and for specific loans when their ultimate collectability is considered questionable

As of December 31 2010 1st United Banks allowance for loan losses was $13.1 million which represented

approximately l.52 of its total amount of loans 1st United Bank had $18.9 million in non accruing loans as of December

31 2010 The allowance may not prove sufficient to cover future loan losses Although management uses the best

information available to make determinations with respect to the allos ance for loan losses future adjustments may be

necessary if economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used or adverse developments arise with respect

to 1st United Banks non-performing or performing loans In addition regulatory agencies as an integral part of their

examination process periodically review the estimated losses on loans Such agencies may require us to recognize additional

losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination Accordingly the

allowance for loan losses may not be adequate to cover loan losses or significant increases to the allowance may be required

in the future if economic conditions should worsen Material additions to 1st United Banks allowance for loan losses would

adversely impact our net income and capital

If our non-performing assets increase our earniags will suffer

At December 31 2010 our non-performing assets which consist of non-accruing loans loans 90 days delinquent

and foreclosed real estate assets totaled $28.0 million or 2.2c of total assets which is an increase of$l 1.7 or 72% over

non-performing assets at December 31 2009 At December31 2008 our non-perfonning assets were $15.6 million or

1.60 of total assets Our non performing assets adversely affect our net income in various ways We do not record interest

income on non accrual loans or real estate owned We must reserve for probable losses which is established through

current period charge to the provision for loan losses as well as from time to time as appropriate write down the value of

properties in our other real estate owned portfolio to reflect changing market values Additionally there are legal fees

associated the resolution of problem assets as well as carrying costs such as taxes insurance and maintenance related to our

other real estate owned Further the resolution of non-performing assets requires the active involvement of management

which can distract them from more profitable activity Finally if our estimate for the recorded allossance for loan losses

proves to be incorrect and our allowance is inadequate we will have to increase the allowance accordingly

Our loan portfolio includes loans with higher risk of loss

We originate commercial real estate loans constiuction and devclopment loans consumer loans and residential

mortgage loans primarily within our market area Commercial rcal estate commcrcial and construction and development

loans tend to involve larger loan balances to single borrower or groups of related borrowers and are most susceptible to

risk of loss during downturn in the business cycle These loans also have historically had greater credit risk than other loans

for the following reasons

Commercial Real Es/ate Loans Repayment is dcpendent on income being generated in amounts sufficient

to cover operating expenses and debt ser\ ice These loans also involve greater rislc because they are

gancrally nut fully amortizing uver loan pcriud but rathcr hac balloun payment due at maturity

borrowers ability to make balloon payment typically will dcpend on being able to either refinance thc

loan or timely sell the underlying property As of December 31 2010 commercial real estate loans

including multi-family loans comprised approximately 3o of our total loan portfolio

Commercial Loans Repayment is generally dependent upon the successful operation of the borrowers

business In addition the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time be difficult to appraise be

illiquid or fluctuate in value based on the success of the business As of Dcccmber 31 2010 commercial

loans comprised approximately 15% of our total loan portfolio

Construction and Development Loans The risk of loss is largely dependent on our initial estimate of

whether the propertys value at completion equals or exceeds the cost of property construction and the

availability of take out financing During the consuuction phase number of factors can result in delays or

cost overruns if our estimate is inaccurate or if actual construction costs exceed estimates the alue of thc

property securing our loan may be insufficient to ensurc full rcpaynient when completed through

permanent loan sale of the property or by seizure of collateral As of December 312010 construction and

development loans comprised approximately 4o of our total loan portfolio

Consumer Loans Consumer loans such as personal lincs of credit are collaterali7ed if at all with assets

that may not provide an adequate source of payment of the loan due to depreciation damage or loss As of

December 31 2010 consumer loans comprised approximately 2% of our total loan portfolio
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We may face risks with respect to future expansion

As strategy we have sought to increase the size of our operations by aggressively pursuing business development

opportunities We have made acquisitions of financial institutions and may continue to seek whole bank or branch

acquisitions in the future Acquisitions and mergers involve number of risks including

the time and costs associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisitions and merger partners

the ability to finance an acquisition and possible ownership and economic dilution to existing shareholders

diversion of managements attention to the negotiation of transaction and the integration of the

operations and personnel of the acquired institution

the incurrence and possible impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and possible adverse

short-teni-i effects on results of operations and

the risk of loss of key employees and customers

We may incur substantial costs to expand and such expansion may not result in the levels of profits we seek

Integration efforts for any future mergers and acquisitions may not be successftd and following any future merger or

acquisition after giving it effect we may not achieve financial results comparable to or better than our historical experience

We may need additional capital resources in the future and these capital resources may not be available on acceptable

terms or at all

We may need to incur additional debt or equity financing in the future to make strategic acquisitions or investments

for future growth to fund losses or additional provisions for loan losses in the future or to maintain certain capital levels in

accordance with banking regulations Such financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all Our ability to

raise additional capital may also be restricted by the Loss Share Agreements we entered into with the FDIC if the capital raise

would effect change in control of United Bank

Further in the event that we offer additional shares of our common stock in the future our Articles of Incorporation

do not provide shareholders with preemptive rights and such shares may be offered to investors other than our existing

shareholders for prices at or below the then current market price of our common stock all at the discretion of the Board If we

do sell additional shares of common stock to raise capital the sale could reduce market price per share of common stock and

dilute your ownership interest and such dilution could be substantial

We may incur losses if we are unable to successfully manage interest rate risk

Our profitability depends to large extent on 1st United Banks net interest income which is the difference between

income on interest-earning assets such as loans and investment securities and expense on interest-bearing liabilities such as

deposits and borrowings We are unable to predict changes in market interest rates which are affected by many tactors

beyond our control including inflation recession unemployment money supply domestic and international events and

changes in the United States and other financial markets Our net interest income may be reduced if more interest-earning

assets than interest bearing liabilities reprice or mature during time when interest rates are declining or iimore interest

bearing liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice or mature during time when interest rates are rising

Changes in the difference between short- and long-term interest rates may also harm our business For example

short-term deposits may be used to fund longer-term loans When differences between short-term and long-term interest rates

shrink or disappear as is likely in the cuiTent zero interest rate policy environment the spread between rates paid on deposits

and received on loans could narrow significantly decreasing our net interest income

If market interest rates rise rapidly interest rate adjustment caps may limit increases in the interest rates on

adjustable rate loans thereby reducing our net interest income

Since we engage in lending secured by real estate and may be forced to foreclose on the collateral property and own

the underlying real estate we may be subject to the increased costs associated with the ownership of real property

which could result in reduced net income

Since we originate loans secured by real estate we may have to foreclose on the collateral property to protect our

investment and may thereafter own and operate such property in ss hich case we are exposed to the risks inherent in the

ownership of real estate
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The amount that we as mortgagee may realize after default is dependent upon factors outside of our control

including but not limited to

general or local economic conditions

environmental cleanup liability

neighborhood values

interest rates

real estate tax rates

operating expenses of the mortgaged properties

supply of and demand for rental units or properties

ability to obtain and maintain adequate occupancy of the properties

zoning laws

governmental rules regulations and fiscal policies and

acts of God

Certain expenditures associated with the ownership of real estate principally real estate taxes and maintenance

costs may adversely affect the income from the real estate Therefore the cost of operating real property may exceed the

rental income eamed from such property and we may have to advance funds in order to protect our inestment or we may be

required to dispose of the real property at loss

Adverse conditions in Latin America could adversely affect our business

substantial number of our customers hae economic and cultural ties to Latin America and as result we are

likely to feel the effects of adverse economic and political conditions in Latin America As of December 2010

approximately 5309.5 million of our deposits are held by foreign nationals whose primary residence is Latin America U.S

and global economic policies political tensions and unfavorable global economic conditions may adversely impact the Latin

American economies If economic conditions in Latin America deteriorate we could experience an outflow of deposits by

those of our customers with connections to Latin America

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund operations and jeopardize our financial condition

Liquidity is essential to our business An inability to raise funds through deposits borrowings and other sources

could have substantial negative effect on our liquidity Our access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance our

activities on terms that are acceptable to us could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically or the financial services

industry or economy in general Factors that could negatively impact our access to liquidity sources include decrease in the

level of our business activity as result of an economic downturn in the markets in which our loans are concentrated adverse

regulatory action against us or our inability to attract and retain deposits Our ability to borrow could he impaired by factors

that are not specific to us or our region such disruption in the financial markets or negative iews and expectations about

the prospects for the financial services industry in light of recent turmoil faced by banking organizations and the unstable

credit markets

Due to conditions imposed upon us by the Federal Reserve to gain their approval for the Citrus Bank acquisition we

may enter into an agreement to acquire an existing bank branch or company only if the transaction is funded

entirely with our common stock or proceeds from the issuance of our common stock or until 1st United Bank has

reported four consecutive quarters of net income and as result we may not be able to take advantage of certain

acquisition opportunities in the future

Our ability to continue to expand and grow our business by increasing market share in our core markets through

external acquisitions may be hindered by conditions imposed upon us by the Federal Reserve As condition of receiving

regulatory approval of the Citrus Bank acquisition we committed not to enter into any agreement to acquire an existing bank

branch or company unless the transaction is funded entirely with our common stock or proceeds from the issuance of our

common stock or until 1st United Bank has reported four consecutive quarters of net inconic As result until this condition

is lifted we must fund futuic acquisitions entirely with our common stock or the proceeds raised through offerings of out

common stock
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Potential acquisitions may dilute shareholder value

We regularly evaluate opportunities to acquire other financial institutions As result merger and acquisition

discussions and in some cases negotiations may take place and future mergers or acquisitions involving cash debt or equity

securities may occur at any time Acquisitions typically involve the payment of premium over hook and market values and

therefore some dilution of our tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with any

future acquisitions

An impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill could negatively impact our earnings and capital

Goodwill is initially recorded at fair value and is not amortized but is re iewed for impairment at least annually or

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable Given the

current economic environment and conditions in the financial markets we could be required to evaluate the recoverability of

goodwill prior to our normal annual assessment if we experience disruption in our business unexpected significant declines

in our operating results or sustained market capitalization declines These types of events and the resulting analyses could

result in goodwill impairment charges in the future These non cash impairment charges could adversely affect our results of

operations in future periods and could also significantly impact certain financial ratios and limit our ability to obtain

financing or raise capital in the future goodwill impairment charge does not adversely affect the calculation of our risk

based and tangible capital ratios As of December 31 2010 we had 545.1 million in goodwill \\hich represented

approximately 3.6c of our total assets

The banking industry is very competitive

The banking industry is highly competitive and 1st United Bank competes directly with financial institutions that are

more established and have significantly greater resources and lending limits As result of those greater resources the larger

financial institutions may be able to provide broader range of products and services to their customers than us and may be

able to afford newer and more sophisticated technology than us Our long term success will be dependent on the ability of 1st

United Bank to conipete successfully with other financial institutions in its service areas

Confidential customer information transmitted through 1st United Banks online banking service is vulnerable to

security breaches and computer viruses which could expose 1st United Bank to litigation and adversely affect its

reputation and ability to generate deposits

1st United Bank provides its customers the ability to bank online The secure transmission of confidential

infonnation over the Internet is critical element of online banking 1st United Banks network could be vulnerable to

unauthorized access computer viruses phishing schemes and other security problems 1st United Bank may be required to

spend significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of security breaches and computer viruses or to

alleviate problems caused by security breaches or viruses To the extent that 1st United Banks activities or the activities of

its customers involve the storage and transmission of confidential information security breaches and viruses could expose 1st

United Bank to claims litigation and other possible liabilities Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses

could also cause existing customers to lose confidence in 1st United Banks systems and could adversely affect its reputation

and its ability to generate deposits

Risks Related to Regulation and Legislation

We may be required to pay significantly higher FDIC deposit insurance premiums and assessments in the future

Recent insured depository institution failures as well as deterioration in banking and economic conditions have

significantly increased the loss provisions of the FDIC resulting in decline in the designated reserve ratio of the Deposit

Insurance Fund to historical lows The FDIC recently increased the designated reserve ratio from 1.25 to 2.00 In addition

the deposit insurance limit on FDIC deposit insurance coverage generally has increased to S250000 which may result in

even larger losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund These developments have caused an increase to our assessments and the

FDIC may be required to make additional increases to the assessment rates and levy additional special assessments on us

Higher assessments increase our non-interest expense

Since 2009 our assessment rates which also include our assessment for participating in the FDICs Transaction

Account Guarantee Program increased from 6.25 to 14.50 basis points Additionally on May 22 2009 the FDIC announced

final rule imposing special 5.00 basis points emergency assessment as of June 30 2009 payable September 30 2009

based on assets minus Tier Capital at June 30 2009 but the amount of the assessment was capped at 10.00 basis points of
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domestic deposits Finally on November 12 2009 the FDIC adopted new rule requiring insured institutions to prepay on

December 30 2009 estimated quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 2010 2011 and

2012 We prepaid an assessment of $3.3 million which incorporated uniform 3.00 basis point increase effective January

7011

These higher FDIC assessment rates and special assessments have had and will continue to have an adverse impact

on our results of operations Our FDIC insurance related cost was $1659000 and $1140000 for the years ended December

31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectively compared to $327000 for the year ended December 31 2008 We are unable

to predict the impact in future periods including whether and when additional special assessments will occur

Higher insurance premiums and assessments increase our costs and may limit our ability to pursue certain business

opportunities We also may be required to pay even higher FDIC premiums than the recently increased level because

financial institution failures resulting from the depressed market conditions have depleted and may continue to deplete the

deposit insurance fund and reduce its ratio of reserves to insured deposits

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation

We are subject to extensive governmental regulation United Bancorp Inc as financial holding company is

regulated primarily by the Federal Reserve 1st United Bank is commercial bank chartered by the State of Florida and

regulated by the Federal Reserve the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Florida Office of Financial Regulation

As member of the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB 1st United Bank must also comply with applicable regulations of

the Federal Housing Finance Board and the Federal Home Loan Bank These federal and state bank regulators have the

ability should the situation require to place significant regulatory and operational restrictions upon us 1st United Banks

activities are also regulated under consumer protection laws applicable to our lending deposit and other activities In

addition the Dodd-Frank Act imposes significant additional regulation on our operations

Banking regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors deposit insurance funds and the banking system as

whole and not shareholders and creditors sufficient claim against us under these laws could have material adverse

effect on our results Please refer to the section entitled Regulatory Considerations in this Form 10-K

Florida financial institutions such as 1st United Bank face higher risk of noncompliance and enforcement action

with the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-money laundering statutes and regulations

Since September 112001 banking regulators have intensified their focus on anti-money laundering and Bank

Secrecy Act compliance requirements particularly the anti-money laundering provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act There is

also increased scrutiny of compliance with the rules enforced by the Office of Foreign Assets Control OFAC Since 2004

federal banking regulators and examiners have been extremely aggressive in their supervision and examination of financial

institutions located in the State of Florida with respect to the institutions Bank Secrecy Act/Anti Money Laundering

compliance Consequently numerous formal enforcement actions have been issued against financial institutions

In order to comply with regulations guidelines and examination procedures in this area 1st United Bank has been

required to adopt new policies and procedures and to install new systems If 1st United Banks policies procedures and

systems are deemed deficient or the policies procedures and systems of the financial institutions that it has already acquired

or may acquire in the future are deficient 1st United Bank would be subject to liability including fines and regulatory actions

such as restrictions on its ability to pay dividends and the necessity to obtain regulatory approvals to proceed with certain

aspects of its business plan including its acquisition plans In addition because United Bank operates in Florida we

expect that United Bank will face higher risk of noncompliance and enforcement action with the Bank Secrecy Act and

other anti-money laundering statutes and regulations

Risks Related to Market Events

Our loan portfolio is heavily concentrated in mortgage loans secured by commercial and residential properties in

South Florida

Our interest-earning assets are heavily concentrated in niortgage loans secured by properties located in South

Florida As of December 31 2010 significant portion of our loans secured by real estate are secured by commercial and

residential properties including properties under construction located in Palm Beach Miami-Dade and Broward Counties

Florida The concentration of our loans in this region subjects us to risk that downturn in the area economy such as the one

the area is currently experiencing could result in decrease in loan originations and increases in delinquencies and

foreclosures which would more greatly affect us than if our lending were more geographically diversified In addition since

large portion of our portfolio is secured by properties located in South Florida the occurrence of natural disaster such as

hurricane could result in decline in loan originations decline in the value or destruction of mortgaged properties and an
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increase in the risk of delinquencies foreclosures or loss on loans originated by us We may suffer further losses due to the

decline in the value of the properties underlying our mortgage loans which would have an adverse impact on our operations

Future economic growth in our Florida market area is likely to be slower compared to previous years

The State of Floridas population growth has historically exceeded national averages Consequently the state has

experienced substantial growth in population new business formation and public works spending Due to the moderation of

economic growth and migration into our market area and the downturn in the real estate market management believes that

growth in our market area will be restrained in the near-term We have experienced an overall slms down in the origination of

residential mortgage loans for sale recently due to the slowing in residential real estate sales activity in our markets

decrease in existing and new home sales decreases lending opportunities and negatively affects our income We do not

anticipate that the housing market will improve in the near-tenn and accordingly this could lead to additional valuation

adjustments on our loan portfolios

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us

Our ability to engage in routine funding and other transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and

commercial soundness of other financial institutions Financial institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing

counterparty lending or other relationships As result defaults by or even rumors or questions about one or more

financial institutions or the financial services industry generally have led to market-wide liquidity problems losses of

depositor creditor or counterparty confidence and could lead to losses or defaults by us or by other institutions We could

experience increases in deposits and assets as result of other banks difficulties or failures which would increase the capital

we need to support such growth

The fair value of our investments could decline

Our investment securities portfolio as of December 31 2010 has been designated as available-for-sale pursuant to

U.S GAAP relating to accounting for investments Such principles require that unrealized gains and losses in the estimated

value of the available-for-sale portfolio be marked to market and reflected as separate item in shareholders equity net of

tax as accumulated other comprehensive income

Shareholders equity will continue to reflect the unrealized gains and losses net of tax of these investments The

fair value of our investment portfolio may decline causing corresponding decline in shareholders equity

Management belies es that several factors will affect the fair alues of our investment portfolio These include but

are not limited to changes in interest rates or expectations of changes the degree of volatility in the securities markets

inflation rates or expectations of inflation and the slope of the interest rate yield curve the yield curve refers to the

differences between shorter-term and longer-term interest rates positively sloped yield curve means shorter term rates are

lower than longer-term rates These and other factors may impact specific categories of the portfolio differently and we

cannot predict the effect these factors may have on any specific category

Risks Related to an Investment in our Common Stock

Limited trading activity for shares of our common stock may contribute to price volatility

While our common stock is listed and traded on The NASDAQ Global Select Market there has been limited trading

activity in our common stock The average daily trading volume of our common stock over the past twelve months was

approximately 62924 shares Due to the limited trading activity of our common stock relativity small trades may have

significant impact on the price of our common stock

Securities research analysts may not initiate coverage or continue to cover our common stock and this may have

negative impact on its market price

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities analysts

publish about our business and our Company We do not have any control over these securities analysts and they may not

cover our common stock If securities research analysts do not cover our common stock the lack of research coverage may
adversely affect its market price If we are covered by securities analysts and our common stock is the subject of an

unfavorable report our stock price would likely decline If one or more of these analysts ceases to cover our Company or

fails to publish regular reports on us se could lose visibility in the financial markets which would cause our stock price or

trading volume to decline
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Our Articles of Incorporation Bylaws aud certain laws and regulations may prevent or delay transactions you might

favor including our sale or merger

We are registered with the Federal Reserve as financial holding company under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and

are registered with the Federal Reserve as bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act As result we

are subject to supervisory regulation and examination by the Federal Reserve The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act the Bank

Holding Company Act and other federal laws subject financial holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of

activities in which they may engage and to range of supervisory requirements and activities including regulatory

enforcement actions for violations of laws and regulations

Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation Bylaws certain laws and regulations and various other factors may

make it more difficult and expensive for companies or persons to acquire control of us without the consent of our Board of

Directors It is possible however that you would want takeover attempt to succeed because for example potential buyer

could offer premium over the then prevailing price of our common stock

For example our Articles of Incorporation permit our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without

shareholder action The ability to issue preferred stock could discourage company from attempting to obtain control of us

by means of tender offer merger proxy contest or otherwise We are also subject to certain provisions of the Florida

Business Corporation Act and our Articles of Incorporation that relate to business combinations with interested shareholders

Other provisions in our Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws that may discourage takeover attempts or make them more

difficult include

Supermajority voting requirements to remove director from office

Requirement that only directors may fill Board vacancy

Requirement that Special Meeting may be called only by majority vote of our shareholders

Provisions regarding the timing and content of shareholder proposals and nominations

Supermajority voting requirements to amend our Articles of Incorporation

Absence of cumulative voting and

Inability for shareholders to take action by written consent

We are subject to evolving and expensive corporate governance regulations and requirements Our failure to

adequately adhere to these requirements or the failure or circumvention of our controls and procedures could

seriously harm our business

As publicly reporting company we are subject to certain federal state and other rules and regulations including

applicable rcquiieinents uf the Sarbanes-Oxlcy Act of 2002 Conipliancc with these cvulving regulations is costly and

requires significant diversion of management time and attention particularly with regard to disclosure controls and

procedures and internal control over financial reporting Although we have reviewed our disclosure and internal controls and

procedures in order to determine whether they are effective our controls and procedures may not be able to prevent errors or

frauds in the future Faulty judgments simple errors or mistakes or the failure of our personnel to adhere to established

controls and procedures may make it difficult for us to ensure that the objectives of the control system are met failure of

our controls and procedures to detect other than inconsequential errors or fraud could seriously harm our business and results

of operations

We have not paid cash dividends to our shareholders and currently have no plans to pay future cash dividends

We plan to retain earnings to finance future growth and have no current plans to pay cash dividends to shareholders

Because we have not paid cash dividends holders of our securities will experience gain on their investment in our securities

only in the case of an appreciation of value of our securities You should neither expect to receive dividend income from

investing in our common stock nor an appreciation in value

Your shares of common stock will not be an insured deposit

The shares of our common stock are not bank deposit and ssill not be insured or guaranteed by the FDIC or any

other government agency Your investment will be subject to investment risk and you must be capable of affording the loss

of your entire investment
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

We currently operate 18 full service banking centers in Florida which includes the three banking centers acquired from

TBOM which will be closed effective April 30 2011 which includes our principal office in Boca Raton Florida In

addition we have an Executive/Operations Center which we lease in West Palm Beach Florida The following table sets

forth our banking centers date opened and whether owned or leased

Office Name Date Opened/Acquired Own/Lease

Boca Raton Principal Office December 2003 Leased

North Palm Beach Banking Center April 2000 Leased

Cooper City Banking Center April 2004 Leased

West Palm Beach Banking Centcr May 2004 Leased

Palm Beach Banking Center January 2006 Leased

Coral Springs Banking Center August 2007 Leased

Ft Lauderdale Banking Center February 1987 Leased

North Miami Banking Center June 1992 Leased

Coral Ridge Banking Center November 2004 Leased

Vero Beach Banking Center August 2008 Own
Sebastian Banking Center August 2008w Own
Barefoot Bay Banking Center August 2008 Own
Brickell Bay Banking Center December Il 2009 Leased

Doral Banking Center December II 2009 Leased

Coral Way Banking Center September 20l0 Leased

Alhambra Banking Center December 17 20I0 Leased

West Doral Banking Center December 17 20l0 Leased

Medley Banking Center December 17 20l0 Leased

Represents the original open date of the former Equitable Bank Banking Center Effective with the

Equitable merger on February 29 2008 these banking centers became United Bank offices

Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Citrus Acquisition consummated on August 15 2008

Represents banking centers acquired as part of the Republic Federal Bank acquisition consummated on

December 112009

Represents banking centers acquired as part of the TBOM acquisition consummated on December 17

2010 Each of the banking centers are being leased from the FDIC and will be closed effective April 30

2011 at no further cost to the Company

Item Legal Proceedings

We are periodically party to or othersvise involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business such as

claims to enforce liens claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans and other issues incident to our

business Management does not believe that there is any pending or threatened proceeding against us which if determined

adversely would have material adverse effect on our financial position liquidity or results of operations

Item IRemoved and Reservedi
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PART II

ItemS Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Our common stock has traded on The NASDAQ Global Market since September 18 2009 under the symbol FUBC Prior

to that date our common stock was quoted on the Pink Sheets The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales

prices reported on the NASDAQ Global Market or the range of high and low bid quotations on the Pink Sheets as applicable

Quotations as reported by the Pink Sheets reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up mark-down or commissions and

may not necessarily represent actual transactions

We have never declared cash dividend on our common stock and we currently have no plans to declare or pay any

dividends on the common stock in the foreseeable future We have restrictions on our ability to pay dividends Please see

Item Business-Regulatory Considerations-Dividends for discussion of these additional restrictions As of January 14

2011 our common stock was held by approximately 458 shareholders of record

High Low

2009

First Quarter 8.00 1.56

Second Quarter 5.00 3.65

Third Quarter 6.30 4.00

Fourth Quarter 7.90 5.46

2010

First Quarter 8.65 7.10

Second Quarter 9.32 7.35

Third Quarter 8.00 5.75

Fourth Quarter 7.10 5.63

Item Selected Financial Data

The follpwing table presents our summary consolidated financial data We derived our balance sheet and income statement

data for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 from our audited financial statements The summary

consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with and are qualified in their entirety by our financial statements

and the accompanying notes and the other information included elsewhere in this Annual Report

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The information set forth below contains certain financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with

generally accepted accounting policies in the United States GAAP These non-GAAP financial measures are tangible

assets tangible shareholders equity tangible book value per common share return on average tangible equity

tangible equity to tangible assets tangible common equity to tangible assets and return on average tangible common

equity Our management uses these non-GAAP measures in its analysis of our performance because it believes these

measures are material and will be used as measure of our performance by investors

Tangible assets is defined as total assets reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets Tangible shareholders equity

is defined as total shareholders equity reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets Tangible equity to tangible assets

is defined as tangibl.e shareholders equity divided by tangible assets Tangible common equity to tangible assets is defined

as total shareholders equity reduced by preferred equity and intangible assets divided by tangible assets These measures are

important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in the equity to assets ratio exclusive of the effect of

changes in intangible assets on equity and total assets

Tangible book value per common share is defined as tangible shareholders equity divided by total common shares

outstanding This measure is important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in changes from period to

period in book value per share exclusive of changes in intangible assets Goodwill an intangible asset that is recorded in

purchase business combination has the effect of increasing total book value while not increasing our tangible book value

These disclosures should not be considered in isolation or substitute for results determined in accordance with GAAP and

are not necessarily comparable to non-GAAP performance measures which may be presented by othcr bank holding

companies Management compensates for these limitations by providing detailed reconciliations between GAAP information

and the non-GAAP financial measures reconciliation table is set forth below following the selected consolidated financial

data
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Dollars in thousands except per
share data

As of and for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets 1267752 1013441 617821 375834 332244

Tangible assets 1219455 965388 570703 371124 327438

Total loans 860739 667140 486247 285423 254816

Allowance for loan losses 13050 13282 5799 2070 2149

Securities available for sale 102289 88843 35075 35546 32867

Goodwill and other intangible assets 48297 48053 47118 4710 4806

Deposits 1064687 802808 436269 272235 240210

Non-interest bearing deposits 281285 194185 100785 59539 83598

Shareholders equity 174050 170594 98870 54498 50912

Tangible shareholders equity 125753 122541 51752 49788 46106

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
Interest income 45763 28539 30250 24699 19948

Interest expense 7745 7246 9584 9474 6233

Net interest income 38018 21293 20666 15225 13715

Provision for loan losses 13520 13240 1910 145 181

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 24498 8053 18756 15080 13534

Gain on acquisition 11041 20535

Other non-interest income 4411 2427 2037 1911 1418

Non interest expense 36429 26168 22904 16989 14887

Income loss before income taxes 3521 4847 2111 65

Income tax expense benefit 1361 1827 752 3391
_________

Net income loss 2160 3020 1359 3393 65

Preferred stock dividends earned
__________ 774 368 _________ _________

Net income loss available to common shareholders 2160 2246 1727 3393 65

PER SHARE DATA
Basic earnings loss per share 0.09 0.17 0.25 0.72 0.01

Diluted earnings loss per share 0.09 0.17 0.25 0.71 0.01

Book value per common share 7.02 6.88 10.87 11.61 10.78

Tangiblebookvaluepercommonshare 5.07 4.94 5.44 10.61 9.76

SELECTED OPERATING RATIOS

Return on average assets 0.20c O.46o O.25o 0.97c 0.02%

Return on average shareholders equity l.24 2.44% l.63% 6.64c 0.13%

Net interest margin 4.06% 3.69% 4.23% 4.72% 5.20%

SELECTED ASSET QUALITY DATA CAPITAL AND
ASSET QUALITY RATIOS

Equity/assets 13.73% l6.83 16.00% 14.500o l5.32

Tangible equity/tangible assets 10.31% 12.69% 9.07% 13.42% 14.08%

Non-performing loans/total loans 2.19% 2.34% 2.18% 0.10% 0.44%

Non-performing assets/total assets 2.2 1% 1.80% 1.72% 0.07c 0.33%

Allowance for loan losses/total loans 1.52% I.99 1.19% 0.73% 0.84c

Allowance for loan losses/non-performing loans 69.1% 85.3% SSo 742o 193%

Net charge-offs recoveries/average loans 2.01% 1.14% 0.21% 0.08% O.O3o
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR THE

COMPANY

Leverage Ratio l.78 12.54% 8.15% l4.7lo 14.98%

Tier Risk-based Capital 21.62% 23.23% 9.46c 14.71% 16.36%

Total Risk-based Capital 23.71% 25.45% 11.69% 15.37% 17.I1

REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS FOR THE BANK
Leverage Ratio 9.9O0o 7.72% 6.91% 9.69c ll.O2o

Tier Risk-based Capital 18.18% l4.36 8.03c 10.93% 12.04%

Total Risk-based Capital 20.26% 16.59% 10.26% 11.59% 12.79o

Includes Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

Includes Republic transaction

Includes TBOM transaction

Based on year end total assets the Leveragc Ratio of the Company is 10.27% and for United Bank is S.ólo
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GAAP Reconciliation

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share amounts

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Managements discussion and analysis MDA provides supplemental information which sets forth the major factors that

have affected our financial condition and results of operations and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated

Financial Statements and related notes included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K The MDA is divided into subsections

entitled Business Overview Financial Overview Financial Condition Results of Operations Interest Rate Risk

Management Liquidity and Capital Resources Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Critical Accounting Policies

The following information should provide better understanding of the major factors and trends that affect our earnings

performance and financial condition and how our performance during 2010 compares with prior years Throughout this

section United Bancorp Inc and its subsidiaries collectively are referred to as Company we us or our Unless

the context indicates otherwise all dollar amounts in this MDA are in thousands

CAUTION CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K including this MDA section contains forward-looking statements within the meaning

of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements include among others statements

about our beliefs plans objectives goals expectations estimates and intentions that are subject to significant risks and

uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors many of which are beyond our control The words may
could should would believe anticipate estimate expect intend plan target goal and similar

expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements

All forward-looking statements by their nature are subject to risks and uncertainties Our actual fhture results may differ

materially from those set forth in our forward-looking statements Please see the Introductory Note and Item JA Risk Factors

of this Annual Report for discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the

forward-looking statements

However other factors besides those listed in Item JA Risk Factors or discussed in this Annual Report also could adversely

affect our results and you should not consider any such list of factors to be complete set of all potential risks or

uncertainties Any forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf speak only as of the date they are made We do

not undertake to update any forward-looking statement except as required by applicable law

Business Overview

We are financial holding company headquartered in Boca Raton Florida

We follow business plan that emphasizes the delivery of commercial banking services to businesses and individuals in our

geographic market who desire high level of personalized service The business plan includes business banking professional

market services real estate lending and private banking as well as full community banking products and services The
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business plan also provides for an emphasis on our Small Business Administration lending program as well as on small

business lending We focus on the building of balanced loan and deposit portfolio with emphasis on low cost liabilities and

variable rate loans

As is the case with banking institutions generally our operations are materially and significantly influenced by general

economic conditions and by related monetary and fiscal policies of financial institution regulatoiy agencies including the

Federal Reserve Bank and the FDIC Deposit flows and costs of finds are influenced by interest rates on competing

investments and general market rates of interest Lending activities are affected by the demand for financing of real estate and

other types of loans which in turn is affected by the interest rates at which such financing may be offered and other factors

affecting local demand and availability of funds We face strong competition in the attraction of deposits our primary source

of lendable funds and in the origination of loans

The Bank of Miami Acquisition

On December 17 2010 United Bank our banking subsidiary entered into purchase and assumption agreenient the

Bank of Miami Agreement with the FDIC as receiver for The Bank of Miami National Association TBOM Miami
Florida According to the terms of the Bank of Miami Agreement 1st United Bank assumed all deposits except certain

brokered deposits and borrowings and acquired certain assets of TBOM Assets acquired included $275.8 million in loans

and $12.8 million in other real estate owned based on TBOMs canying value and approximately $75 million in cash and

investments TBOM operated three banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida and had 101 employees

All of the loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the TBOM Loss Share Agreements between the FDIC

and 1st United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

the FDIC will cover 80 of covered loan and other real estate losses for loans and other real estate owned acquired The

TBOM Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans The

term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing and loss

recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss

recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the

FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $38 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available We recorded an estimated receivable

from the FDIC in the amount of $48.7 million as of December 17 2010 which represents the fair value of the FDICs

portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to us The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements are subject

to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisitinn gain tntaling $1 million resulted frnm the THOM acquisitinn and is included as cnmpnnent nfnnninteresf

income on the statement of income

United Bank did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of TBOM as part of the Bank of Miami Agreement

However United Bank has the option to purchase the furniture and equipment and any owned facilities from the FDIC

The term of this option expires March 18 2011 1n United has until March 18 2011 to request the FDIC to repudiate all

leases entered into by the fonrier TBOM or the leases will be assumed Two of the former TBOM banking facilities are

leased and one is owned Two of the locations are approximately one mile from existing United facilities and one location

has less than $3 million in deposits Management has determined that none of the TBOM branches would be retained and

anticipates the deposits to be serviced from existing United facilities

Republic FederalAcquisition

On December 11 2009 United Bank entered into purchase and assumption agreement the Republic Agreement with

the FDIC as receiver for Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic Miami Florida According to the terms

of the Republic Agreement 1St United Bank assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and

acquired certain assets of Republic Assets acquired included $238 million in loans based on Republics carrying value and

$64.2 million in cash and investments All of Republics repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non

performing loans were retained by the FDIC Republic operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida and

had approximately 100 employees We assumed approximately $349.6 million in deposits in this transaction
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All of the Republic loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the Republic Loss Share Agreements

between the FDIC and 1st United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the Republic Loss

Share Agreements the FDIC will cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to $36 million and 95c of

losses in excess of that amount The Republic Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of

accrued interest on covered loans The term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years

while the term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and

eight years with respect to loss recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the

relevant loan as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the

Republic Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $34.2 million from the FDIC above the Republic carrying value of the net assets acquired The

acquisition was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business

Combinations The purchased assets and assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values

and identifiable intangible assets were recorded at fair value We recorded an estimated receivable from the FDIC in the

amount of $43.3 million which represents the fair value of the FDICs portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred

and reimbursed to us The Republic Loss Sharing Agreements are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the

agreements

An acquisition gain of $20.5 million during 2009 resulted from the Republic acquisition and is included as component of

noninterest income on the statement of income

Ut United Bank did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of Republic as part of the Republic Agreement

However 1St United Bank had the option to purchase the furniture and equipment from the FDIC The term of this option

expired March 112010 We agreed to purchase furniture and equipment from the FDIC at fair value for $495000 Ut United

also had until March 11 2010 to request the FDIC to repudiate all leases entered into by the forner Republic or the leases

will be assumed Each of the four banking centers acquired is leased We assumed in one case on negotiated basis three

banking center leases and requested the FDIC to repudiate all other leases including the lease for the Aventura banking center

which was closed on April 23 2010 This location was within two miles of our North Miami Bcach banking canter and we

determined closing this banking center will have minimal impact on our customers

Cit ms Bank N.A Acquisition

On August 15 2008 Ut United Bank completed an acquisition of the branch network substantially all of the deposits and

selected loans of Citrus Bank N.A headquartered in Vero Beach Florida We refer to this as the Citrus Acquisition The

Citrus Acquisition resulted in the assumption and acquisition of approximately $87.5 million in deposits and $38 million in

net loans In addition we expanded our banking centers to Vero Beach Sebastian and Barefoot Bay Florida As condition

of receiving regulatory approval of the acquisition we committed not to enter into any additional acquisition agreements

unless it is funded with common stock or until we have been profitable for four consecutive quarters

Equitable Batik Acquisition

On February 29 2008 we completed the merger and acquisition of Equitable Financial Group Inc Equitable and its

wholly-owned subsidiaries Equitable Bank and Equitable Equity Lending which we refer to as the Equitable Merger We
issued 1928610 shares of our comnion stock and paid cash of approximately $27.6 million to the Equitable shareholders and

option holders The Equitable Merger increased our banking centers from to 11 locations In addition we acquired

approximately $146.9 million in net loans $29.9 million in cash and securities $136.0 million in deposits and $25.7 million

in repurchase agreements and borrowings in the Equitable Merger We recorded approximately $37.4 million in goodwill and

$1.4 million in core deposit intangibles as result of the Equitable Merger

Financial Overview

Net earnings for the year ended December 31 2010 were $2.2 million compared to net earnings of $3.0

million in 2009 Our results for 2010 were impacted by gain due to the TBOM acquisition of$l million

offset by acquisition related costs of $2.2 million and provision for loan losses of$l3.5 million

Net interest margin increased to 4.06 for the twelve months ended December 31 2010 compared to

3.69 for the twelve months ended December 31 2009

Non accrual loans at December 312010 represented 2.19% of total loans compared to 2.34% at December

31 2009
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The changes in operating results for the period ended December 2010 when compared to the period

ended December 31 2009 and for the balance sheet at December 31 2010 when compared to December

31 2009 were substantially result of the acquisition of TBOM and Republic

Total assets increased to $1 .268 billion at December 31 2010 from $1.01 billion at December 31 2009

primarily due to the TBOM acquisition

Total shareholders equity increased to $174.1 million at December 31 2010 from $170.6 million at

December 31 2009 primarily due to net earnings for the year

The percentage of non-interest bearing deposits to total deposits was 26.4% at December 31 2010

compared to 24.2% at December 31 2009

Financial Condition

At December 31 2010 our total assets were $l.268 billion and our net loans were $847.7 million or 67% of total assets At

December 31 2019 our total assets were $1013 billion and our net loans were $653.9 million or 66/s of total assets The

increase in net loans from December 31 2009 to December 31 2010 was $193.8 million or 3O0o This increase was mainly

attributed to the TBOM Acquisition which added approximately $203 million in net loans During 2010 we had new loan

production of approximately $91 million resulting in fundings during the year of approximately $67 million including loans

originated for sale which was offset by payoffs sales pay downs and charge-offs during the year

At December 31 2010 the allowance for loan losses was $13.1 million or 1.52% of total loans At December 31 2009 the

allowance for loan losses was $13.3 million or 1.99% of total loans

At December31 2010 our total deposits were $1 .064 billion an increase of $261.7 million 33 over December31 2009

of $802.8 million The increase was mainly due to the TBOM Acquisition in December 2010 which added approximately

$232.4 million in deposits as of December 31 2010 Non-interest hearing deposits represented 26.4 of total deposits at

December 31 2010 compared to 24.2 at December 31 2009

Federal Home Loan Advances were $5 million at December 31 2010 and at December 31 2009

Result of Operations

We recorded net earnings of $2.2 million for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to net earnings of $3.0 million for

the year ended December31 2009 The income for the year was substantially attributed to gain from the TBOM
Acquisition of$1 million offset by $13.5 million provision for loan losses and acquisition costs of $2.2 million Overall

operating expenses increased primarily as result of the TBOM Acquisition in December 2010 and full year of operating

costs related to the Republic acquisition in December 2009

We recorded net earnings of $3.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to loss of $1.4 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 The income for the year was substantially attributed to gain from the Republic acquisition

of $20.5 million offset by $13.2 million provision for loan losses and acquisition costs of $2.7 million Overall operating

expenses increased primarily as result of the Republic acquisition in December 2009 and full year of operating costs

related to the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition in 2008

Net Interest Income

Net interest income which constitutes the principal source of our income represents the excess of interest income on

interest-earning assets over interest expense on interest bearing liabilities The principal interest-earning assets are federal

funds sold investment securities and loans Interest-bearing liabilities primarily consist of time deposits interest-bearing

checking accounts NOW accounts savings deposits money market accounts FHLB borrowings and repurchase

agreements Funds attracted by these interest bearing liabilities are invested in interest-earning assets Accordingly net

interest income depends upon the volume of average interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities and the

interest rates earned or paid on them

The following table reflects the components of net interest income setting forth for the periods presented average assets

liabilities and shareholders equity interest income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on interest-bearing

liabilities average yields earned on interest earning assets and average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities our net

interest spread i.e the average yield on interest-earning assets less the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities and our

net interest margin i.e the net yield on interest earning assets
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Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 are reflected in the following table

Dollars in thousands Year ended

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Average Average

Interest Rates Interest Rates

Average Income Earned Average Income Earned

Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Loans 685251 41529 6.06c 506625 26196 5.17%

Investment securities 92063 3263 3.54c 48289 2118 4.39%

Federal ftinds sold and securities

purchased under resale

agreements 158949 971 0.61% 22236 225 1.01%

Total interest earning assets 936263 45763 4.89% 577150 28539 4.94%

Non-interest earning assets 132977 82508

Allowance for loan losses 12991 6590
Total Assets 1056249 653068

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts 108275 200 0.l8 63150 154 0.24%

Money market accounts 180999 1718 0.95c 105755 1055 1.0000

Savings accounts 37270 229 0.6l0o 14842 97 0.65%

Certificates ofdeposit 301428 5131 1.70c 183550 5204 2.84%

Repos 14228 23 .16 14331 38

Other borrowings 10141 444 4.38c 33932 698 2.06%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 652341 7745 1.19c 415560 7246 1.74%

Non-interest-bearing liabilities

Denand deposit accounts 222970 108716

Other liabilities 6050 4929

Total non-interest-bearing

liabilities 229020 113645

Shareholders Equity 174888 123863

Total Liabilities and Shareholders

Equity 1056249 653068

Net interest spread 38018 3.70% 21293 3.20%

Net interest on average earning assets

Marginb 4.06c 3.69%

Average loans include non-performing loans Interest on loans includes loon fees of $499 in 2010 and $175 in 2009

Net tnterest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Net interest income was $38 million for the year ended December 31 2010 compared with $21.3 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 an increase of$16.7 million or 79% The increase resulted primarily from an increase in average earning

assets of $403 million or O2% due primarily to the common stock offering in 2009 the Republic Acquisition in late 2009

and the TBOM Acquisition in 2010 In addition the net interest margin i.e net interest income divided by average earning

assets increased 37 basis points from 3.69% during the year ended December 31 2009 to 4.06 during the year ended

December 31 2010 mainly the result of the accretion of loan discount of $5.6 million during the year on acquired loans

which added approximately 59 basis points to the December 31 2010 margin This amount was partially offset by the

decrease of average loans as percent of earning assets of73o for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to 88c for

the year ended December 31 2009 Margin was significantly affected by decrease in interest rates paid on deposits

especially the large increase in non-interest bearing deposits
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Net interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 are reflected in the following table

Year ended

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Average Average

Interest Rates Interest Rates

Average Income Earned Average Income Earned

Dollars in thousands Balance Expense Paid Balance Expense Paid

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Loans 506625 26196 5.17o 439124 28017 6.38c

Investment securities 48289 2118 4.39c 36417 1806 4.96%

Federal ftmds sold securities

purchased under resale

agreements 22236 225 1.01% 13472 427 3.17%

Total interest earning assets 577150 28539 4.94o 489013 30250 6.19%

Non-interest earning assets 82508 66246

Allowance for loan losses 6590 4133
Total Assets 653068 551126

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts 63150 154 0.24c 47851 456 0.95%

Money market accounts 105755 1055 1.0000 92959 1804 1.94%

Savings accounts 14842 97 0.65c 9585 69 0.72c

Certificates ofdeposit 183550 5204 2.84c 157601 5861 3.72%

Federal funds purchased and

Repos 14331 38 0.27c 20Ool 204 1.02%

Other borrowings 33932 698 2.06c 41553 1190 2.86%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 415560 7246 l.74 369610 9584 2.59%

Noninterest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposit accounts 108716 93451

Other liabilities 4929 4461

Total non-interest bearing

liabilities 113645 97912

Shareholders Equity 123863 83604

Total Liabilities and Shareholders

Equity 653068 551126

Net interest spread 21293 3.20c 20666 3.59%

Net interest on average earning assets

Margin 3.69o 4.23c

Average loans include non-peiforming loans Interest on loans includes loan fees of$1 75 in 2009 and $427 in 2008

Net interest margin is net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Net interest income was $21.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 compared with $20.7 million for the year ended

December31 2008 an increase of $627000 or 3% The increase resulted primarily from an increase in average earning

assets of $88 million or 18% due primarily to the Equitable Merger and Citrns Acquisition in 2008 and the common stock

offering and Republic Acquisition in 2009 This increase was substantially offset by decrease in net interest margin The net

interest margin for the year ended December 31 2009 was negatively impacted by the fill impact of decreases in the

overnight Federal finds rate and 1st United Banks and the prime lending rate published in The Wall Street Journal which

occurred throughout the last quarter of 2007 and throughout 2008 substantial portion of 1st United Banks loans

approximately 51% of total loans fluctuate at least quarterly with changes in 1st United Banks and The Wall Street

Journals prime rate Since January 2007 1st United Banks and the The Wall Street Journal is lending prime rate has

decreased from 8.25c to 3.25% at December 31 2009 This decrease had negative impact on our interest income and

margin
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Rate Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth certain information regarding changes in our interest income and interest expense for the year

ended December 31 2010 as compared to the year ended December 31 2009 and during the year ended December 31 2009

as compared to the year ended December 31 2008 For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

liabilities information is provided on changes attributable to changes in interest rate and changes in the volume Changes in

both volume and rate have been allocated based on the proportionate absolute changes in each category

Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Assets

Years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009

Change in

Interest

Income

Expense __________

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Investment Securities

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale

agreements

Total interest-earning assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Federal funds purchased and repos

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest spread

15333 10304 5029

1145 1616 471

746 868 122
17224 12788 4436

46 90 44
663 717 54
132 138

73 2519 2592
15 15

254 701 447

499 2763 2264

16725 10025 6700

Changes in interest earnings for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Investment Securities

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale

agreements

Total interest-earning assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

NOW accounts

Money market accounts

Savings accounts

Certificates of deposit

Federal funds purchased and repos

Other borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest spread

Change in Variance Variance

Interest Due to Due to

Income Volume Rate

Expense Changes Changes

1821 3941 5762
312 539 227

202 185 387
1711 4665 6376

302 113 415
749 222 971

28 35

657 871 1528
166 46 120
492 194 298

2338 1001 3339

627 3664 3037

Dollars in thousands

Variance Variance

Due to

Volume

Changes

Due to

Rate

Changes

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008
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Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to level deemed appropriate by

management and is based upon anticipated experience the volume and type of lending conducted by us the amounts of past

due and non-performing loans general economic conditions particularly as they relate to our market area and other factors

related to the collectability of our loan portfolio For the year ended December 31 2010 the provision for loan losses was

$13.1 million as compared to $13.2 million for 2009 For the year ended December 31 2009 the provision for loan losses

was $13.2 million as compared to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The primary reason for the increase in

provisioning in 2010 and 2009 over historical levels was due to the deterioration of market conditions which resulted in

classified loans an increase in non-performing loans and charge-offs during the year As of December 31 2010 and 2009

the allowance for loan losses was 1.52c and l.99 respectively of total loans As of December 31 2010 and 2009 the

allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans was 69.1% and 85.3% respectively

Non-Interest Income

Following is schedule of non-interest income for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Year ended

Dollars in thousands December 31
2010 2009 2008

Service charges fees on deposit accounts 3091 1418 1262

Loss on sale of OREO 113 64
Net gain on sale of securities 435 596 119

Net gain on sale and fee referrals of government guaranteed loans
..

17

Net gain on sale of residential real estate loans 73 98 109

Increase in cash surrender value of company owned life insurance 161 156 178

Gain on acquisition 11041 20535

Other 764 223 352

15452 22962 2037

Noninterest income decreased to $15.5 million for the year ended December 31 2010 from $23.0 million in 2009 The

decrease of $7.5 million was mainly the result of the difference on the gain on acquisition of TROM in 2010 as compared to

the gain from the Republic acquisition in 2009

Service charges and fees on deposit accounts have increased by $1.67 million or 118 for the year ended December 31
2010 as compared to the year ended December 31 2009 This increase was primarily due to the increase in average deposits

of79o in 2010 as compared to 2009 due primarily from the full year of deposits from the Republic acquisition

During the year ended December 31 2010 we sold approximately $35.1 million of securities resulting in net gain of

$435000 as compared to 2009 when we sold $32.1 million of securities for net gain of $596000

Other non-interest income increased to $764000 for the year ended December 31 2010 as compared to $223000 for the year

ended December 31 2009 This increase was primarily due to increased fees due to the Republic acquisition in late 2009 as

well as the TBOM acquisition in late 2010

Non-interest income increased to $23.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009 from $2 million in 2008 The increase

of $21.0 millionwas mainly the result of one-time recorded gain on acquisition of $20.5 million due to the Republic

acquisition

Service charges and fees on deposit accounts have increased by $156000 or 12.4% for the year ended December 31 2009 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was primarily due to the increase in average deposits of 18.6%

in 2009 as compared to 2008 due primarily from the hill year of deposits from the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

During the year ended December 31 2009 we sold approximately $32.1 million of securities resulting in net gain of

$596000 as compared to 2008 where we sold $7.1 million of securities for net gain of$l 19000

Other non-interest income decreased by $129000 to $223000 at December 31 2009 primarily due to reduction in

prepayment penalty income on loans during 2009
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As we discussed in the section Lending Activity in Item above we generally sell the guaranteed portions of SBA loans

we originate Gain on sales of loans represents the portion of the gain on such sales that is recognizable under generally

accepted accounting principles Included in other fee income is loan servicing fee income on the portion of SBA loans sold

The amount recogni7ed as income is
directly related to the halances of loans

nutstanding
serviced by us In additinn we sell

most of our first mortgage residential loans servicing released

Non-Interest Expenses

Following is schedule of non-interest expense for years ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008

Year ended

Dollars in thousands December 31
2010 2009 2008

Salaries and employee benefits 16052 9808 10540

Occupancyexpense 6237 6113 5634

Data Processing 2684 1858 1684

Telephone 757 557 531

Advertising 165 78 119

Stationary and supplies 317 224 294

Amortization of intangibles 433 313 250

FDIC assessment 1659 1140 327

Professional fees 2153 1134 278

Acquisition related expenses 2213 2711 1395

Impairment losses recognized in earnings 120 130

Other 3759 2112 1722

36429 26168 22904

Non-interest expense is comprised of salaries and employee benefits occupancy
and equipment expense and other operating

expenses incurred in supporting our various business activities During the year ended December 31 2010 non-interest

expenst increased to $36.4 million compared to $26.2 million for the year ended December31 2009 an increase of$l0.2

million or 39c substantial portion of the increase in non-interest expense was due to the acquisition of Republic in late

2009 and TBOM in late 2010

Salary and employee benefit costs were $16.1 million in 2010 or $6.2 million more than 2009 primarily as result of the

acquisition of the Republic operation including three banking centers at the end of 2009 In addition we incurred

approximately $510000 in salary and benefits related to employees who worked for us until the completion of the conversion

and integration of the Republic systems

As part of the TBOM Acquisition on December 17 2ulu we added 89 employees and annualized salary and benefit costs of

$6 million Of these 89 positions we anticipate 49 positions being eliminated by May 31 2011 In addition we anticipate

expensing in the first half of 201 approximately $750000 in stay bonuses and severance to certain staff who stay through

the conversion and integration of TBOM

As part of the TBOM acquisition we added two leased facilities and one owned facility which we will be leasing through

May 31 2011 with an estimated cost for the first five months of 2011 of approximately $1164 As these locations will be

eliminated we do not anticipate any additional costs after the second quarter of 2011 In January 2011 we also signed lease

for additional space which will result in additional annualized occupancy cost of approximately $200000

Data processing costs were $2.7 million or an increase of $826000 compared to 2009 primarily as result of the full year of

costs related to the increased loans and deposits serviced from the Republic acquisition

Professional fees were $2.15 million or an increase of$l.02 million compared to 2009 primarily as result of collection

efforts from the increase in non-performing loans classified assets and charge-offs during 2010

Acquisition related costs of $2.2 million in 2010 related primarily to integration legal and valuation expenses for the TBOM

Acquisition the termination of leases related to excess space
and one-time compensation related costs

Other non interest expense of $3.8 million in 2010 increased $1.65 million compared to 2009 primarily due to the Ii.ill year of

operations in 2010 from the Republic Acquisition
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During the year ended December 31 2009 non-interest expense increased to $26.2 million compared to $22.9 million for the

year ended December 31 2008 an increase of $3.3 million or 14.3c

Salary and employee benefit costs were $9.8 million in 2009 or $732000 less than 2008 The decrease was primarily due to

approximately 24 former Equitable and Citrus Bank employees who worked for us until the completion of the conversion and

integration of the entities

Occupancy expenses were $6.1 million in 2009 or an increase of $479000 compared to 2008 The increase was primarily

result of flill year of occupancy costs related to the locations added from the Equitable Merger and the Citrus Acquisition in

2008

Data processing costs in 2009 were $1.86 million or an increase of$174000 compared to 2008 primarily as result of the

full year of costs related to the increased loans and deposits serviced from the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

Professional fees were $1.13 million or an increase of $856000 compared to 2008 primarily as result of collection efforts

from the increase in non-performing loans classified assets and charge-offs during 2009

The FDIC assessment increased due to the increase in deposits during the year as well as special assessment of $293000 in

2009 that the FDIC assessed on all financial institutions In addition our assessment rates which also include those for

participating in the FDIC transactions account guarantee program increased from 6.25 to 14.50 basis points during 2009

Acquisition related costs of $2.7 million in 2009 related primarily to integration legal and valuation expenses for the

Republic Acquisition the termination of leases related to excess space and one-time compensation related costs

Other non-interest expense of $2.1 million in 2009 increased $390000 compared to 2008 primarily due to the fill year of

operations in 2009 from the Equitable Merger and Citrus Acquisition

Income Tax Expense cite fit

During the year ended December 31 20W we recognized an income tax expense of$1.36 million due to pre-tax earnings of

$3.52 million

In the year ended December 31 2009 we recognized an income tax expense of $1.83 million due to pre-tax earnings of $4.85

millioii We recognized an income tax benefit of $752000 for the year ended December 31 2008

Inflation

The impact of inflation on the banking industry differs significantly from that of other industries in which large portion of

total resources are invested in fixed assets such as property plant and equipment

Assets and liabilities of financial institutions are virtually all monetary in nature and therefore are primarily impacted by

interest rates rather than changing prices While the general level of inflation underlies mnst interest rates interest rates react

more to changes in the expected rate of inflation and to changes in monetary and fiscal policy Net interest income and the

interest rate spread are good measures of our ability to react to changing interest rates and are discussed in further detail in

the section entitled Results of Operations

Interest Rate Risk Management

Our net income is largely dependent on net interest income Net interest income is susceptible to interest rate risk to the

degree that interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice on different basis than interest-earning assets When interest-

bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than interest earning assets in given period significant increase in

market rates of interest could adversely affect net interest income Similarly when interest-earning assets mature or reprice

more quickly than interest-bearing liabilities falling interest rates could result in decrease in net interest income Net

interest income is also affected by changes in the portion of interest-earning assets that are ftinded by interest-bearing

liabilities rather than by other sources of funds such as non-interest-bearing deposits and shareholders equity

We manage our assets and liabilities through Uniteds Asset Liability Committee ALCO Board Committee which

meets monthly Management closely monitors 1St Uniteds three interest risk calculations reporting the results of its rate

stress testing to ALCO on quarterly basis

We have established policy limits of risk which are quantitative measures of the percentage change in net interest income

measure of net interest income at risk and the fair value of equity capital measure of economic value of equity EVE at

risk resulting from hypothetical change in interest rates for maturities from one day to 30 years We measure the potential
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adverse impacts that changing interest rates may have on our short-term earnings long-term value and liquidity by

employing simulation analysis through the use of computer modeling The simulation model captures optionality factors such

as call features and interest rate caps and floors imbedded in investment and loan portfolio contracts As with any method of

gauging interest rate risk there are certain shortcomings inherent in the interest rate modeling methodology used by us When

interest rates change actual movements in different categories of interest-earning assets and interest-hearing liabilities loan

prepayments and withdrawals of time and other deposits may deviate significantly from assumptions used in the model

Finally the methodology does not measure or reflect the impact that higher rates may have on adjustable-rate loan

customers ability to service their debts or the impact of rate changes on demand for loan lease and deposit products

Our interest rate risk management goal is to avoid unacceptable variations in net interest income and capital levels due to

fluctuations in market rates Management attenipts to achieve this goal by balancing within policy limits the volume of

floating-rate liabilities with similar volume of floating-rate assets by keeping the average maturity of fixed-rate asset and

liability contracts reasonably matched by maintaining pool of administered core deposits and by adjusting pricing rates to

market conditions on continuing basis

The balance sheet is subject to testing for interest rate shock possibilities to indicate the inherent interest rate risk Average

interest rates are shocked by plus or minus 100 and 200 basis points bp and plus 300bp although we may elect not to use

particular scenarios that we determined are impractical in current rate environment It is managements goal to strncture the

balance sheet so that net interest earnings at risk over 12-month period and the economic value of equity at risk do not

exceed policy guidelines at the various interest rate shock levels

1St United has been consistently within policy limits on rates stress test up and down 100 200 and 300 basis points both for

net interest margin and EVE Management has closely monitored Uniteds gap position which for the most part has been

asset sensitive during rising rate environment Variations on EVE have consistently shown low volatility

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

We manage our liquidity position with the objective of maintaining sufficient funds to respond to the needs of depositors and

borrowers and to take advantage of earnings enhancement opportunities In addition to the normal inflow of funds from core-

deposit growth together with repayments and maturities of loans and investments we utilize other short-term funding sources

such as securities sold under agreements to repurchase overnight federal funds purchased from correspondent banks and the

acceptance of short-term deposits from public entities Federal Home Loan Bank advances and brokered time deposits

We monitor and manage our liquidity position on several bases which vary depending upon the time period As the time

period is expanded other data is factored in including estimated loan funding requirements estimated loan payoffs

investment portfolio maturities or calls and anticipated depository buildups or rnnoffs

We classify all of our securities as available-for-sale thereby maintaining liquidity Our liquidity position is further enhanced

by strncturing our loan porttolio interest payments as monthly complemented by retail credit and residential mortgage loans

in our loan portfolio resulting in steady stream of loan repayments In managing our investment portfolio we provide for

staggered maturities so that cash flows are provided as such investments mature

Our cash flows are comprised of three classifications cash flows from operating activities cash flows from investing

activities and cash flows from financing activities Cash flows used in investing activities offset by those provided by

operating activities and financing activities resulted in net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $15.5 million from

December 31 2009 to December 31 2010 and during 2010 we experienced net cash transferred from acquisitions of $35.1

million and an overall increase in deposits of $6.9 million

Our securities portfolio federal funds sold and cash and due from bank deposit balances serve as primary sources of

liquidity for us At December 31 2010 we had cash and due from bank balances of $119 million and unpledged securities in

the amount of $70.8 million

In November 2010 we filed shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC through which we may sell from time to

time any combination of common stock preferred stock debt securities warrants subscription rights and units in one or

more offerings We may seek to obtain debt or equity financings in the future Such financings however may not be

available on terms acceptable to us or at all In addition the Loss Share Agreements with the FDIC limit our ability to raise

additional equity if change of control would occur as defined in the Loss Share Agreements

At December 2010 we had borrowings from the FHLB of $5 million At December 2010 we had commitments to

originate loans totaling $67.6 million Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit during the twelve months following

December 31 2010 totaled $353.7 million



Management believes that we have adequate resources to fund all of our commitments that substantially all of our existing

commitments will be funded in the subsequent twelve months and if so desired that we can adjust the rates on certificates of

deposit and other deposit accounts to retain deposits in changing interest rate environment At December 31 2010 we had

short-term lines available from correspondent banks totaling $46 million FRB discount window availability of $38.0 million

and borrowing capacity from the FHLB of $50.5 million based on collateral pledged for total credit available of$l30.7

million In addition being well capitalized the Bank can access the wholesale deposits for approximately $298.9 million

based on current policy limits

We discuss our securities portfolio deposits and borrowings further in Item Business

Capital Resources

The following table summarizes the changes in our shareholders equity for the periods indicated

Dollars in thousands Year ended December 31
2010 2009

Balance at beginning of period 170594 98870

Issuance of preferred stock 9829

Redemption of preferred stock 15095
Registration costs on issuance of common stock 21
Sale of common stock 74925

Exercise of options

Stock based compensation expense 830 543

Net income 2160 3020

Preferred stock dividends earned 774
Change in unrealized gains losses on available for sale securities 487 724

Balance at end of period 174050 170594

The Federal banking regulatory authorities have adopted certain prompt corrective action rules with respect to depository

institutions The rules establish five capital tiers well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized The various federal banking regulatory agencies have

adopted regulations to implement the capital rules by among other things defining the relevant capital measures for the five

capital categories An institution is deemed to be well capitalized if it has total risk-based capital ratio of l0 or greater

Tier risk-based capital ratio of or greater and Tier leverage ratio of 500 or greater and is not subject to regulatory

order agreement or directive to meet and maintain specific capital level At December 2010 1st United Bank met the

capital ratios of well capitalized financial institution with total risk-based capital ratio of 20.26 Tier risk-based

capital ratio of l8.l8 and Tier leverage ratio of9.9o Depository institutions which fall below the adequately

capitalized category generally are prohibited from making any capital distribution are subject to growth limitations and are

required to submit capital restoration plan There are number of requirements and restrictions that may be imposed on

institutions treated as significantly undercapitalized and if the institution is critically undercapitalized the banking

regulatory agencies have the right to appoint receiver or conservator The following represents United Bancorps

regulatory Capital Ratios for the respective periods

Well

Capitalized

Regulatory December 31

Requirement 2010 2009

Total capital to risk weighted assets l0.00 23.7l 25.45c

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets 6.00c 2l.62 23.23c

Tier capital to total average assets 5.0000 1l.78J4 l2.54

Tier capital to year end assets is 10.27
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently engage in the use of derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risks However we are party to

financial instruments with off-balance sheet risks in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of our clients

At December 31 2010 we had $67.9 million in commitments to originate loans and $4 million in standby letters of credit

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer so long as there is no violation of any condition

established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require

payment of fee Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment

amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued

by us to guarantee the performance of client to third party We use the same credit policies in establishing commitments

and issuing letters of credit as we do for on-balance sheet instruments

If commitments arising from these financial instruments continue to require funding at historical levels management does

not anticipate that such fttnding will adversely impact our ability to meet on-going obligations In the event these

commitments require funding in excess of historical levels management believes current liquidity available lines of credit

from the FHLB investment security maturities and our revolving credit facility provide sufficient source of funds to meet

these commitments

Critical Accounting Policies

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through provision for loan losses

charged to earnings Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan

balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on regular basis by management and is based upon managements periodic

review the cullectibility of the luans in light of histurical cxperience the nature and volume 0fth luan portfulio adverse

situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing

economic conditions This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant

revision as more information becomes available

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are classified as

either loss doubtful substandard or special mention For such loans that are also classified as impaired an allowance is

established when the discounted cash flows or collateral alue or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than

the carrying value of that loan The general component co ers nonclassified loans and is based on historical industry loss

experience adjusted for qualitative factors

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that we will be unable to collect

the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors

considered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral alue and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and

payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the

borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of

the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for commercial and

commercial real estate loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effectie

interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent
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Goodwill and Intanrible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of business acquired Goodwill and intangible assets acquired

in purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useftil life are not amortized but instead tested for

impairment at least annually Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful

lives to their estimated residual values We acquired First Western Bank on April 2004 Equitable on February 29 2008

certain assets of Citrus on August 15 2008 certain assets of Republic on December Il 2009 and the assets of TBOM on

December 17 2010 Consequently we were required to record the assets acquired including identified intangible assets and

liabilities assumed at their fair value which involves estimates based on third party valuations such as appraisals internal

valuations based on discounted cash flow analyses or other valuation techniques The determination of the useful lives of

intangible assets is subjective as is the appropriate amortization period for such intangible assets In addition purchase

acquisitions typically result in recording goodwill which is subject to ongoing periodic impairment tests based on the fair

value of the reporting unit compared to its carrying amount including goodwill As of December 31 2010 the required

annual impairment test of goodwill was performed and no impairment existed as of the valuation date If for any future

period we determine that there has been impairment in the carrying value of our goodwill balances we will record charge to

our earnings which could have material adverse effect on our net income Goodwill and intangible assets are described

further in Notes and of the notes to the consolidated financial statements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Not Applicable for smaller reporting companies

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

1st United Bancorp Inc

Boca Raton Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 1st United Bancorp Inc as of December 31 2010 and

2009 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the

years in the three-year period ended December 31 2010 We also have audited the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible

for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting contained in Item 9A of the accompanying Form 10-K Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements included examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

As permitted the Company has excluded the current year acquisition of The Bank of Miami N.A from the scope of

managements report on internal control over financial reporting As such this acquired institution has also been excluded

from the scope of our audit of internal control over financial reporting

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of 1st United Bancorp Inc as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

Is Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Lauderdale Florida

February 14 2011
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1ST UNITED BANCORP INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31 2010 and 2009

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

2010 2009

ASSETS

Cash and due from financial institutions 118952 134504

Federal funds sold 800 737

Cash and cash equivalents 119752 135241

Time deposits in other financial institutions 75 75

Securities available for sale 102289 88843

Loans held for sale 4800 151

Loans net of allowance ofSI3050 and $13282 at year end 2010 and 2009 847689 653858

Nonmarketable equity securities 18543 10233

Premises and equipment net 9823 9228

Other real estate owned 9085 635

Company-owned life insurance 4727 4566

FDIC loss share receivable 86712 43772

Goodwill 45008 45008

Core deposit intangible 3289 3045

Accrued interest receivable and other assets 15960 18786

1267752 1013441

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Deposits

Non-interest bearing 281285 194185

Interest bearing 783402 608623

Total deposits 1064687 802808

Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 12886 22343

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 5000 5000

Other borrowings 4750 5091

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 6379 7605

Total liabilities 1093702 842847

Commitments and contingencies Note 19

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock no par 5000000 shares authorized and undesignated as of

December 2010 no shares issued or outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par value 60000000 shares authorized 24793089 and

24781660 issued and outstanding at year end 2010 and 2009 respectively 248 248

Additional paid in capital 181697 180888

Accumulated deficit 8427 10587
Accumulated other comprehensive income 532 45

Total shareholders equity 74usu 170594

1267752 1013441

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1ST UNITED BANCORP INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollar amounts in thousands except per share data

Year ended

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Interest and dividend income

Loans including fees 41s29 26196 28017

Securities 3263 2118 1806

Federal funds sold and other 971 225 427

4763 28539 30250

Interest expense

Deposits 7.278 6510 8190

Federal foods purchased and repurchase agreements 23 38 204

Fedemi Home Loan Bank advances 233 375 943

Other borrowings 211 323 247

Total interest expense 7745 7246 9784

Net interest income 38018 21793 20666

Pros ision foi loan losses 13520 13240 1910

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 24498 8073 18756

Non-interest income

Service charges on deposit aeeouots 3.091 1418 162
Loss on sale of other real estate owned 113 64
Net

gain on sales of securities 435 596 119

Net gain on sales and fees from referrals of government uaraoteed loans 17

Net gain on sales of residential real estate loans 73 98 109

Gain no acquisition 11041 0535
Increase in cash surrender value ofeumpany-oss ned life insumnee 161 156 178

Other 764 23 352

Total noninterest income ta452 296 2037

Nun interest expense

Salaries and employee benefits t6Oa 9808 10540

Occupancy and equipment 37 6.113 5634

Data processin .684 855 1684

Telephone a57 531

Stationery and supplies 3fl 224 794

Amortization of intangibles 433 313

Professional fees 2ta3 1134 275

Advertising t6a 7S 119

Acquisition related expenses 2213 711 1397

FOIC assessment t6a9 1140 327

Other than
teniporaiy

loss

Total impairment loss 120 130

Loss recognized in other comprehensive income

Net impairment loss iecognized in earnins 120 130

Other 379 112 1722

Total non-interest expense 36429 26168 2904

Income loss before income taxes 3521 4847 2111
Income tax expense benefit 1361 1827 752
Net income loss 2.160 020 1379
Preferred stuck dividends earned

_____________
f774 368

Net income loss available to common shareholders 2160 2246

Basic
earnings lus per

share 009 0.17 0S
Diluted earnings loss per share 09 0s

See accompanying notes to the consolidated flnancial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASI-l FLOWS
Years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollar amounts in thousands

2010 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating actisities

Net income loss 2160 3020 1379
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to iset cash from operating

activities

Provision for loan losses 13520 13240 1910

Depreciation and ansortization 2011 2021 1784
Net accretion of purchase accounting adjustments 4660 809 1150
Net amortization of securities 780 225 73

lmpairnsent of available for-sale securities 120 130

Increase in cash surrender value of company owned life insuianee 161 b6 178
Stock-based conspensation 830 543 341

Net gain loss on sale of securities 435 396 119
Net gain loss on foreclosed assets 113 64

Net gain loss on premises and equipment 38

Net gain on sales of loans held for sale 173 98 109
Gain on acquisition 11041 20535
Loans originated for sale 3700 6211 7723
Proceeds frons sales of loans held for sale 3924 7509 8937

Net change us

Deferred income taxes 1362 1936 4118
Deferred loan fees 277 188 18
Dther assets 6498 3786 7704
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3147 2369 318
Net cash from opensting activities 5038 752 935

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sales calls ofseeunties 39.124 37106 17317

Proceeds froio security maturities calls and prepayments 19767 10371 77
Purchases of securities 42841 62908 19308
Loan originations and paynsents net 1.15$ 5205 20601
Proceeds from sale of govemment guaranteed and other non residential loans 3138

Proceeds frons sale of other real estate owned 5085 2246

Purchase of nonnsarketable equity securities net 57 1034 2021
Cash transferred in connection ssith

acquisitions 33102 183026 41444

Additions to premises and equipment net 1863 303 961
Proceeds from surrender of company osvned life insurance 22D
Purchase of company ossned life insurance

_________________
2200

_________________

Net cash frons investing activities 53159 160.619 28983

Cash flows frons financing actisities

Net increase decrease in deposits 7149 16.892 79462
Net change in federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements 9457 490 17.833

Net change in short term Federal Ilome Loan Bank advances 71016 129581 1$ 79$

Net change in other hot rowings 341 414 $7

Repurchase and retirensent of preferred stock including tax benefit 15097
Issuance of preferred stock 829 6529

Issuance of eonsmon stock net of expense 21 7495 10.140

Dividends paid
________________

774 206
Net cash from

financing actisities 73.686 43728 40 S47

Net change in cash and cash
equivalents 13489 116139 12799

Beainning cash and cash equivalents 133241 19102 31901

Ending cash and cash equivalents 119752 137.241 19102

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid 7.823 6877 9290

Income taxes paid 27

Supplemental disclosures of noncash activities

Series preferred stock converted to consrnon stock 365 .005

Transfer ol loans to foieelosed asset 3.790 7947

Transfer of loans held for sale to
portfolio

Transfei of loans to held for sale portfolio 4800 1210

Issuance ot comnson stock pursuant to acquisitions 84lD

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include 1st United Bancorp Inc

Bancorp or Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries 1st United Bank 1st United and Equitable Equity Lending

EEL together referred to as the Company Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation

Bancorps primary business is the ownership and operation of 1st United 1st United is state chartered commercial bank that

provides financial services through its four offices in Palm Beach County four offices in Broward County five offices in

Miami-Dade County and one each in the cities of Vero Beach Sebastian and Barefoot Bay Florida Its primary deposit

products are checking savings and term certificate accounts and its primary lending products are commercial and residential

mortgages commercial and installment loans Substantially all loans are secured by specific items of collateral including

commercial and residential real estate business assets and consumer assets Commercial loans are expected to be repaid from

cash flow from operations of businesses However the customers ability to repay their loans is dependent on the real estate

and general market conditions Other financial instruments which potentially represent concentrations of credit risk include

deposit accounts in other financial institutions and federal fUnds sold

EEL is commercial finance subsidiary that from time to time will hold foreclosed assets or performing or non-performing

loans At December 31 2010 EEL held $5.2 million in loans

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information These estimates and assumptions affect the

amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided and actual results could differ The allowance for

loan losses carrying value of goodwill carrying value of deferred tax assets and fair values of financial instruments are

particularly subject to change

Cash Flows Cash and cash equivalents includes cash deposits with other financial institutions with original maturities under

90 days and federal funds sold Net cash flows are reported for loan and deposit transactions interest bearing deposits in

other financial institutions and federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements

Interest-Bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions mature

within one year and are carried at cost

Securities Debt securities are classified as ailable for sale when they might be sold before maturity Equity securities with

readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale Securities available for sale are carried at fair value with

unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensi income net of tax Nonmarketable equity securities such

as Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank stock are carried at cost and periodically evaluated for impairment

based on ultimate recovery of par value

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount Premiums and discounts on securities are amortized

on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments except for mortgage-backed here prepayments are anticipated

Gains and losses on sales are recorded on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment OTTI at least on quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to the length of time and

the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost the financial condition and near tenn prospects of the issuer

including an evaluation of credit ratings the inipact of changes in market interest rates the intent of the Company to

sell security and whether it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the security before recovery of its cost

basis If the Company intends to sell an impaired security or if it is more likely than not the Company will have to sell the

security before recovery of its cost basis the Company records an other-than-temporary loss in an amount equal to the entire

difference between fair value and amortized cost Otherwise only the credit portion of the estimated loss is recognized in

earnings with the other portion of the loss recognized in other comprehensive income

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market Net unrealized losses if any are

recorded as valuation allowance and charged to eamings

Residential real estate loans held for sale are sold with servicing released Gains and losses on sales of residential real estate

loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan sold
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1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands
except per

share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

The guaranteed portion of loans originated through certain government guaranteed lending programs are sold while retaining

the unguaranteed portion and servicing Gains and losses on sales of the guaranteed portion are based on the difference

between the selling price and the allocated carrying value of the portion of the loan being sold Additionally the Company

periodically refers government guaranteed loans to third parties Fees for such referrals are recognized into income at the time

of referral

Loans Loans excluding certain purchased loans which have shown evidence of deterioration since origination that

management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at the

principal balance outstanding net of unearned interest deferred loan fees and costs and an allowance for loan losses Interest

income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance Loan origination fees net of certain direct origination costs are deferred

and recognized in interest income using the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments

Interest income on loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in

process of collection Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the loan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual

or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on non-accrual is reversed against interest income Interest received on

such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are

returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future

payments are reasonably assured

Concentration of Credit Risk Most of the Companys business activity is with customers located within Palm Beach

Broward and Miami Dade Counties Therefore the Companys exposure to credit risk is significantly affected by changes in

the economy in these counties

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses Loan

losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed

Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allmsance Management estimates the allowance balance required using past

loan loss experience the nature and volume of the portfolio information about specific borrower situations and estimated

collateral values economic conditions and other factors Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans but

the entire allowance is available for any loan that in managements judgment should be charged-off

The allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are individually

classified as impaired The general component covers other classified loans and non-classified loans and is based on

historical loss experience adjusted for current factors

The general allowance considers historical net charge-offs over rolling two year period by portfolio segment of loans This

historical charge off ratio is then adjusted for qualitative factors including delinquency trend loss and recovery trend

classified asset trend non-accrual trend economic and business conditions and other external factors by portfolio segment of

loans The qualitative factors totaled approximately 30 basis points of the allowance for loan losses at December 31 2010

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable

to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Loans for which the terms have been modified and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties are

considered troubled debt restructurings and classified as impaired

Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and

payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the

borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record and the amount of

the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed
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1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands except per
share data

NOTE I- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Impairment is measured on loan-by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of

expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value

of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Impairment for troubled debt restructurings is measured at the present

value of estimated future cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception Large groups of smaller balance

homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identify

individual consumer and residential loans for impairment disclosures unless they are considered troubled debt restructurings

Troubled debt restructurings are separately identified for impairment disclosures and are measured at the present value of

estimated future cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception If troubled debt restructuring is considered to be

collateral dependent loan the loan is reported net at the fair value of the collateral For troubled debt restructurings that

subsequently default the Company determines the amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the

allowance for loan losses

Certain Acquired Loans As part of business acquisitions the Company acquires certain loans that have shown evidence of

credit deterioration since origination These acquired loans are recorded at the allocated fair value such that there is no

carryover of the sellers allowance for loan losses Such acquired loans are accounted for individually The Company

estimates the amount and timing of expected cash flows for each purchased loan and the expected cash flows in excess of the

allocated fair value is recorded as interest income over the remaining life of the loan accretable yield The excess of the

loans contractual principal and interest over expected cash flows is not recorded non accretable difference Over the life of

the loan expected cash flows continue to be estimated If the present value of expected cash flows is less than the carrying

amount loss is recorded through the allossance for loan losses If the present value of expected cash flows is greater than

the carrying amount it is recognized as part of future interest income

Transfers of Financial Assets Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been

relinquished Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the

Company the transferee obtains the right free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right to pledge or

exchange the transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an

agreement to repurchase them before their maturity

Foreclosed Assets Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell

when acquired establishing new cost basis If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is

recorded through expense Costs after acquisition are expensed

Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed

on straight line basis over the assets useful lives sshich range froni to 10 years Amortization of leasehold improvements

is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset

Company-Owned Life Insurance The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key executives Company
ovvned life insurance is recorded at the aniount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date

which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement

FDIC Loss Share Receiv able The FDIC Loss Share Receivable represents the estimated amounts due from the FDIC related

to the Loss Share Agreements which were booked as of the acquisition dates of Republic and TBOM The estimate represents

the discounted value of the FDICs reimbursed portion of estimated losses we expect to realize on loans and other real estate

Covered Assets acquired as result of the TBOM and Republic acquisitions As losses are realized on Cos ered Assets

the portion that the FDIC pays the Company in cash for principal and
up to 90 days of interest reduces the FDIC Loss Share

Receivable On quarterly basis the Company will evaluate the FDIC Loss Share Receivable to determine if the estimated

losses on cos ered assets support the amount recorded as FDIC Loss Share Receivable If the Company determines that it

cannot support the FDIC Loss Share Receivable it will record charge to earnings for the unsupported amount

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill resulting from business combinations prior to January 2009 represents the

excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired Goodv ill resulting from business

combinations after January 2009 is generally determined as the excess of the fair value of the consideration transfened

plus the fair alue of any noneontrolling interests in the aequiree over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities
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1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

assumed as of the acquisition date Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in purchase business combination and

determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually The Company has

selected December 31 as the date to perform the annual impairment test Intangible assets with definite useful lives are

amortized over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values Goodwill is the only intangible asset with an

indefinite life on our balance sheet

Other intangible assets consist of core deposit intangible assets arising from whole bank and branch acquisitions They are

initially measured at fair value and then are amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives which

range from to 10 years

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate

their canying amount may not be recoverable from future undiscounted cash flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair

value

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments

such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit issued to meet customer financing needs The face

amount for these items represents the exposure to loss before considering customer collateral or ability to repay Such

financial instruments are recorded when they are funded

Income Taxes Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred

tax assets and liabilities Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences

between carrying amounts and tax bases ot assets and liabilities computed using enacted tax rates valuation allowance if

needed reduces deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification 740-10-25 as of January 12007 tax position is

recognizd as benefit only if it is more likely than not that the tax position would be sustained in tax examination with

tax examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than

5O likely of being realized on examination For tax positions not meeting the more likely than not test no tax benefit is

recorded The adoption had no affect on the Companys financial statements

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

Earnings Loss Per Share Basic earnings loss per share is net income loss available to common shareholders divided by

the weighted avelage uuuibei of eouuiiuu sliates outstaudiug during the period Diluted earitings per share iueludes the

dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock options and stock warrants Earnings loss per

share is restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issue of the financial statements

Stock-Based Compensation Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock awards issued to

employees based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair

value of stock options while the market price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant is used for restricted stock

awards Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period For

awards with graded vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the

entire award

Comprehensive Income Loss Comprehensive income loss consists of net income loss and other comprehensive income

loss Other comprehensive income loss includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale which are also

recognized as separate components of equity

Loss Contingencies Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are

recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated

Management does not believe there now arc such matters that will have material effect on the financial statements

Restrictions on Cash Cash on hand or on deposit ith the Federal Resers Bank is required to meet regulatory resen and

clearing requirements
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Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant niarket information and

other assumptions as more filly disclosed in separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of

significant judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad

markets for particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates

Operating Segments While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the various products and services

operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on Company-wide basis Operating segments are

aggregated into one as operating results for all segments are similar Accordingly all of the financial service operations are

considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable operating segment

Reclassifications Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

In June 2009 the FASB amended previous guidance relating to transfers of financial assets and eliminates the concept of

qualifying special purpose entity This guidance must be applied as of the beginning of each reporting entitys first annual

reporting period that begins after November 15 2009 for interim periods within that first annual reporting period and for

interim and annual reporting periods thereafter This guidance must be applied to transfers occurring on or after the effective

date Additionally on and after the effective date the concept of qualifying special-purpose entity is no longer relevant for

accounting purposes Therefore formerly qualifying special-purpose entities should be evaluated for consolidation by

reporting entities on and after the effective date in accordance with the applicable consolidation guidance The disclosure

provisions were also amended and apply to transfers that occuiTed both before and after the effective date of this guidance

Adoption of this guidance on January 2010 did not have material effect on the Companys results of operations or

financial position

NOTE 2-ACQUISITIONS

The Bank of Miami N.A Acquisition

On December 17 2010 United Bank our banking subsidiary entered into purchase and assumption agreement the

Bank of Miami Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDIC as receiver for The Bank of Miami
National Association TBOM Miami Florida According to the terms of the Bank of Miami Agreement fit United Bank

assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and bolTowings and acquired certain assets of TBOM Assets

acquired included s275.8 million in loans and sl2 million in other real estate owned based on TBUMs canying value and

approximately $75 million in cash and investments TBOM operated three banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida

and had 101 employees

All of the loans acquired are covered by two loss share agreements the TBOM Loss Share Agreements between the FDIC

and 1st United Bank which affords 1st United Bank significant loss protection Under the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

the FDIC will cover 80 of covered loan and other real estate losses for loans and other real estate owned acquired The

TBOM Loss Share Agreements also cover third party collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered loans The

term for loss sharing and loss recoveries on residential real estate loans is ten years while the term for loss sharing and loss

recoveries on non-residential real estate loans is five years with respect to losses and eight years with respect to loss

recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan as determined by the

FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the TBOM Loss Share Agreements

1st United Bank received $38 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available We recorded an estimated receivable

from the FDIC in the amount of $48.7 million as of December 17 2010 which represents the fair value of the FDICs

portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and ieimbursed to us The TBOM Loss Sharing Agreements arc subject

to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

68



1St United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands except per share data

NOTE 2ACQUISITIONS continued

An acquisition gain totaling $11 million resulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

The following summarizes the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired on December 17 2010

December 17
2010

Cash and cash equivalents 74902

Seeurities 29060

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 8253

Loans 203185

Core deposit intangible 677

FDIC loss share receivable 48690

Other real estate owned 9858

Other assets 3691

TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED 378316

Deposits 254538

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 71016

Other 1.921

TOTAL LIABILITIES ASSUMED 327475

Excess of assets acquired over liabilities assumed 50841

Cash paid to FDIC 39800
RECORDED GAIN ON ACQUISITION 11041

1A United Bank did not immediately acquire the furniture or equipment of TBOM as part of the purchase and assumption

agreement However United Bank has the option to purchase the furniture and equipment and any owned facilities from

die FDIC The term of this option expires March 18 2011 United has until March 18 2011 to request the FDIC to

repudiate all leases entered into by the former TBOM or the leases will be assumed Two of the former TBOM banking

facilities are leased and one is owned Two of the locations are approximately one mile from existing United facilities and

one location has less than $3 million in deposits Management has determined that none of the TBOM branches would be

retained and anticipates the deposits to be serviced from existing United facilities

The Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB advances to TBOM were repaid prior to December 31 2010

The operating results of United for the twelve month period ended December 31 2010 include the operating results of the

acquired assets and assumed liabilities since the acquisition date of December 17 2010 Due primarily to the significant

amount of fair value adjustments and the TBOM Loss Share Agreements now in place historical results of TBOM are not

believed to be relevant to the Companys results and thus no pro forma information is presented

Republic Federal Bank Acquisition

On December 11 200 United entered into purchase and assumption agreement the Republic Agreement ith the

FDIC as receiver for Republic Federal Bank National Association Republic Miami Florida According to the terms of

the Republic Agreement United assumed all deposits except certain brokered deposits and borrowings and acquired

certain of the assets of Republic Assets acquired included $238 million in loans based on Republics carrying value and

$64.2 million in cash and investments All of Republics repossessed or foreclosed real estate and substantially all non

performing loans were retained by the FDIC

Republic operated four banking centers in Miami-Dade County Florida which immediately became banking centers of

United
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NOTE 2ACQUISITIONS continued

Under the Republic Loss Share Agreements the FDIC will cover 80% of covered loan and foreclosed real estate losses up to

$36 million and 95% of losses in excess of that amount The Republic Loss Share Agreements also cover third party

collection costs and 90 days of accrued interest on covered assets The term for loss sharing on residential real estate loans is

ten years
while the term for loss sharing on non-residential real estate loans is five years

with respect to losses and eight

years with respect to loss recoveries The reimbursable losses from the FDIC are based on the book value of the relevant loan

as determined by the FDIC at the date of the transaction New loans made after that date are not covered by the Republic

Loss Share Agreements

1st United received $34.2 million net discount on the assets acquired The acquisition was accounted for under the

acquisition method of accounting in accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations The purchased assets and

assumed liabilities were recorded at their respective acquisition date fair values and identifiable intangible assets were

recorded at fair value Fair values are preliminary and subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the

acquisition as new information relative to closing date fair values becomes available The Company recorded an estimated

receivable from the FDIC in the amount of $43.8 million as of December 11 2009 which represents the fair value of the

FDICs portion of the losses that are expected to be incurred and reimbursed to the Company The Loss Sharing Agreements

are subject to certain servicing procedures as specified in the agreements

An acquisition gain totaling $20.5 million resulted from the acquisition and is included as component of noninterest income

on the statement of income

As previously disclosed the fair values initially assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were preliminary and

subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date of the acquisition as new information relative to preliminary fair

values became available Final valuation and purchase price allocation adjustments are reflected in the table below

Final

December 112009 Measurement

As initially Period December 11 2009

reported Adjustments As adjusted

Cash and cash equivalents 25026 25026

Securities 33637 33637

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan

Bank stock 5266 5266
Loans 198562 13833 184729

Core deposit intangible 1248 1248

FDIC loss share receivable 32900 10872 43772

Other assets 3223 226 2997

TOTAL ASSETS ACQUIRED 299862 3187 296675

Deposits 349647 349647

Repurchase agreements 3724 3724
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 78823 78823

Other 2376 430 1946

TOTAL LIABILITIES ASSUMED 434570 430 434140

Excess of liabilities over assets acquired 134708 2757 137465
Cash received from FDIC 158000 158000

RECORDED GAIN ON ACQUISITION 23292 2757 20535

Citrus Acquisition

On August 15 2008 the Company completed the assumption and acquisition of the banking center network substantially all

of the deposits and selected loans of Citrus Bank N.A the Citrus Acquisition headquartered in Vero Beach Florida

The total purchase price included $1500 of contingent consideration paid equally $750 per year over the next two years

subject to the retention of certain deposits acquired The Company was not required to pay the $750 that was potentially due

in 2009 and 2010
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NOTE 3- SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of available for sale securities and the related gross unrealized gains and losses recognized

in accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2010

U.S Government and federal agency 3995 43 4038

Mortgage-backed residential 97441 1134 324 98251

Municipal securities
_____________ _____________ _____________

101436 1177 324 102289

2009

U.S Government and federal agency 12490 80 12417

Mortgage-backed residential 74292 648 502 74438

Municipal securities 1988 1988

88770 655 582 88843

At year end 2010 and 2009 there were no holdings of securities of any one issuer other than the U.S Government and its

agencies in an arnount greater than 1000 of shareholders equity

The Company sold $35124 of available for sale securities in 2010 which resulted in gross gains of $503 and gross losses of

$68 most of which were callable agency securities The Company sold $32106 of available for sale securities in 2009 which

resulted in gross gains of $630 and gross losses of $34 most of which were callable agency securities The Company sold

$7100 of available for sale securities in 2008 which resulted in gross gains of$124 and gross losses of $5 most of which

were callable securities

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at year end 2010 by contractual maturity was as follows Securities not

due at single maturity date primarily mortgage-backed securities are shown separately

Fair

Amortized Cost Value

Due in one year or less

Due from one to five years

Due from five to ten years

Due after ten years 3995 4038

Mortgage-backed 97441 98251

101436 102289

Securities at year end 2010 and 2009 with carrying amount of $31497 and $41233 were pledged to secure public deposits

and repurchase agreements
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NOTE SECURITIES continued

Gross unrealized losses at year end 2010 and 2009 aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual

securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position were as follows

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

2010

U.S Govemment and federal

agency

Mortgage-backed 23557 324
_________ ____________

23557 324

23557 324 23557 324
2009

U.S Govemment and federal

agency 6806 80 6806 80
Mortgage-backed 39319 502

_________ ____________
39319 502

46125 582 46125 582

Unrealized losses on mortgage-backed securities have not been recognized into income because the mortgage-backed

securities held by the Company were issued by U.S government-sponsored entities and agencies primarily Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac institutions which the government has affirmed its commitment to support Because the decline in fair value is

attributable to changes in interest rates and illiquidity and not credit quality and because the Company does not have the

intent to sell these mortgage-backed securities and it is likely that it will not be required to sell the securities before their

anticipated recovery the Company does not consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31

2010

For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded combined $250 loss associated with the other

than-temporary decline in the value of corporate obligation The Company recorded the impairment as result of lack of

marketability and weakening financial conditions of the issuer Subsequent to the impairment charge the subsidiaiy bank of

the issuer was closed by the FDIC Consequently all of the loss was considered credit related by the Company

NOTE 4- LOANS

Loans at year end ere as follows

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Loans Loans Not Loans Loans Not

Subject to Subject to Subject to Subject to

Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share Loss Share

Agreements Agreements Total Agreements Agreements Total

Commercial 34749 94924 129673 35876 79905 115781

Real estate

Residential 117296 110204 227500 85936 114941 200877

Commercial 192106 264509 456615 57013 225770 282783

Construction 6687 26757 33444 1108 54581 55689

Consumer and other 4651 8994 13645 266 11607 11873

355489 505388 860877 180199 486804 667003

Add deduct
Unearned income and net

deferred loan fees costs 138 137

Allowance for loan

losses l300 13282
847689 653.88
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NOTE LOANS continued

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for 2010 2009 and 2008 was as follows

2010 2009 2008

Beginning balance 13282 5799 2070

Provision for loan losses 13520 13240 1910

Effect of merger or acquisition 2731

Loans charged-off 13933 5788 915
Recoveries 181 31

Ending balance 13050 13282 5799

The allocation of the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment at December 31 2010 was as follows

Construction

Residential Commercial and Land Consumer

Commercial Real Estate Real Estate Development and Other Total

Specific Reserves

Impaired loans 260 1781 1497 822 108 4468

Purchase credit impaired loans 89 215
_____________

304

Total specific reserves 260 1870 1712 822 108 4772
Genera reserves 3572 1156 2433 1073 44 8278

Total 3832 3026 4145 1895 152 13050

Loans individually evaluated for

impairment 434 10612 15720 6510 289 33565

Purchase credit impaired loans 2856 24977 50122 3880 1129 82964

Loans collectively evaluated for

impairment 126383 191911 390773 23054 12227 744348

Total 129673 227500 456615 33444 13645 860877
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NOTE LOANS continued

Impaired loans were as follows

The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31 2010

Impaired Loans With

Impaired Loans With Allowance no Allowance

Allowance for

Unpaid Recorded Loan Losses Unpaid Recorded

Principal Investment Allocated Principal Investment

Residential

First mortgages 7021 7021 1219 1939 1939

HELOCsandequity 1513 1513 650 139 139

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 311 311 210 73 73

Secured real estate 50 50 50

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owneroccupied 6124 6124 1027 1455 1455

Non-owner occupied 6512 6512 685 1629 1629

Multi-family

Construction and Land Development

Construction

Improved land 6965 5382 823

Unimproved land 1557 1128

Consumer and other 289 289 108

Total 28785 27202 4772 6792 6363

Impaired loans at December 31 2009 are summarized as follows

2009

Year end loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses 5900

Year end loans with allocated allowance for loan losses 11100

17000

Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocated 2611

Average impaired loans and related interest income for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows

2010 2009 2008

Average of impaired loans during the year 26267 19960 14288

Interest income recognized during impairment 599 551 373

Cash-basis interest income recognized 514 302 160
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NOTE 4- LOANS continued

Nonperforming loans at December 31 2010 were as follows

Assets Not Subject Assets Subject to

to Loss Shnre Loss Share

Agreement Agreement _________

6062

1638

Commercial

Secured non-real estate

Secured real estate

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Multi-family

Construction and and Development

Construction

Improved land 631 631

Unimproved land 1128 1128

Consumer and other
____________________________________________________

Total Non-accrual Loans
_________________________________________________

Accruing 90 days past due

Residential

First mortgages

HELOCs and equity

Commercial

Secured non-real estate

Secured real estate

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied

Non-owner occupied

Multi-family

Construction and Land Development

Construction

Improved land

Unimproved land

Consumer and other
_________________________________________________

Total Accruing 90 days past due
_________________________________________________

Non-Accrual Loans

Residential

First mortgages

HELOCs and equity

________________
Total

263 6325

1638

73 264

50

4800
183 3764

191

50

4800

3581

289 289

18370 519 18889

18370 519 18889
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NOTE 4- LOANS continued

Nonperforming loans and impaired loans are defined differently As such some loans may be included in both categories

whereas other loans may only be included in one category

Delinquent Loans

Dollars in thousands

Non-Accrual and

90 days and over past due

Accruing 30-59 Accruing 60-89 and accruing Total

Numbcr Anxuuut Nuiitbci Amount Numlici- Amount Numbcr Amount

Residential

First mortgages 2280 116 6325 19 8721

FIELOCs and equity 136 1638 1774

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 1095 85 264 13 1544

Secured real estate 50 50

Unsecured

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied 4692 4800 9492

Non owner occupied 1029 2635 3764 10 7428

Multi family

Construction and Land

Development

Constntction

Improved land 631 631

Unimprocd land 1128 1128

Consumer and other 289 89

24 9232 2936 31 18889 61 31057

The Company has allocated 1764 and $317 of specific reserves to customers whose loan tenrts have been modified in

troubled debt restructurings as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The Company has not committed to lend any

additional amounts to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as troubled deht restructurings

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service

their debt such as current financial information historical payment experience credit documentation public information

and current economic trends among other factors The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to

credit risk Loans classified as substandard or special mention are reviewed quarterly by the Company for further

deterioration or improvement to determine if appropriately classified and impairment if any All other loans greater than $1

million Commercial and Personal lines of credit greater than $100 and unsecured loans greater than $100 are specifically

reviewed at least annually to detennine the appropriate loan grading In addition during the renewal process of any loan as

well if loan becomes past due the Company will evaluate the loan grade

Loans excluded from the scope of the annual review process above are generally classified as pass credits until they

become past due management becomes aware of deterioration in the credit worthiness of the borrower or the

customer contacts the Company for modification In these circumstances the loan is specifically evaluated for potential

classification as to special mention substandard or even charged off The Company uses the following definitions for risk

ratings
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NOTE LOANS continued

Special Mention Loans classified as special mention have potential weakness that deserves managements close

attention If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for

the loan or of the institutions credit position at some future date

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and payment

capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Loans so classified have well-defined weakness or

weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the

institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the seaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard with the

added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing

facts conditions and values highly questionable and improbable

Pass Special

Total Credits Mention Substandard Doubtful

Residential

First mortgages 172598 157169 6332 9097

HELOCs and equity 54902 50803 1764 2335

Commercial

Secured non-real estate 106802 103375 757 2670

Secured real estate 37012 36962 50

Unsecured 22872 22420 452

Commercial Real Estate

Owner occupied 157652 138047 6636 12969

Non-owner occupied 224033 201021 5955 17057

Multi-family 37916 37916

Construction and Land Development

Construction

Improved land 21758 15292 1084 5382

Unimproved land 11687 8044 3643

Consumer and other 13645 13317 39 289

Total $860877 784366 22567 53944

The Company has purchased loans as part of its acquisitions of TBOM in 2010 Republic in 2009 and Equitable and Citrus

in 2008 for which there was at acquisition evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination and it was probable

at acquisition that all contractually required payments would not be collected The carrying amount of those loans at year end

was as follows
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NOTE 4- LOANS continued

2010 2009 2008

Commercial 10420 849

Real estate 151357 72180 22288

Consumer 3947 41
_________

Outstanding balance 165724 73070 22288

Carrying amount net of allowance of $304 $500 and $0 82660 36675 15121

For those purchased loans disclosed above the Company increased the allowance for loan losses by $84 $2571 and $0

during 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively No allowances for loan losses were reversed during 2010 2009 or 2008

Loans purchased during the year for which it was probable at acquisition that all contractually required payments would not

be collected were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Contractually required payments receivable of loans purchased during

theyear 161882 104751 25275

Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition 66494 39137 19996

Fair value of acquired loans at acquisition 51490 29966 18236

Accretable yield or income expected to be collected was as follows

Balance at January 2008

New loans purchased 1760

Accretion of income 1150
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference

Disposals __________
Balance at December 31 2008 610

New loans purchased 9171

Accretion of income 809
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference 199

Disposals __________

Balance at December 31 2009 9171

New loans purchased 15004

Accretion of income 2911
Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference

Disposals __________
Balance at December 31 2010 21264

Income is not recognized on certain purchased loans if the Company cannot reasonably estimate cash flows expected to be

collected The carrying amounts of such loans were as follows

2010 2009 2008

Loans purchased during the year 4033

Loans at end of year 2528 4033
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NOTE 5- OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned measured at fair value less costs to sell had canying amount of $9085 net of the valuation

allowance of $0 At December 31 2009 other real estate owned had carrying amount of $635 net of the valuation of $0

NOTE 6- PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Year end premises and equipment were as follows

2010 2009

Land 278 278

Buildings 4000 4000
Leasehold improvements 6011 5681

Furniture fixtures and equipment 6104 4727

16393 14686

Less accumulated depreciation 6570 5458

Premises and equipment net 9823 9228

Depreciation expense was $1210 $1411 and $1078 for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The Company leases several of its office facilities under operating leases one ofshich is collateralized by letter of credit

on which $75 time deposit is pledged Rent expense was $3359 $2973 and $2647 for the years ended 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

Rent commitments under these noncancelable operating leases were as follows before considering renewal options that

generally are present

2011 3625

2012 3727

2013 3604

2014 3472

2015 2270

Thereafter 3959

20657

NOTE 7- FDIC LOSS SHARE RECEIVABLE

The activity in the FDIC loss share receivable hich resulted from the TBOM Loss Share Agreements and Republic Loss

Share Agreements is as follows

2010 2009

Beginning of Year 43772

Effect of Acquisition 48690 43772

Cash Receied 6109
Discount Accretion 359

Impairment __________ __________

Endofyear 86712 43772

As of the years ended December 2010 and 2009 the Company has determined that the FDIC loss share receivable

collectible and there has been no impairment
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NOTE 8- GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

Goodwill The change in balance for goodwill during the year was as follows

Beginning of year

Effect of acquisitions

Impairment
___________ __________ __________

End of year _________ ________

Impairment exists when the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its fair value which is determined through two-step

impairment test The first step includes the determination of the carrying value of the Companys single reporting unit

including the existing goodwill and intangible assets and estimating the fair value of the reporting unit The Companys
annual impairment analysis as of December 31 2010 indicated that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying

amount Consequently the second step to the impairment test was not necessary

The amount of goodwill remaining to be deducted for tax purposes was $4815 $5290 and $5190 for the years ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Core Deposit Intangible The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for core deposit intangible was as follows

as of year end

Core deposit intangible $4757 1468 $4080

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016 and after
_______

NOTE 9- DEPOSITS

Time deposits of$l00 or more were $252161 and $212666 at year end 2010 and 2009 respectively

Scheduled maturities of time deposits for the next five years were as follows

2011 341269

2012 37781

2013 2732

2014 1191

2015 1838

379811

2010 2009

45008 45008

2008

4553

40455

45008 45008 45008

2010

Gross Accumulated

Cost Amortization

Amortization expense was $433 $313 and $250 for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Estimated amortization expense for each of the next five years was as follows

2009

Gross Accumulated

Cost Amortization

1035

494

451

429

403

384

1128

3289
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NOTE 10- FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

The Company has credit line with the Federal Home Loan Bank This credit line is collateralized by $114682 of residential

first mortgage and commercial real estate loans under blanket lien arrangement

At year
end 2010 and 2009 advances consisted of $5000 convertible advance at rate of 4.6% maturing on January 11

2012

NOTE 11- BENEFIT PLANS AND EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

401k Plan 401k benefit plan allows employee contributions up to lSo of their compensation which are matched equal

to 50% of the first 6% of the compensation contributed Employee benefit expense related to this plan was $93 $40 and

$164 for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Employment Agreements The Company has entered into rolling three-year employment agreements with three of its

executive officers The agreements provide for base salary cash bonuses and supplemental retirement benefits which are

tied to certain growth and/or profitability targets Expense under the associated supplemental retirement plans is allocated

over years of service and totaled $255 $169 and $244 for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Each of the agreements also provide for the granting of stock options in an amount equal to 3.33o of the issued and

outstanding common stock of the Company from time to time not including any common stock outstanding as result of the

exercise by the executives of options granted As of December 31 2010 and 2009 2484321 stock options were granted

under the terms of the employment agreements

NOTE 12-INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense benefit was as follows

2010 2009 2008

Current

Deferred 1361 1827 752

Total 1361 1827 752

2010 2009

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss and credit carryforward 8184 6293

Allowance for loan losses 13575 3655

Fair value adjustment of loans and other real estate owned 9224 14301

Accrued expenses 655 825

Tax deductible goodwill and other intangibles 4873

Depreciatin 589 430

Deferred compensation 915 571

38015 26075

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred gain 3281 4071
FDIC loss share receivable 32790 16471
Tax deductible goodwill and other intangibles 1996
Prepaid expenses 302 118
Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 321 27
Other

____________
422

36694 23105

Net deferred tax asset 1321 2970
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NOTE 12-INCOME TAXES continued

Year end deferred tax assets and liabilities were due to the following

The deferred tax liability related to the gain on the Republic transaction will reverse ratably over six years The remainder

will be realized as the applicable assets are sold or mature

The deferred income tax asset recorded in connection with the acquisition of Equitable Financial Group Inc was reduced by

$3015 in 2009 with corresponding increase in income taxes receivable as the result of the enactment of American

Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 which allowed the Company to carryback additional pre-acquisition net operating

loses incurred by Equitable to 2003 and 2004 This purchase accounting adjustment did not impact the results of operations

or the financial position of the Company

The Company continues to assess its earnings history its estimate of future earnings the expected reversal of differences in

book and taxable income and the expiration dates of its net operating loss carryforwards to determine that it was more likely

than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized

The Company has determined that the realization of the deferred tax assets continues to be more likely than not and no

valuation allowance was recorded for either 2009 or 2010

At year end 2010 the Company has Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $19817 and

$37052 respectively which begin to expire in 2023 It is anticipated that these carryforwards both Federal and State will be

utilized prior to their expiration Due to the issuance ot additional stock in September of 2009 the Company has likely

undergone change of ownership as that terni is defined in the Internal Revenue Code This change of ownership will

result in limitation of the amount of net operating losses that can be utilized by the Company annually However it is

antic jpated such annual limitations will not materially impact the Company

Effective tax rates differ from federal statutory rate of34o applied to income before income taxes due to the following

2010 2009 2008

Federal statutory rate times financial statement income 1197 1648 718
Effect of

State Taxes 131 176 77
Earnings from company owned life insurance 33 67
Incentive stock option expense 37 40 73

Change in valuation allowance

Other net 51 70 37

Total 1361 1827 752

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the State of Florida The

Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2007 except to the extent net operating

losses are carried back to earlier years Equitable which was merged into the Company in 2008 was under audit by the IRS

for the pre-merger taxable years ended December 2006 December 2007 and February 29 2008 That audit

concluded in 2010 with no changes to taxable income for any of the years under audit

There were no significant unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2010 and the Company does not expect any significant

increase in unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months
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NOTE 13- RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Loans to principal officers directors and their affiliates in 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Year ended December 31
2010 2009

Beginning balance 13009 11609

New loans 324 2216

Repayments 1524 816

Ending balance 11809 13009

Deposits from principal officers directors and their affiliates at year-end 2010 and 2009 were 12124 and $20461

respectively

Additionally the Company paid 5489 $252 and $248 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively to various entities owned by

directors of the Company or 1a United Bank for architectural design services and furniture related to its office facilities and

insurance services The Company entered into five-year lease that commenced in 2006 on property owned by director

for which it made payments ofSlS8 $158 and $150 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Lastly the Company sold $4040

in loans at their carrying value to one of its Directors during 2008

NOTE 14-STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company had non-executive officer stock option plan the 2003 Plan whereby up to 500 of the outstanding shares of

the Companys common stock may be issued under the plan At December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 62712 shares

had been issued and no options were available to be issued under the plan

In May 2008 the Companys shareholders approved new Stock Incentive Plan the 2008 Incentive Plan No additional

shares can be issued under the 2003 Plan The 2008 Incentive Plan allows for up to S0o of outstanding shares to be issued to

employees executive officers or Directors in the form of stock options restricted stock Phantom Stock units stock

appreciation rights or performance share units At Deceniber 31 2010 190138 option awards were issued and outstanding

under the 2008 Incentive Plan as of December 31 2010 Up to an additional 969516 awards may be issued under the 2008

Incentive Plan

During 2009 the Company implemented plan to allow non-executive employees at the employees option to exchange

45000 stock options issued in 2008 under the 2003 Plan with an exercise price of $14.50 per share for 45000 stock options

to be issued under the 2008 Incentive Plan with an exercise price of $7.20 but with new vesting periods which would

commence on the grant date of the new options All 45000 shares have been exchanged as of December 31 2010

Additionally 2484321 options to purchase the Companys common stock were outstanding at December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009 respectively to executive officers under employment agreements

Lastly the Company has entered into separate agreements with its non-executive directors and executive council members

whereby these individuals have been granted options to purchase the Companys common stock At December 31 2010 and

2009 62000 options were outstanding under these agreenients

Under each of the above plans and agreements the exercise price is the market price at date of grant The maximumoption

term is ten years and the vesting period ranges from immediate vesting to up to ten years The Company issues new shares to

satisf share option exercises Total compensation costs that have been charged against income for these plans and

agreements were 5830 5543 and $341 respectively for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using closed form option valuation Black-Scholes

model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of an

appropriate bank peer group The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination

behavior The expected term of options grantcd represents the period of time that options granted are cxpectcd to he

outstanding which takes into account that the options arc not transferable The risk-free interest rate for the expected term of

the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curse in effect at the time of the grant
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NOTE 14- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION continued

The fair value of options granted during 2010 and 2009 was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions

as of grant date

2010 2009

Risk free interest rate 2.42 2.98

Expected term 7years 7.OOyears

Expected stock price volatility 30.00% 30.00%

Dividend yield

summary of the activity in the stock option plan for 2010 follows

Weighted

Weighted Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Shares Price Term Value

Outstanding at beginning of year 2799533 7.83 8.S3years

Granted 6500 8.14

Exercised

Forfeited exchanged or expired 6858 7.16

Outstanding at end of year 2799175 7.83 7.S4years 2513097

Fully vested and expected to vest 2799175 7.83 7.S4years 2513097
Ekercisable at end of year 914375 10.86 5.47years 257558

Information related to the stock option plan during each year follows

2010 2009 2008

Intrinsic value of options exercised

Cash received from option exercises

Tax benefit realized from optiun exercises

Weighted average fair value of options granted 1.83 1.72 4.45

As of December 312010 and 2009 there were $3963 and $4441 respectively of total unrecognized compensation cost

related to non-vested stock options granted under the Plan The cost is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of 8.29 years

In 2009 the Company granted 80000 restricted shares of its common stock to non-executive directors pursuant to the terms

of the 2008 Incentive Plan The grant price was $7.15 Under the terms of the agreement the restricted shares will vest one

seventh immediately and one-seventh equally at the end of the next six years subject to accelerated vesting upon change of

control The fair value of stocic award at the grant date was $572 which one-seventh immediately vested and the remaining

are being amortized to expense over the six-year vesting period on the straight-line method Amortization expense was $81 in

2010 and $81 in 2009 In 2010 11429 shares vested and 57142 shares are non-vested at year-end

Subsequent to December 31 2010 the Company issued 101 600 shares of restricted stock to non-employee directors of the

Company and Ut United The fair value of the stock award was $700 which vest one seventh at issuance and one-seventh

each year thereafter which will result in an annual amortization expense ofSlOO beginning in 2011
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NOTE 15- LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

On July 2008 1st United entered into Subordinated Capital Note Purchase Agreement Note Purchase Agreement
with correspondent bank Lender Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement 1st United issued to Lender an unsecured

Subordinated Capital Note the Debenture in the principal amount of $5000 The Debenture bore interest at fixed rate of

5.69c until May 16 2010 after which time the fluctuating interest rate is equal to the three month British Bankers

Association LIBOR Daily Floating Rate LIBOR plus 245 basis points per annum Ut United began repaying principal of

$125 each quarter on September 15 2010 and will continue paying until maturity on June 15 2020 at which time any

remaining principal and accrued interest is due and payable lt United paid an origination fee of $37 to Lender for the

Debenture The Debenture is included in total capital for purposes of computing total capital to risk weighted assets for both

the Company and United

The Debenture contains certain customary representations warranties covenants and events of default Upon the occurrence

of any event of default as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement which is continuing interest will become due and

payable upon demand If an event of default occurs due to 1St Uniteds bankruptcy insolvency receivership conservatorship

or reorganization then Lender shall have the right to declare the Debenture to be immediately due and payable

The following are aggregate maturities of long term debt for the next five years and thereafter

2011 500

2012 500

2013 500

2014 500

2015 500

Thereafter 2250

4750

NOTE 16- COMMON STOCK OFFERING

During 2009 Bancorp issued 16100000 the Offering shares of common stock at $5.00 per share The total proceeds of

the Offering were $74925 net of offering costs of $5575

NOTE 17- PREFERRED STOCK

On March 13 2009 the Company entered into Letter Agreement with the Treasury Department as part of the Treasury

Departments Capital Purchase Program pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and sell 10000 shares of Series

Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred having liquidation amount per sharc of $1000 for

total price of $10000000 and warrant Warrant to purchase up to 500 shares of Series Fixed Rate Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred at an initial per share exercise price of $0.01 The Treasury Department

exercised the Warrant immediately and the Company issued 500 shares of Series Preferred Total proceeds net of issuance

costs of approximately $171 were approximately $9829 The Series Preferred paid cumulative dividends of5o per

annum until the 5th anniversary date of their issuance and thereafter at rate of per annum The Series Preferred paid

cumulative dividends at per annum and cannot be redeemed until the Series Preferred is redeemed The Series

Preferred and Series Preferred also provided for various restrictions including restricting dividends to common

shareholders and restrictions on executive compensation

To facilitate the issuance of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred on February 27 2009 the Company exchanged all

of its outstanding Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred for Series Non Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series Preferred All of the material terms and conditions of the Series Preferred are

identical to the Series Preferred except that the Series Preferred had liquidation preference over other preferred shares

whereas the liquidation preference of the Series Preferred is equal to that of the Series Preferred and Series Preferred

During 2009 the Company redeemed the Series Preferred and Series Preferred from the Treasury Department The

approximate cost of the redemption of these shares was $10500 As result additional accretion for the Series Preferred

and Series Preferred of $671 was recorded during the period ended December 31 2009
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NOTE 18- CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON RETAINED EARNINGS

During 2009 the Company also redeemed the Series Preferred Stock at their outstanding balance of $4595 plus accrued

dividends

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies

Capital adequacy guidelines and additionally for banks prompt corrective action regulations involve quantitative measures

of assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet times calculated under regulatory accounting practices Capital amounts

and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate

regulatory action

Management believes as of December31 2010 the Company and United meet all capital adequacy requirements to which

they are subject

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications well capitalized adequately capitalized undercapitalized

significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized although these terms are not used to represent overall financial

condition If adequately capitalized regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits If undercapitalized capital

distributions are limited as is asset growth and expansion and capital restoration plans are required At year-end 2009 and

2008 the most recent regulatory notifications categorized Pt United as well capitalized under the regulatory notifications

framework for prompt corrective action There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes

have changed the institutions category

The Companys and Uniteds actual and required capital amounts and ratios at year end are presented

Minimum Capital Minimum for

Actual Adequacy Well Capitalized

Amount Amount Amount

As ofDecember 31 2010

Total Capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 134796 23.7 1% 45765 8.00% 57206 10.00%

1st United 89326 20.26c 45415 8.00c 56769 10.00%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 123906 21.62c 22883 4.00% 34324 6.00%

1st United 77499 18.18c 22707 4.00c 34061 6.00%

Tier capital to total average assets

Consolidated 123906 11.78c 42526 4.00c 53157 5.00%

1st United 77499 9.90o 42237 4.00c 52796 5.00%

As of December 31 2009

Total Capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 132813 25.45c 41749 8.00c 52186 10.00%

IstUnited 85780 l6.59 41372 8.00c 51715 10.00%

Tier capital to risk-weighted assets

Consolidated 122206 23.23c 20875 4.00c 31312 6.00%

1st United 74238 14.36% 20686 4.00c 31029 6.00%

Tier capital to total average assets

Consolidated 121206 12.54% 38649 4.00% 48311 5.00%

1st United 74238 7.72c 37473 4.00c 48091 5.00%

Dividend RestrictionsThe Companys principal source of funds for dividend payments is dividends received from

United Banking regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of regulatory agencies

Under these regulations the amount of dividends that may be paid in any calendar year is limited to the current years net

profits combined with the retained net profits of the preceding two years subject to the capital requirements described above

At year end 2010 1st United could without prior approval declare dividends of approximately $4.6 million plus any 2011

net profits retained to the date of the dividend declaration
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NOTE 19- LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER RELATED ACTIVITIES

Some financial instruments such as loan commitments credit lines letters of credit and overdraft protection are issued to

meet customer financing needs These are agreements to provide credit or to support the credit of others as long as

conditions established in the contract are met and usually have expiration dates Commitments to make loans are generally

made for periods of 60 days or less and may expire without being used Off-balance-sheet risk to credit loss exists up to the

face amount of these instruments although material losses are not anticipated The same credit policies are used to make such

commitments as are used for loans including obtaining collateral at exercise of the commitment

The contractual amount of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk was as follows at year end

2010 2009

Fixed Variable Fixed Variable

Rate Rate Rate Rate

Commitments to make loans 4490 15680 4120 11485

Unused lines of credit 2162 45257 11389 44437

Stand-by letters of credit 3140 904 4995

Commitments to make loans are generally made for periods of 60 days or less The fixed rate loan commitments have interest

rates ranging from 2.0c to 18c and the underlying loans have maturities ranging from one month to 28 years

NOTE 20- FAIR VALUES

Carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments were as follows at year end

2010 2009

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 119752 119752 135241 135241

Time deposits in other financial institutions 75 75 75 75

Securities available for sale 102289 102289 88843 88843

Loans net including loans held for sale 852489 851105 654771 649251

Nonmarketable equity securities 18543 N/A 10233 N/A

Company owned life insurance 4727 4/2 4566 4566
FDIC loss share receivable 86712 86712 43772 43772

Accrued interest receivable 2484 2484 1919 1919

Financial liabilities

Deposits 1064687 1064878 802808 804377
Federal finds purchased and repurchase agreements 12866 12881 22343 22343
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 5000 5000 5000 5080
Other borrowings 4750 4752 5091 5055
Accrued interest payable 782 782 859 859

The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are described as follows

Canying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents time deposits in other financial institutions

accrued interest receivable and payable demand deposits federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements and deposits

that reprice frequently and fully Fair value of loans is based on discounted future cash flows using the current rates at which

similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities adjusted for the

allowance for loan losses For deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits fair value is based on discounted cash

flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life Fair value of debt is based on current rates for similar

financing It was not practicable to determine the fair value of nonmarketable equity securities due to restrictions placed on

their transferability The fair value of off-balance-sheet items is not considcred material or is based on the cuiTent fees or

cost that would be charged to enter into or terminate such arrangements
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NOTE 20- FAIR VALUES continued

Fair Value Option and Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820-10-65 establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be

used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability

to access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing and asset or liability

The fair values of securities available for sale are determined by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities

exchanges Level inputs or matrix pricing which is mathematical technique widely used in the industry to value debt

securities without relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities

relationship to other benchmark quoted securities Level inputs

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses and other real estate is generally

based on recent real estate appraisals These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of

approaches including comparable sales and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by

the appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are

typically significant and result in Level classification of the inputs for determining fair value

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

Fair value measurements at December 31 2010 using

Significant

Quoted prices other Significant

in active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets inputs inputs

2010 Level Level Level

Assets

U.S Government and federal agency 4038 4038

Mortgage-backed residential 98251
__________________

98251
_____________

102289 102289
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis are summarized below

4559

181
__________________

22430

7608

1477 _________________

9085

6665

101

10924

4559
181

22430

7608

1477

9085

Available for Sale Securities

U.S Government and federal agency

Mortgage-backed residential

Municiple securities

Fair value measurements at December 31 2009 using

Significant

Quoted prices other Significant

in active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets inputs inputs

2009 Level Level Level

12417 12417

74438 74438

1988 1988

88843 88843

Fair value measurements at December 31 2009 using

Sigiiificant

Quoted prices in other Significant

active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets Inputs inputs

2009 Level Level Level

Fair value measurements at December 31 2010 using

Significant

Quoted prices in other Significant

active markets observable unobservable

December 31 for identical assets Inputs inputs

2010 Level Level Level

6665

101

10924

Assets

Impaired loans

Residential

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Construction and land development

Consumer and other

Other real estate

Commercial

Residential

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans had

carrying amount of $27202 with valuation allowance of $4772 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of

$3212 for the period

Other real estate owned which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral had carrying amount of

$9085 with no valuation allowance for the period

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring basis are summarized below

Assets

Impaired loans 8489 8489

Other real estate 635 635

89



15t United Bancorp Inc

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Dollars in thousands except per
share data

NOTE 20- FAIR VALUES continued

At December 31 2009 impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral

dependent loans had carrying amount of$1 1100 with valuation allowance of$26l resulting in an additional provision

for loan losses of $3938 for the period

Other real estate owned which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral had carrying amount of

$635 with no valuation allowance for the period

There have been no transfers between levels for 2010 and 2009

NOTE 21 EARNINCS LOSS PER SHARE

The factors used in the earnings per share computation follow

2010 2009 2008

Basic

Netlncomeloss 2160 3020 1359
Preferred stock dividends earned 774 368

Amount available to common shareholders 2160 2246 1727

Weighted average common shares outstanding 24781660 13234286 6893055

Basic earnings per common share 0.0 0.17 0.25

Diluted

Net Income loss 2160 3020 1359
Preferred shareholder dividends earned 774 368

Amount available to common shareholders 2160 2246 1727

Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic earnings

per common share 24781660 13234286 6893055

Add Dilutive effects of assumed exercise of stock options and

vesting of restricted stock 98912
___________ ____________

Average shares and dilutive potential common shares 24880572 13234286 6893055

Diluted earnings per common share 0.09 0.17 0.25

Stock options for 1069177 2799533 and 1051723 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted

earnings per share for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively because they were antidilutive

NOTE 22-OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

Other comprehensive income loss components and related taxes were as follows

Year ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities 1216 685 810

Less reclassification adjustments for gains losses later recognized in income 435 476 11

Net unrealized gains and losses 781 1161 821

Tax effect 294 437 309

Other comprehensive income loss 487 724 512
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NOTE 23- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information of Bancorp follows

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets
___________ ___________

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Other liabilities

Shareholders equity _________ _________

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Interest income

Dividends from subsidiary

Other income

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income loss

Interest expense

Other expense __________ __________ __________

2036 2955 1421
124 65 62

2160 3020 1359

2010 2009

13136 40677

160241 129640

673 285

174050 170602

174050 170594

174050 170602

228 192

2365 3127

12
557 352

Income loss before income tax

Income tax expense benefit

Net income loss

71

1259
14

219
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NOTE 23- PARENT COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION Continued

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31

2365 3127 1259

830 543 341

396 36 50
229 400 191

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Repurchase and retirement of common stock

Repurchase and retirement of preferred stock

Issuance of preferred stuck

Issuance of common stock _________ _________ _________
Net cash from financing activities

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures As of December 31 2010 the end of the period covered by this Annual

Report on Form 10-K our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a 15e under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Based upon that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer each concluded that as of

December 31 2010 the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K ss maintained effective disclosure

controls and procedures

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is process designed

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilits of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

Under the supenision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework our management has

concluded we maintained effectivc internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 Rule I3a-bf as of December 31.2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments

Equity in undistributed subsidiary income

Stock based compensation expense

Net Change in other assets and liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities Investments in subsidiary

2010 2009 2008

2160 3020 1359

27749 35462 21545

250
774

15095
9829

21 74925

21 68635

27541 33573

40677 7104

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Ending cash and cash equivalents

250

206

6529

10140

16713

4641
11745

13136 40677 7104
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Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives

because of its inherent limitations Internal control over financial reporting is process that involves human diligence and

compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures Internal control over

financial reporting can also be circumvented by collusion or improper management nverride Because nf such limitations

there is risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on timely basis by internal control over

financial reporting However these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting process Therefore it is

possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce though not eliminate this risk

As permitted the Company has excluded the current year acquisition of The Bank of Miami N.A represents approximately

2l of total assets at December 31 2010 from the scope of managements report on internal control over financial

reporting

Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements and other

financial information contained in this report The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles and include as necessary best estimates and judgments by

management

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010 has been audited by Crowe

Horwath LLP an independent registered public accounting firm and the firms attestation report on this matter is included

in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Change in Internal Control Our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has

reviewed our internal control There have been no significant changes in our internal control during our most recently

completed fiscal quarter that could significantly affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART HI

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to identification of directors and officers is incorporated by

reference from the information contained in the sections captioned Proposal Election of Directors Executive Officers

and Corporate Governance Codes of Conduct and Ethics in our Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders

to be held on May 24 2011 the Proxy Statement copy of which we intend to file sith the SEC within 120 days after

the end of the year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Section 16 Compliance

Information appearing under the captions Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy

Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of the Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Executive Compensation and Election of Directors Directors Fees in the Proxy Statement

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Our shareholders approved the Officers and Employees Stock Option Plan at the 2003 Annual Meeting Our shareholders

approved the 2008 Incentive Plan at the 2008 Annual Meeting The 2008 Incentive Plan replaces the Officers and

Employees Stock Option Plan We no longer grant equity compensation pursuant to the Officers and Employees Stock

Option Plan The following table provides certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31
2010

Number of

securities

remaining

available for

future issuance

under

Number of equity

securities to be Weighted-average compensation

issued upon exercise exercise price of plans excluding

of outstanding outstanding securities

options %varrants options reflected in

and rights warrants and rights column

Plan Category

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Securities

Holders 252854 7.90 969516

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Securities

Holders 2546321 7.82 ot

Total 2799175 7.84 969516

Messrs Orlando Schupp and Marino are granted stock options from timc to time pursuant to written employment agreement Please

see section captioned Executive Compensation in our Proxy Statement

The other information required by Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in our Proxy Statement

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the

sections captioned Transactions with Management and Related Persons and Proposal Election of Directors

Committees of the Board of Directors in the Proxy Statement

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from the information in the section captioned

Audit Fees and Related Matters in the Proxy Statement

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets at the end of Fiscal Years 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Income for Fiscal Years 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for Fiscal Years 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Fiscal Years 2010 2009 and 2008

94



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Other schedules and exhibits are omitted because the required information either is not applicable or is

shown in the financial statements or the notes thereto

Exhibits Required to be Filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

EXHIBIT

NO DESCRIPTION

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Equitable Financial Group Inc Equitable Bank and

United Bancorp Inc dated as of October 2007 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed 11/19/09 No 333-147505

2.2 Amendment No ito the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Equitable Financial Group Inc

Equitable Bank and United Bancorp Inc dated as of December 19 2007 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrants Amendment No to Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed

12/28/08 No 333-147505

2.3 Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among Citrus Bank National Association CIB Marine

Bancshares Inc and 1st United Bank dated April 32008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1

of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed 5/14/08 No 00 1-34462

2.4 Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement by and among Citrus Bank National Association cm

Marine Bancshares Inc 1st United Bank and 1st United Bancorp Inc dated May 132008 incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q filed 5/14/08 No
00 1-34462

2.5 Purchase and Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits among the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation receiver of Republic Federal Bank N.A Miami Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and Ut United Bank dated as of December 11 2009 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/17/09 No 001-34462

2.6 Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement among the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

receiver of Republic Federal Bank N.A Miami Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and

15t United Bank effective as of December 17 2010 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 12/17/09 No 001- 34462

2.7 Purchase and Assumption Agreement Whole Bank All Deposits among the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation receiver of The Bank of Miami N.A Miami Florida the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and united Bank dated as of December 2010 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrants Cuntnt Report on Form 8-K filed 12/20/10 No 001-34462

3.1 Aniended and Restated Articles of incorporation of the Registrant incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed 7/22/08 No 001 34462

3.2 Amendment to the United Bancorp Inc Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed 5/28/09 No 001-

34462

3.3 Amendment to the United Bancorp Inc Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form filed 12/9/09 No 001-

34462

3.4 Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Registrants Current

Report on Form IC filed 12/9/09 No 001 34462

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 through 3.4 for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Registrant

defining rights of the holders of common stock of the Registrant

4.2 Subordinated Capital Note effective July 2008 by 1st United Bank in favor of Silverton Bank N.A in

the amount of 35000000- incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 001-34467

4.3 Form of indenture incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrants Registration

Statement of Form S-3 filed 11/23/10 No 333-070789
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EXHIBIT

NO DESCRIPTION

10.1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with John Marino dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 001-

34462

10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Warren Orlando dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 001-

34462

10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Rudy Schupp dated as of December 18 2008

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09 No 001-

34462

10.4 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for John Marino dated as of

December 18 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrants Form filed

8/26/09 No 333-161563

10.5 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Warren Orlando dated

as of December 18 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrants Form 10-K

filed 3/13/09 No 00 1-34462

10.6 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement for Rudy Schupp dated as

of December 18 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrants Form 10-K

filed 3/13/09 No 00 1-34462

10.7 2008 Incentive Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed 5/30/08 No 001 34462

10.8 Subordinated Capital Note Purchase Agreement between 1st United Bank and Silverton Bank N.A
effective July 2008 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K filed 7/10/08 No 001-34462

10.9 Letter Agreement dated March 13 2009 between 1M United Bancorp Inc and the United States

Department of Treasury which includes the Securities Purchase Agreement-Standard Terms attached

thereto incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Registrants Form 10-K filed 3/13/09

No 001-34462

10.13 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Wade Jacobson effective as of December

22 2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrants Current Report on Form

filed 12/23/09 No 001-34462

11.1 Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings

14.1 Code of Ethics

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Crowe Hon\ath LLP independent registered public accounting firm

31.1 Certification of CEO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

31.2 Certification of CFO pursuant to Securities and Exchange Act Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.1 Certification of CEO and CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Information required to be presented in Exhibit 11 is provided in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements under Part II Item of this Form 10-K in accordance with the provisions of U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

Filed electronically herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on February 14 2011 its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

15T UNITED BANCORP INC

Registrant

By Is John Marino

JOHN MARINO
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed on February 14 2011 by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated

Is Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

Is John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

Is Paula Berliner Is Carlos Morrison

Paula Berliner Director Carlos Morrison Director

Is Jeffery Carrier Is Joseph Veccia Jr

Jeffery Carrier Director Joseph Veccia Jr Director

Is Ronald David Esq Is John Marino

Ronald David Esq Director John Marino Director

Is James Evans Is Warren Orlando

James Evans Director Warren Orlando Director

Is Arthur Loring Is Rudy Schupp

Arthur Loring Director Rudy Schupp Director

Is Thomas Lynch

Thomas Lynch Director

97



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Rudy Schupp certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1d United Bancorp Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

repnrting and the preparation of financial statements fnr external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 14 2011 s/ Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

John Marino certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of 1st United Bancorp Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made
not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an

annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or

persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date Febrnary 14 2011 Is John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer Principal Financial

Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION UNDER SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Puisuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 each of the undersigned certifies that this periodic

report folly complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that

information contained in this periodic report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of

operations of the issuer

Dated February 14 2011 Is Rudy Schupp

Rudy Schupp

Chief Executive Officer

Is John Marino

John Marino

President and Chief Financial Officer
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